Public Document Pack

Children and Young People Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 3 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

17 May 2012 Assembly for
Wales

Meeting time: F’
09:00 /

For further information please contact:

Policy: Claire Morris

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8148 / 029 2089 8032
CYPCommittee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09:00)

2. Inquiry into Neonatal Care (09:00 - 09:45) (Pages 1 - 65)
Powys Teaching Health Board

Andrew Cottom - Chief Executive

Carol Shillabeer - Director of Nursing

3. Inquiry into Neonatal Care (09:45 - 10:45) (Pages 66 - 87)
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board

Paul Hollard - Interim Chief Executive

Dr Jennifer Calvert - Consultant Neonatologist

Cwm Taf Local Health Board
Allison Williams - Chief Executive
Kath McGrath - Assistant Director of Operations

(Break 10:45 - 11:00)

4. Inquiry into Neonatal Care (11:00 - 11:45) (Pages 88 - 144)
Aneurin Bevan Health Board

Dr Andrew Goodall - Chief Executive

Judith Paget, Director of Planning and Operations/ Deputy Chief Executive

5. Papers to note



Inquiry into Neonatal Care: Additional information from Royal College of
Nursing Wales (Pages 145 - 146)



Mel Evans, Chairman Cadeirydd IQ~ @ @ r‘]’nﬁmdz

Addysgu Powys
Powys Teaching

Andrew Cottom, Chief Executive Y Prif Weithredwr 03'0 N H S

Phone: 01874 712643 Ffon: 01874 712643 Health Board
Fax: 01874 712554 Ffacs: 01874 712554
E-bost/Email : mel.evans2@wales.nhs.uk

andrew.cottom@wales.nhs.uk

Dear Ms Chapman

Chair

Children and Young People Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Children and Young People Committee — Neonatal Services
Powys teaching Health Board submission

Powys teaching Health Board is pleased to provide the following information
as evidence to the Committee for its work on Neonatal services.

Powys is the largest county in Wales covering approximately 25% of the land
mass of Wales a distance of 130 miles from north to south, but only has 4% of
the population at 130,000. Powys teaching Health Board (tHB) provides
antenatal and postnatal midwifery care for approximately 1200 women and
their babies a year, of which approximately 300 births are within Powys. The
births within Powys are home births or births in one of six free-standing
midwife led units, and Powys has one of the highest home birth rates in the
UK. Powys does not have its own District General Hospital but secures
services on behalf of its population from six main DGHs. Furthermore,
although there are 10 community hospitals in Powys there are no inpatient
services for children, of any age, with any condition, with all inpatient services
for children being provided out of county. The District General Hospitals are:

Wrexham Maelor, Wrexham (Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board)
Bronglais, Aberystwyth (Hywel Dda Health Board)

Singleton, Swansea (Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board)
Nevill Hall, Abergavenny (Aneurin Bevan Health Board)

Hereford Hospital (Wye Valley NHS Trust)

Royal Shrewsbury Hospital (Shrewsbury and Telford NHS Trust)

In relation to maternity and neonatal services, there is no single centre to
which such women and neonates from Powys could be transferred, due to the
considerable distances involved in accessing services. Working
collaboratively, beyond our borders, is fundamental to how Powys operates.
Provision for the residents of Powys therefore has to be included in the plans
for maternity and neonatal services in both England and Wales.

Y Plasty, Bronllys, Aberhonddu, Powys LD3 OLS MINDFUL EMPLOYER Mansion House, Bronllys, Brecon, Powys LD3 OLS

Pencadlys y Bwrdd lechyd /c?ﬁb&ivk VRTRIEE Health Board Headquarters
Ffon: 01874 711661 Ffacs: 01874 711601 Tel: 01874 711661 Fax: 01874 711601

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth Gymraeg &0y, " M, - We welcome correspondence in Welsh
Bwrdd lechyd Addysgu Powys yw enw gweithredd Bwrdd lechyd Lleol % yyg §W§‘ Powys Teaching Health Board is the operational name of
Addysgu Powys YU oo LA Powys Teaching Local Health Board

Page 1



The neonatal networks therefore within Wales that have a consideration for
Powys, include:
e North (Ysbyty Gwynedd, Ysbyty Glan Clwyd and Wrexham Maelor
Hospital)
e South West (Bronglais Hospital, Withybush Hospital, West Wales
General Hospital, Singleton Hospital and Princess of Wales Hospital)
e South Central (University of Wales Hospital, Royal Glamorgan Hospital
and Prince Charles Hospital)
e South East (Nevill Hall Hospital, and Royal Gwent Hospital).

The neonatal networks with a consideration for Powys residents in England
therefore are:

e Southern West Midlands Newborn Network — SWMNN (Hereford
County Hospital, Worcestershire Royal Hospital, Birmingham Women’s
Hospital)

e Staffordshire, Shropshire and Black Country Newborn Network -
SSBCNN (Royal Shrewsbury, University Hospital North Stafford, New
Cross hospital).

Wherever possible the need for neonatal care is planned, and there are
specific conditions and risk factors identified in the antenatal period that will
determine the most appropriate clinical pathway for both mother and baby. In
the rare event of a neonate being born in the community in Powys who
requires any form of intervention, basic neonatal life support is provided whilst
awaiting transfer to an identified DGH neonatal team. In the event of a
neonate being born in the community that requires neonatal care they would
be transported to a DGH by the ambulance service and accompanied by a
Powys tHB community midwife. Such events have occurred but are
exceptionally rare with the last incident occurring in 2007. In terms of
specialist neonatal transport services (retrievals) there would be no retrievals
from or to community based midwifery services as retrievals are inter-DGH.
The ambulance service therefore has a key role to play. In order to ensure
that midwives are well equipped to deal effectively with a ‘neonatal
emergency’, the teaching Health Board ensures that all midwives undertake
neonatal life support training in order to provide immediate life saving care to
the neonates whilst the ambulance service responds.

Q1. A copy of your current local neonatal action plan, including information
about the mechanisms you have put in place to monitor and evaluate the
implementation of the key actions within these plans and timescales.

As outlined above, the role of Powys tHB is to secure services on behalf of its
population and therefore does not directly provide specialist neonatal
services. It also has a responsibility to ensure that access to services, and the
quality of care received by Powys residents is good. The teaching Health
Board therefore links into each service provider to ensure action plans in
place to improve service provision are being implemented. As the All Wales
Neonatal standards span the whole pathway, where specific standards apply

Page 2 2



to community services provided within Powys tHB, these are monitored
locally.

Within Wales, Powys tHB utilises the electronic self-assessment of the
National Service Framework (NSF) by neighbouring Health Boards, including
standard 3.32 in relation to Welsh Government standards for neonatal care to
determine progress in implementing key standards. This provides Powys with
information about the degree of compliance with agreed standards, audit
processes and evidence to support scoring. This is reviewed formally
annually and any areas of concern followed up with individual services.

In relation to services provided from England, the two main DGHs providing
neonatal services to Powys residents are subject to a separate National
Service Framework. A separate report is provided on outcomes within the
relevant newborn networks, which is reviewed and discussed within Powys
teaching Health Board (attached for SSCBNN and SWMNN). Issues of
concern are escalated as necessary.

Powys is one of the seven Health Boards that participate in the arrangements
for commissioning specialist services through the Welsh Health Specialist
Services Committee. Overall responsibility for planning of services rests
collectively with Health Boards and is discharged through the WHSSC
functions in collaboration with Health Boards.

Q2. A copy of the latest annual report on quality of care (as set out in
Standard 6.8 of the All Wales Neonatal Standards), alongside information on
the number of instances of when patient safety has been compromised.

There are a number of ways in which quality of care is monitored and
reported. Each of the host health boards receiving patients from Powys, with
designated specialist centres, are responsible for ensuring and reporting
overall compliance via NSF standard 3.32. The tHB is receiving some annual
reports and is strengthening its approach is ensuring all reports are received
and considered in a timely manner. Two annual reports are provided as
examples.

The services provided in Powys are not specialist; therefore standard 6.8
does not apply to local services. Careful consideration however is given in
governance and safety forums (such as the Perinatal Review Meeting) to
pathways and incidents from which issues of concern regarding safety and
quality may arise.

Powys tHB monitors all transfers of neonates and women from Powys
community midwifery services, which are reported through the risk reporting
system (Datix) and cases are reviewed by the Health Board ‘Risk midwife’.
Where transfers of women have resulted in an admission to neonatal care this
is included in the narrative of the incident report. A clear process is in place for
escalating serious incidents, with a full root cause analysis review and a
resultant outcomes report and improvement plan.

Page 3 3



Complaints in relation to the service received in a neighbouring Health Board
are managed between Powys teaching Health Board and the individual Health
Board or Trust who undertake an investigation/review. There have been no
complaints recorded in the last financial year.

Q3. An outline of any action taken and any plans for investing into neonatal
services in the short, medium and longer term to ensure all services in your
area are fully compliant with the Standards.

With regard to commissioning specialist services Powys participates in the
WHSSC arrangements as outlined above. The neonatal capacity review was
presented to the Director of Planning, 3™ February 2012, which was well
received. The Committee will no doubt make itself familiar with this review and
note the limitation of the review in relation to capturing cot requirements
involving cross border transfers. This is an important issue particularly if
Wales wishes to provide for all (where geographically practicable to do so)
neonates.

Another important issue relating to cross border provision is linked to service
reconfiguration. Trusts such as Shrewsbury and Telford NHS Trust have been
reviewing and redesigning services in order to increase sustainability. This
has meant a proposal for neonatal services to be transferred from Shrewsbury
to Telford (20 minutes further away from mid Wales). This has caused
concern for the population in mid Wales in relation to the ‘moving away’ of
services and Powys teaching Health Board continues to work closely to
ensure any proposals safeguard the interests of the Powys population.

Q4. The costs associated with cross border transfers, including the amount
paid to English PCTs for the transfer of neonates as well as the income
generated for Welsh providers.

It is important to note that for the Powys population much of the use of the
NHS in England is planned and commissioned as a matter of routine, meeting
the needs of the population and the geography. Some activity, largely special
care cots, are included within local contracts with providers, especially those
in England, other activity for neonatal intensive care is commissioned largely
through Welsh Health Specialist Services Committee.

The table below shows the neonatal bed days commissioned by WHSCC for
the two main hospitals in England used by women and babies from Powys.

09/10 10/11 11/12
Shrewsbury 67 80 50
Birmingham Womens 6 0 1

Page 4 4



The table below indicates a breakdown of the episodes utilised within Wales.

2006- 2007- 2008-  2009- 2010- 2011-
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012*

Provider

7A1 - Betsi Cadwaladr

University Local Health

Board 7 6 4 4 7
7A2 - Abertawe Bro

Morgannwg University

Local Health Board 15 4 8 10 4 3
7A6 - Aneurin Bevan

Local Health Board 30 36 37 44 33 34
Grand Total 45 47 51 58 41 44

* this total may be incomplete

Q5. Whether you have had any discussions with WHSSC and neighbouring
LHBs about the overall increase in cots needed and any joint planning as to
where they are located and at what level of intensity.

The demand from Powys residents for neonatal services is generally small
(proportionately) as the above indicates. Patterns of activity are well
established and discussions take place with each provider in relation to
activity. There is a connection between Powys’ Women and Childrens
services and the neonatal network, ensuring that consideration is given to the
standardised pathways into England.

As part of service sustainability across Wales, it will be essential for Powys to
be represented at planning meetings. There is agreement that Powys will
participate in the South Wales and the Mid Wales/Hywel Dda processes for
service sustainability. A key work stream is the planning and provision of
maternity and neonatal services.

The detail below outlines the capacity required for the Powys population.

Total Population Cot requirements per Powys cot requirements
131,000 1000 births'

1200 births

Neonatal intensive care | 0.75 0.9

(level 3)

High dependency care | 0.84 1.08

Special Care 4.4 5.28

" British Association of Perinatal Medicine (2004) Designing a Neonatal Unit.

Q6. Whether any work has been undertaken with neighbouring Boards, or the
Welsh Government via WHSSC, on workforce planning to address what
impact changes to junior doctor recruitment and the number of training places
in the future will have on services in coming years

Page 5 S




Services within Powys are community midwifery led and therefore the
changes to junior doctors are not applicable and would be considered by
neighbouring Health Boards and NHS Trusts. Powys teaching Health Board
recognises the challenges that the workforce issues present, particularly
regarding medical staff and is committed to working with other Health Boards
on service planning to ensure that services are accessible and sustainable.

Yours sincerely
Carol Shillabeer (Nurse Director)
(on behalf of)

Andrew Cottom
Chief Executive

Attachments
SSBCNN annual report 2010-11
SWMNN annual report 2010-11

Page 6 6



«$21qvq puv
S42Yypowt 10f sa102In0 240.4dutl 10 saPRbaUL YIVIY SS2IPPD 0F $2I14.43S Ul JUdUIdA0Ldul Py SO/,
L1107 SPIEMY SIIIAIIS AJUIIBIA
AMuleA uo dnoan) ArejudweIaed-1Iv Y.L,
JO JoUUIAA

1102-010C LJOddd TVNNNY

1InY1j0S 9 [[ompues ‘weybuiwLilg ‘19)sa910] ‘PJ0JoJoH

NUYOMLAN NHOMAN SANVIAIN LSHAM NYHHL10S

SHN

Page 7



‘uone|ndod |220] 8y} 0] @12 apiroid 0] SENUNUOD ISNI| BY) pue
aus [endsoH A1D oyl 01 palisjsuen dJom S92IAIBS 9say| ‘L Loz Alenuer
Ul Paso|d IS [[oMpueS 1B S2IAI9S AluldIe)\ pue Nun ale) [epads ay|

“1UN |e1RUOBU By aAoidwi
Apealb jim yoiym ‘aeak siyy Jaie| buniels pling-ai e aAey [jIm 9IS SpueieaH
pue|bu3 Jo UeaH pue wawysiqinjal e buiobiapun Apuauing si adoH pooo

‘Kauunol [eieuOBU ,Saljiwe] pue saigeq ay)
anoidwi Ajngadoy [im ,senijioe) e ay) Jo a1e1s, ay) pue YJoMIaN Syl uiyiim
salqeq |ealbins pue [eaipaw 01 sa2InIas Aljenb ybiy siayo wun 8yl "'0LOZ
Joquwerdes ul pauado [eudsoH s,uswopn weybuiwiig 1B IUN Mau By |

"sjueJjUl 9|gRIBUINA 9SBL) 01 sabeiuenpe
uanoid |esanas opinodd M SIY| 19BIUL US| SI PIOD [BIIjIqun Byl 1S|Iym
sioylow Jisyl apisbuoje pa1rIISNSal pue passSasse 9g 01 Salgeq |[emun
pue aimewsalid moje Im yoiym A3jjos1 uoneuasnsal uiogmau e paubisap
aAey wed) ay| ‘pieme snolbnsoaid e 129)|02 01 Auowsalsad ozud pue
uoNIgIYXa Spiemy Sainin4 |e2Ipajp [enuue 3yl papuane Apuadal oym yn
9} ssoJoe wolj sanbes|0d Jo wea) e pue ‘|eudsoH [eAoy aJIYSI9ISS2I0OAN
18 uepeIpaed weynsuo) ‘Jaybejes melpuy g 01 suonemeibuo)

‘so|dipund
|00 2y 1suiebe way)l passasse pue ‘Jun yoesa paliSIASl Wea | YI0OMIBN
ayl ‘(600Z) JoqWIBAON Ul USWINJI0OP 92I0PSB] 3yl JO ydune| ayl Jouy

"L10z A1eniga4 ui1sod ol swed pue pawiodde sem nodjiyd xay
"1 "1S0d WBYNSU0) awWin [N} B pue Jauonnoeld 9SINN |R1BUOSN padueApYy
JLA\ L Jayloue apnjoul 01 Jayung pasealoul sem 19bpng ayy Jesk siy| ‘eale
SpUBIPIN 1S9\ 9Ul Ul Siuejul Jo) aled yoam e shkep / ‘sinoy yg opinold
01 SaNUNUOd (SINWNAN) 92IAIBS Jdjsuel| [RIBUOSN SPUBIPIA 1SSAN dYL

‘syjualted ino ‘Apuenodwi 1sow pue siapinoid a21a1as Ajulaiew ‘I1aylo
yoeo yum sdiysisuped bBuniom poob Buibio) ‘1oyiobol ylom 01 anunuod
M AN eJed Buuinbal saigeq Jo sloquinu ay) ul @sealoul ayy audsop
Buininins ale saigeq alow smoys 1eyl eiep ayl yum nok apiaoid [jim uodal
siy1 pue anoidwi 01 senunuod NNINMS @41 ul a1el Aljeuow [eyeuuad ay |

"SJ2UOISSIWILWIOD Y1 01 uonewJojul Ajyauow aaIb 01
pue pieog 3lomiaN ay1 Joj 1odas Aanoe ue jo uonanpoid sy so|geus siy |
‘(1obpeg) waisks uono9||0d BIBP [RIBUOBU PBWIBASID dY) OlUl BIBP NWANS
0] 2NunNuod Je1s yompeN ‘uoday |enuuy AIAndYy [eleuosay e 2anpoud
0] 9| 248 DM B 1SJ1) BY] J0) pue e1ep ,SIeak 0M] SBY MOU YIOMIBN 3y |

"saljiWe) pue saiqeq Joj aied aaneljjed
anoidwi am ainsus 03 Jay1ebol paylom Ayl pue spue|pij\ @Y1 Ul SHIOMIBN
ulogmap Jnoj ayy yum uoneioge(jod ul sem 129foid siy| aied aaneljjed
Jo syoadse |le pasanod 1eyl sAep Buiuien pusne jeis /G mes 199foid
INyssa2ons ay | “Ajiwey 1vy) pue saip eyl Ageq e yum panjoAul jjeis ||e Jo)
Buluien pue uoneonpa Jo) pasn usaq sey Asuow Siy| 'S91BUOBY Jo) aie)d)
anneljjed buinosdw| oy Ksuow [euonen 8yl wouy YyeaH Jo wswuedsq
9yl Woll 000'0SL3F paindas Ajnjssedons oA\ “LL/OLOZ JOAO Soanssi
[2JOASS U0 PaYJOM BARY S\ "SPUB|PIA 1SOAA UISUINOS Byl UIyIM salqeq ay)
JoJ a1ed Buinoidwi piemo] 9AIS 0] PaNUNUOD Sey YI0MIBN U JO YoM ay |

“Jom 1ud|19ax3 Bulop pue sisod
JI9Y) Ul paysi|geIse mou ale oym ‘(uennaiq YJom1a)) uosuyor eineT pue
‘(1sidesay] abenbue pue yosads yiomiaN) [[Buled A1BYy SWwodOM 0S|e AN

"MIoMIBN a1 Jo uoddns panunuod Inok
0] pJemuoj 00| pue a1y nok yuey) ap) 2Jed aaneljed jo aouslRdxs oY)
uo sjuaied Bulkenins se jjom se ‘sAep ay) Jo 1sow uo uayods pue pleog
aleD anneljed ayl jo ued usag ‘susia uun ayy ul pajedionied ‘sbunssw
pieog popuane ‘syooloid |esonss pouoddns Apeese sey ays oawn
1Joys e JoJ sn yum uaaq Ajuo sey ays ybnouje pue Abisus buizewe ue sey
aney ‘aAneusasaldal waled 1somau Byl Sk nayoduelg d1BY SWOIOM DN

‘21B9 |RIRUOBU JO S1oadse ||e uo
sieak Auew Jano paniddal am poddns ay) Joj wiayl yueyy 01 8l pjnom apn
‘'sonnejuasaldal ualed se umop paddals osje Kessng or pue Aajieg IM2IA

"usy) d2uIs
wea) ay) yum Bunjiom usaq aney pue | L0z AINr Ul Jiey) ayl Se J9A0 Y001 |

"9210A B sey auokions ainsua pue sbunssw Jiey)
01 moy ul Kjjerdadsa ‘sn Jo ||e 01 uonedidsul ue sem 9 ‘Jleyd Se ainud)
siy 1noybnouy) Juswabeinoous pue poddns BuiNUNUOI SIY 10) puUB YIOMIBN
Ay} 0} UONNQIIUOD SIY 10j GO¥ Mueyl O} dYI| B pInom ap\  '0L0Z Kep
ur bunsaw pieog ayy 1. Jiey) se umop bBuipuels uooseg qoy buraq isiiy oyl
"L L/0L0Z noybnoayy ylomiaN ay1 uiyum sabueyd |elanas uaaqg aney alay |

'91ed ulogmau pue Aluis1ew YIm paAjoAUl
auokiana pue Jjeis [ealuld |enpiAlpul ‘suonesiueblo uBNMASUOD 1IN0 JO
Jleyaqg uo | L0Z-0L0Z Ul SjuswaAaIyde ay) aiensuowap o) swie yodal siy|
"PaAdIYIE U3 SBY 1B} [[B UO 199}§21 01 awi SI 3 ‘boday [enuuy (NNINMS)
3JOMIBN UJOgMBN SpuBIpIN 1SN UIBUINOS Yyl siy) aonpoid am sy

Page 8



(wuawnoop ajeledas) yoday ereq/AunAnoy ylomdN :| xipuaddy

ve
€€
4%
0¢€
8¢
9¢
ve
0¢
6L
Ll
9L
€l
6

I~ I~ o ©

— N N ™M < ©

abed

221JJO YomiaN ay) bunoeiuo)n

s)uswwo) buipnjouo)n

1eyomol4 skemyied aed

aie) aAnel|led |RIBUOSN SPUBIPIA 1S9

sjualed YIoMBN ay |

(SLNIAA) 9IAISS Jajsuel] |BIRUODN

Kiabing jereuosp

(Buijoo)) eiwsaypodAH onnadelay |
Aseepy <

wpny <«

SaUIIPPIND pue BJUBUISAOL) [e2IUIlD) <«

2210pJoAN pue Buluies| ‘uoneonpy <«

IOMIB BU1 IO} sue|d aJmn4 pue

dnoio uoneyuswaldwy Aboiens «

sdnoig gng yiomaN
1sidesay | abenbue pue yooads ylomppN <«
uennaiqg YompBN <«
1sidesayioishyd [eieuoa Kiojelsidsay pasuenpy <«
peaq aJje) |ewawdoprsq  «

S9|0Y YJoMIBN

uoday |eroueul

SIUBLIBABIYDY puR SBUO0ISAIN Aoy

uonanpoay|

SUE)ele)

juswabebu] Joapjoysyels pue uoneIIUNWWOYD)

pJomalo s,uositadiieyd

SjuUduU0)

asInN pea/iebeue|y YiomsN
wessed Aepy

luswabebus uayibuans pue maual 0] SUOYD INO JO Leay ay) 1e
syiomau asayl Ind 01 1wem | oS ‘skemied pajelbaul ssooe aled jo Aijenb
ay) anoidwi 01 Joyabol aWwod S10198S UBIBYIP WOJ) SUBIDIUID Siaym aed
a1 se Wwa1sAs mau aU) Ul SYJOMISU 10) 3]0J [eNUSD B SI aldy |, 'SHN @yl ul
piemio) Aem sy a1e SHIOMIBN 1ey parels (L1L0z [Mdy €1) UOS|OYDIN piAeq

‘BOJE 9PIM B UINS SSOJIB UONEIIUNWIWOD |NJSS9IINS DA3IYIR
0] 9|ge e am 1eyl YJOMIBN BY1 SSoloe siapjoyayels Jo juswabebus ay)
Kg Kjuo sI 11 pue ‘aaysie1sadio)) pue adiysplojaloH ‘weybuiwag Bulianod
- Kjeoiydeiboab ease apim e SIOA0D YIOMIBN ©Y] "YJOMIBN dY) SS0Joe
syun e wolj uonewasaidal poob YIM ‘oM HJIOM pue ‘UoNEIIUNWWOD
Joj wnioj e ase sbBunesw MlomidN snouea ay]  ‘ssadoid  Kem
-OM] B SI )l pue ‘siy) buinaiyose 01 |enuad SI UONBIIUNWIWOD POOL) 'Salgeq
aUl JOo SIsaJUl 1S8g Byl ul Jay1ebol }Jom am ainsus 0] SIOp|oydeIS
e Jo wwawsabebus syl og 01 senunuod MIomBN Byl Jo wie Byl

uswoabebu7 Jopjoyayels pue uonesiuNwwos

J218N[D [INYIos pue weybuiwuig Joj JuswdojeAasg WNosuo?) Jo 10193liq

NNIMS “lteyd
9y00.g yarned

‘1oddns panunuos
InoA pue uonngauod Inok 1oj nok ueyl ‘paAjoAUl SI oym duokions o

"WIoMIBN Byl uiyum saiqeq abeuew pue ‘a1ed |e20| dnoidwi
01 Joyiobor Bunjiom anunuod 01 pasu o) Asuow 1oy anjea si apinoid
9M 92IAIS BY} 3INSUS PUB JBUBWS YUY} 0} paau 9\ 'sh jo |je Bunoedw
SONSS| |eIdURUL BUl YIM 9UO0KISOAS 10 awil Ynouip e SI Siyl 1ey) asijeal |

‘Awouoo3 Yieay |e20] 8yl 01 921042 d|qeud
M yaiym ‘Jeak siyy Jaie| [jompues ul uado 01 anp si wun paj-AIjImpI
auoje-pueis e pue AID 1e pauado sem yun pal-AIBJIMPIN Pa1BI0I-0D W

Page 9



JUIBUINOS 3N D10 SyIomIsuuIogmMau Mmm,/-dny  *aiignd
a1 pue sjualed ‘sjeuoissajold 1oj SONIANDER ¥IOMIBU UO UONRWIOJUI
21ep 01 dn bBuipinoid 921n0Sal B|gen|eA B SI 91ISqOM YIOMIBN Y |

"SpJepueis 9210pse | ay) 198w 0] palinbai saainies Aijenb
1S9Q 9yl 9AI928) Salgeq alnsua pue popinoid SI 2Jed |RIRUODN
Kem oy 18 yoo| 01 Anunuoddo ue aney mou ap\ ‘6002 JOQIDAON
ur aien |ereuoan Auenp ybiH Jo4 w00 YyeaH Jo wswuedsq
ay) Jo yosuneq ayl o1 Joud 19s sjeob ayy buinaiyoe ‘paysiiqeisa
sem ) 9ouls ssalboid jueoyiubis spew sey pue aied |eleuosU
Jo} papinoid 921A18S Byl uo 1oedwi 01 sanunuod NNINMS 9yl

‘sioyeads palAul pue S92IAIDS
doueInque ‘pea YjeaH dlgnd e ‘uonejuasaidal Buluoissiwwod
‘uoneasaldoas elted sdnoiH-gng  WIOMIBN BYl JOo  Saeyd
‘s1snu] 9INdy ayl Jo yoea wod) 1abeuepy/esinN pue ueiul) pesl
e '‘9sInN pea/ebeuepy ylomiaN ‘ueioiul) pea yomen ayl jo dn
apew sI pue ylomaN ayl buipea) Joj a|qisuodsal SI pieog YIOMIBN
Yyl “Jaisn|D [Inyios pue weybuiwig o) uswdopAasg WNNIOSU0)D)
JO Joyauiq ‘ooolg youed Aq palieyd SI pieog YJoMmBN 9yl

uun |2216INg |eIRUOSN | ‘SHUM |RIBUOSN |RIIPSIA £
Uum sisni| [endsoH 81ndy 9

!

'S92IAIRS Aluiaie|y
‘ale) |ewswdojonaq pue buisiny ‘bulures |
pue uoneonp3 ‘UpNYy ‘92uBuUIdA0D) [eoIUl) ‘Hodsuel] Kbaiensg
:sdnoi9-gng yJomioN

|

pJeog YJomoN

a.nonns jeuonesiuebio

1endsoH funo g piojaisH )

leudsoH jefoy Jaa1yseise diom L1

Z—youppay [end sOH epuexaly

lendsoH s,uawo j\ weyburuuig L
jendsoy spuepiea S o,
lendsoH s,uauipjiyn weyb uiug eybuing jendson Ao

jeudsoH adoH pooo =

"S9IIAISS |R1RUOBU
01 sabueyd e ur Aes 1vY) d9ABY 01 anunuod syualed pue ‘WoUAQ
12016 JO ©Q 01 SONUNUOD YIOMIBN dYl Ul JUSWIAJOAUI Judted ay|

'51092 € [9A9] Jo dn Bulealy pue a1ed umop-dails apinoid 0y
Joy10b0) Burjiom aie YIoMBN Bl Ul SHUN By "YJOMIBN BY) UIyUM
S)IUM 2Je) SAISUBIU| [RIRUOSN OM) 8Y) Ul 91ed Kouednado ul asealoul
ue pue 1oedwi ueoyubis e pey aney ‘uoneubissp YIoMiBN oyl 0)
wowaalbe paubis yum ‘skemyied aied YI0MIBN 9y | ‘8Jed [edipaw
Bbuuinbai saiqeq |e Joj skemiyied mojj Jea|d aney o\ papiroid
sI 9aIA18s Aem ay) ul abueyd e sajensuowssp uodals Siyl uIyIM
92INIDS Jojsuel| |e1eUOSBN SPUBIPIA 1S9\ aUyl Ag papinoud elep ay|

"S9.Uad aJed 1sijedads pasiubooal ul Joy pased ale saigeq
1S9Y2IS pue 1S3jjlews ayl eyl pue ‘g|qissod se awoy 0] 9s0jd Se
10J paJed ale Saigeq pue SISYIowW 1ey) 2INSuUd 0] ¥IOM 0] SSNUNUOD
(NNAAS) YOMION UIOGMBN  SPUBIPIAl 1SOAN  UJLINOS  By|

NOILONAOALNI

Page 10



dnoi9 dNNY

[endsoH s,ualpjiyD weybuiwlig 1e dnouc) 1sa191u| [BIRUOSN e

siobeuey Nun |e1RUOSN @

:Klpenbas 190w sdnoub Buimojjoy ay ‘'sdnoiH-gng yIomiaN 8yl 01 uonippe uj

-2onoeld poob Buueys pue sdiysuonejas bupom Buiuayibuans “yJomiaN oy UIyIM SIUN UsdMIB] Uonediunwwod buons pjing 01 panunuo)
"'SpUNoy puelo) [e1eUOBN pue Alusaiey wior Buipnioul ‘pjay Spunoy puels) Jeinbay
"aWoJpukg umoq yum saigeq Joj Aemyied aied e aanpolid 0] weal Ajunwiwod yum burdopp
1sod ul uennaiq JIoMmBN

1sod urisidesay | abenbue pue yosads ylomaN

uoday [enuuy SS|Tg 10 ydune| 8y Joj Juswellied JO S9SNOH 3y} 01 PalAU|

‘Kep uoddns Ajiwej SS|19 spueipin 1S9AA 941 buiuuna pue buisiuebip

"'SSI19 yum K[9s0|o }Jom 01 anunuo)

‘skep Apms y1omou U0 yeads syuaied pue jjeis yJomaN

‘sioyeads Aoy pauaul buiaq jje1s yiomeN Auew yum ‘So9ouUaIajuod) [BUONBN pue [B20T
‘Kemyied HQAD Jo uononpoud pue 198l01d |e216INS Spuepi 1S9

aled annel|jed anoidwi 01 yyeaH Jo uswiedaq syl wolj papieme 00005 L3 - 109loid aied anneljed

A A A A A A A A A A A A A

YI0MISN BU1 Jo s10adse [|e ul JuUsWaA|oAUl Juaied aANdY
‘sigjsued) uoibad JO Jno ul uolonpaJ ayj pue josloid [eaibing [ejeuosnN Spueipip IS8 ey} Aq usyerspun
YJOM 8y} 104 ,S8Iqeq pue SIayjow Joj SaL02IN0 aAoidw 10 Sailjijenbaul yjjeay SSsaippe 0} S82IAISS Ul JuswaAoidwl paxew }Sow 10,
"LL0Z plemy soaines Aiuseiely — Aiuseiely uo dnoig Aieyuswelied Aued-||y ayi buluuipy, <
:papnjaul 8AeY | 10Z-0L0Z Ul YJ0MIBN 8U} J0j Seuoisajiw Aoy ay |

LLOZ — 0L0Z SINIININTIHOV ANV SANOLSITIN AIX

Page 11



"1oW udaq aAey wawnoop Abajens ayy ul s1obiey jeuibuo ayy Jjo Auolew ay |

"L L0z Atenuer ul pjay Aep Buluien ylomeNAUSAS YJoMIBN PenD yui4

'0L0Z Ke\ u1 Aep siepjoysyers yunoy ploH

"10B1UI Y] SI PJOI

[e21IgWIN By} 1S|IYM SJayiow Jiay) apisbuole pajelosnsal pue passasse ag 01 Ageq ay) smoje yaiym Aajjoy uonenodsnsal uiogmau e jo ubisap
1o} plemy saimn4 |eaipajy e Buiniedal uo (jeudsoH [eAoy J91S9210/\) 18 UeidIIRIpaRd JUR)NSU0)) Jaybejjes) maipuy 01 suonejneibuo)
‘Kpmis xQas|nd ay} uo ylom siy Joy (jeudsoH s,uswop) weybuiwg 1e 1s1bojoleuoa ueyNsuo)) Jam3 Apuy o1 suonejnelbuo)
'S9OUBIBJU0D

puB SJUBAD S,Jap|oyax RIS ‘skep Apnis 3JOMIBN-L] pue Syull YI0MIBN-SS010 Buluayibuans yum ‘sassasoid yJomiaN Ul SHUN |8 JO uoisnjou|
‘SPUBIPIA 1SN

ayy 1oy A1abuns 1oy skemiyed ai1ed aonpoud 01 sylomiaN buunoqybiau pue (YSSINAM) Aouaby saoinias 1siieoads spuepiin 1S9 Yum Buijiopn
‘pieog JVNN Jo Joquiapy Jabeuepy yJomiaN

‘sJopinoad 921A19s oeipaed Aiunwiwod yum juswabebusd [njssaaans ay |

‘s|elsajal |eaibins Joy Jaquinu auoydalal auQ

‘Koning jualed jeuonep ui paledidnied suun ylomoN

“1s0d peaT Buijoo) yomeN yum ‘[endsoy spuepuesH 1e anua)) Buljoo) YJoOMISN JO JUSWYSIGRISS [NJSS92INS

A A A A A A

Page 12



¥58'692'¢3 |e10] puets)

LES'SOL3 |e1ol LLE'VIL'Z3 jerol
3210AUI UO pled 0zZv'1L23 1sidesay abenbue g yoosads ylomioN
9910AUI UO pred 8¥6'023 uennaIq JomaN
a21oAuUl Uo pied SOv'0S3 1sidesayioishyd Aiojeaidsay ylomoN
@210AUl UO pled ZLy'sz3 pea [ealul|) 3IomieN

HMEG Aq pa1soH-1oenuo0d uiyum pred 00023 asInN Hodsues | yJomaN

HMg Kq pa1SoH-19e.0U0D UILIM pled 000'7123 SANNYV Hodsuel] iomaN

HMEG Aq pa1soH-19enu02 uiyum pred 000'8LL3 Sweynsuo) asinN Hodsuel| YJomaN

HMEG Aq po1soH-1oenuo0d uiyum pred 000'0££3 Sjue)Nsuo) yodsuel | YJoMmaN

19e.U02 UIyIM pied L65'863 S8sINN 9 pueg € HMG

1080000 UIYIM pled 0S.'68L3 S8SINN G/°G MS

9210AUI UO pred 0SL'vL3 losiape buipaafisealg g/\S

9210AUI UO pred 000'S.3 S9SINN G pueg g pJojosoH

10B1U0D UM pled 000'S0L3 weynsuo) jendsoH Aup

19B.2JU02 UM pred 0SL'€LEF S8SINN §'LL JOH

10B21U0D UIYIM pied 000'5123 Zxueynsuo) J0H

10B21U0D UIYIM pred 000'083 SANNV ¢ JOH

1€S'SOL3 wowdojanap Aiabins |eleuoau HOg 9210AUI UO pred G0£'2223 2INPNAISRIU| YI0OMIBN
91ep 01 Buipuny JualiNd9y-uop 9lep 01 paniwwod Buipun JualINday
00S'0LY'23 jerol

03 Buipuny wsnoal L1/0L0Z

000°LLS3 Buipuny w81 01/6002

00S'6LE3 Buipuny ua.Nd81 60/8002

000°0¢V3 Buipuny waunda1 80/£002

000'060°L3 Buipuny JusN2a1 SnoInaId

Buipuny pajesojje L1/0L0Z @Y} UO SJUBWIWIWOD S,)I0MIB\ UIOGM3\ SPUB|PI 1S@/\\ UIBYINOS

"S99) 9oUaI8JU0d pue Buluies) uonesnpa snid ‘pes

1PNy pue peaT uonesnp3 ‘J01BASIUILPY YJOMIBN PuB J101eINpT 92Ndeld ‘pea ale) uawdoeAs( ‘UueIoInL@ISqO peaT ‘speaT [ealul)) ‘esinN pea/iebeuey
}JOMIS 10) SSLIBIRS SPUN) UONRIOJ. SIY | "2JNIdNASeIUI YI0OMIBN BU) JO 1S0Y 1snu| aied) Alewild [[NYIOS BIA YI0MISN 8U) 0] P1RIO||e SBM §L0'6LZ3
Z1/11L0Z Ul "S3JoMIBN uiogmaN ay) Joj Buipuny [e1euoau paiesoje Ajjeuoibal ayy spioy (1DSINAM) wesa | Buiuoissiwwo) 1sijedads spue|piiy 1S9\ Y.L

¢L/110¢Z 140d3d TVIONVNIH

Page 13



‘uonedionue yum siy 01 pJemioy
00| | pue uswdojaasp 1oy adoas yanw |ns si atay | ‘siesk pi1sed ay) Jono
Kpueaiubis pabueys sey suun ayy ul 9anoseud 1ey) pabeinoous Ajgbny usaq

3ABY PUB S)IUN JUBIBYIP 8} U0 pawodjam K1aa |98} 1sod siyy Kolua Aybnotoy |
"2onoeid JUB1IND BAISSJO pue S)HuUN

|e1RUOBU B ISIA 01 UBdY Udaq aney sisidessyioisAyd Aiojeaidsal Apuanbasuo)
‘Anunod ay) ssouoe suonelAul bupjeads Jo Jaquinu e ul pa)nsal sey Siy) pue
‘9]0 YJ0MIB\ dnbiun SIy) Jo 1eWIOJ B Ul 1SB191UI 9|qRISPISU0D Uda] Sey aJay |
‘pIau siyy ul buisieioads sisidesayioisAyd 1oj ylomawedy

Kouaredwon e dojansp 01 paalbe sem 1 wia) Jabuoj ayy uj *‘AdessypoisAyd
Kioreaidsal 1o suonepuswiwiodal [euoneu bulonpoud jo wie ay) yum aonoead
paseq 92UapIAS JUDLIND 3IedW0d puB M3IASI 0] [R)IA PIBPISUOD SBM 1l ‘| LOZ
Kep\ ui sisijerdads AdessyioisAyd Kiojedidsal jo Bunssw syl Jo JNsal e Sy '
210z ul pauued ate sAep dn mojjo}

'SS922NS S JO )NSal B Sy | L0Z dunf ul [eudsoH s,uswop) weybuiwig 1e
pa1Soy Sem Yaiym asino?) [ereuosa Adesayioishyd jeuonep ayy uo buiyosesn| ' |
'S9ANENIUI [BUONRU JO JSQUINU B Ul JUSWSAJOAUI 0} P3| SBY

siy| ‘dnous) AdesayioisAyd |e1euos)y [eUonBN a4} JO JSqUISL 99NIWWOD B We |

‘palojdxa aq |im sa1epdn yers bulobuo Jo siewlo) s8y1o Jeak 1xau ayy buung
'S3IPNIS 9SBI/01IRUIS pue ‘sy|e) |ewloy ybnoiyl senunuod uoneanpa jjeis
*Jeak ay1 Jo pud syl Aq 1o paliied a4 [jIm

saulepInb ayy 1suiebe syun ereuosu ay) ul senbiuyosel AdessyroisAyd Jo asn
Jo upne ue pue ‘1eak siy) pamainal aq [Im saulepinb AdesswyoisAud 1seyd ay |

1sidesaypoisAyd
|eleuOd|
Kiojendsay pasuenpy
saymeH 01N

uswabeuew AdessyroisAyd

Kiojeaidsal buiobuo buipiebal 92IApE
se ||lom se ‘yers buisinu ayl yum saigeq bBunean
pue buissesse papnjoul aaney asayl :buiobuo
U932 9ABY S)SIA JIUN [BIRUOSN "SYIUOLW g 1X3aU ay)
UIyIM PasIASp Bq M Saigeq asay) Joj Kemuyied
a1ea AdesoyroisAyd vy 'spiem ayy pue NIid
uo saigeq |ealbins ay) Jo wswabeuew syl uo
1e1s AdessyroisAyd 1oj a1ey) uoneanpa panunuod
oo pue ‘jeudsoH s,ualpiyd  weybuiwang
1o weal AdessyoisAyd anoe ayy 01 bBuojeq |
"sealJe JO Jaquinu B ul SJUSLWISABIYJR Udas sey

pue ‘buneanow pue bBuipiemas Kpwoenxs aq 01
panunuod sey oajos AdessyroisAyd Kiojeaidsal ay |

‘Kijeuoneu pue Kjjeao| yioqg ai1ed areudoidde
Kjjieuawdojanap Jo ajyoud sy asies 03 anunuoD -
‘saonoeld aie)
annloddns Ajjeuswdojanaq Jo sgQAQ Joyuny «
“YomaN ay)
SS0.2B UONRIOQR||02 Ul }JOM 0] J0JeuIpo-0D) aie)
panuad Ajiwe e uil ssiig Ag JUBWISaAUI 9]qISSO «
-:9anny ay |
sale) pue ‘Adessyroishyd
Kiojeadsay ‘a1e) oolebuey Jo ‘Buiyosea o) sQAQ -
quawdojena( s,Aqeg inoA Bunioddng,
sjuaJled Joj S19]jea] UONBWIOJU| JO SBIISS VY »
‘21epdn Jofew e Jo sabels
[_ul} Y1 Ul SI dUIBPING ale) [ewawdoeaaq «
‘parepdn aulepIng aie) oolebuey| «
‘aulldPpINg uonany ayl jo ued buipaa 4 amog .
"3UI[BPING) JUBWIRAI| PUB UBWSSISSY Uled »
-1 Jo uonajdwo)
‘ssiig ybnouyy sjqejieAe aq [Im YaIym ‘Jels [eslpaw
Joiun( 1oy uonejuasaid 1WI04I9M0Od B Jo uononpoid
‘PIal. JaLLIN pue }JoMmBN 8y}

peaT aie)
[ewwawdojenag
uosdwoy | aney|

uIyIM Uy1og ‘suoissas buiyoses) pue suonejuasaid
oAb 01 panunuod aAey | Jeak 1se| ay) uj
-ISJUSWIAASIYDY

"lUN Yyoes uo syul| aie) [guswdopasq ayl

Kjlenadsa ‘sanbes|jo0a Aw Jo woddns Buinunuod syl noyum ajqissod aq
pINOM SIY) JO SUON "SaljiLe) Iyl pue saiqeq yioq o) oyl buinoidwi ‘syun
[e1RUOSU YJOMIBN BUl ||B Ul apew ag 01 senunuod ssalboid ‘1onamoH
uawdojansp

uo s19))o annebau bBuiney pue dog|s ,saiqeq bBuigimsip ‘ybiy ool usyo
[INS @Je S|9Ad| asiou Jejnanded ul - abueys 01 ynaiip urewal sbuiy sawos
‘soleuoau ajibey) Joj a1es 01 Kem ajgissod 1saq

a1 se paidedoe ‘ued 1sow ayy ul ‘mou ale ‘sainpadold [njuied Bulwiopad
usym pue bBuipsaj Joj ylog sand uejul buiniesqo pue quawow 3jgissod
1s91jiea ayl woJ) aien oosebuey Buibeinoous ‘sjpad] 1Bl d9AISS9IXD
woy) bunoooid “uswdopnsp |eimsod pue uojwod 1oy Buluonisod
‘uondaoxa

dU) uey) JBYiel wliou ay) mou S| aied |eleuoau 01 yoeoidde aanioddns
Kjlewuswdojonap e NNINAS @Y1 ssoloe 1ey) aas 01 buisesid Ao si

saljlwe} JI9Y) pue saiqeq 9say) 10} ated a1sijoy buipinoad ui saylo yoes uoddns pue “quawajdwos ‘dejsano sajou
JUBJ3JJIP N0 Moy 33s 01 Bunioxa si U pue umoub sey wea) [rUOISSDJ01d YlBaH PaljVY J1omiaN 9yl Jeak 1sed ayy Bulng

?anoei1d anoadwj 01 1o0y1abo | Bunjiop) — S9j0y pea i1sije1dads

Page 14



Juawdojanap 10j seale

panuNUOd auIWId1BP 01 SHun bunisia pue bupiomiau anunuo) e
"WIOMIBN BUl UIyIM asn

1o} wwawdojanap buipas) 01 bunejos sdoysyiom uoneonpa dojpraq e
"'sojeuoau yum bunpiom sisidessy | abenbueq

pue ysoads |e20| Joj dnoub uoisiniadns [ealuld |eooj e dn19S e
uejul widald ayy ur sannaIIp

pue juawdojanap Buipas) uo Spue(lIESH pPUB PI0JOISH Ul 8IN1037 e
"swia1sAs uonenuan uo

sjuejul buipaa) Joj aunepinb e dojonsp 01 dnoib bujiom e dn1og e
‘Buipaa) |10 O

agn) woJj uonisues) ayy uauoys o1 yoeoidde ano buiposy e 10bie] e

-:admny ay) Joj sueid A

1oddns Adesay) abenbue| pue yssads papunj ou
9ARY OYM YIOMISN Ulyum suun Joj Kemyped |eussjol e buidojonaqg e
"spaau bBuluiel) ulelsISe 0] SHUN [je ul JJers yum bunjiomian
“yJomidN ay1 uiyum bumndui sisidesayy
abenbue| pue yossads |eao] yum skemyied aied jo uawdojprag
Buipaaj amog pue 1seaiq uo saulepinb yiomeN dojersp 01 padjoH
L L0Z Atenuga4 ul NOg 18 Aemyied |e1RUOBU UO PaINIDDT

010z Joqwaidag ul Aep Apnis JOMISN By} UO S2IN1D3| POPINOI] o
-:aARY | 91Bp O

‘uonejndod a1euosu ay) ul sannaIYIp buipaa) pue Juswdojonap buipas)
puno.Je juswabeuew Joj SUONEPUSWILLOIDI pUB JUSWSSISSE 1SI|e1oads
‘Buiuien ‘uoneanpa buipinoid ‘wes) yJomsN ay) 01 uonippe bunioxa

ue si 9jos 1sidesay | abenbue pue yssads ay| '0LOZ 1snbny a2uls
1sidesoy | abenbue pue yoosadg yiomoN oyl se 1sod ul usaqg aney |

[louied Aieyl
1sidesoy | abenbue pue yossadsg ylomiaN

")JOMIBU BY) UIYIM 3SN 10}
uoninu wisald pue sueyd 9NUad ‘Yimolb uo sdoysyiom aonpoid e
Juawdojanap Joj
SeaJe panunuUod auIWISIdP 0] SIun Bunisia pue bujiomdu anunuo) e
"951n09 Jje1s buisinu spuejesy Joj sjeuslew buiyoea) 9onpold e
"SUeYD 9|nudd
pue ymolb uo Aep Apnis YI0MIBN B 1e 180190 Ul PIOJOIOH Ul 9In)odT e
JendsoyH
s,ualp|iy) weybuiwag 1e 18qo1oQ ul Aep Apnis [ealbins uo 8injoa] e
‘uwnne
siy) swyobje [eaibins pue aulepinb buipas) [eiolus youne| e
-:a1mny ay1 Joy sueid A

150d ylomioN Buiuipno Aep Apnis [eaibins 1@ painioo] e

"spaau bBuluiel) ay) uieBISE 0] SHUN || Ul Jje1s yum bBunpiomioN e
"S)UN ||e 0] dJIApe

auoydsjol pue ylomaN oyl uiyum syuaned [eaibins uo pasIApy e
‘lendsoH s,uswop\ weybuiwang 12 skemyied xnjjo.

|[eabeydoaso-onsen) pue sauljapinb uoneiedaid posy peonpold e
‘(1lendsoH s,uaJp|iyd
weybuiwug 1e uennaiqg Abojossiusonsen) uosuyor Aaoel |

yum swiyuobie buipasy [ea1bins jo JuswdojoAsp aU) Ul POAJOAUI UDDY e

‘aulepInb Bulpos) |eid1UD YIOMIDN JBIP Sl USNLIAN

-:aAey | @1ep 0]

Page 15

“}JoMm1BN 2yl uiyum wea) Aeundidsipininw ay) Jo siaquisw |je 01 buiuren

pue uonesNpPa 0S|e pue dIIAPE J1213IP |eleUOaU 1SIjeldads apinold 0y ale
150d Aw Jo S8j0J ulew om] 3y | ‘S,uennaiq |ed0] pue siabeuel asiny ‘spea
[eaiulD ayy Jie bunasw syuow 9 buibuajieys pue Asnq Ajpwanxa ue usaaq
sey ) ‘LL0oz Aenuer 9ouls uennaiq }JomeN 8yl se 1sod ul usaq aaey |

uoSuUyo( eine’
uennaiq |eleuosy



abeyoed buiuies| a1ed aaneljed e jo Juswdojorsp ayl pue ‘Yoegpas) pue aduepuane poob Atan yum ‘skep Apnis
|[euoibay 01 pa| sey pue “quessed Aiey Aq yyeoaH Jo wawiuedag ayl 01 pig |NJSS829NS B Jo JNSsal B Se paindas saluow Ag papun) sem 109foid siy|
109l04d a1e) anneljjed aylL

:papn|oul aABY SIUSWAAIIYDER 3|qeiou JBYl10Q

'sa|dioulld ayy uswaldwi 01 9|qissod se yonw se syun uoddns 03 anunuod |im dnoub Juswabeuew NNINMS
dy "s1sni] uiyum suswdojonap aalp 01 seniunuoddo se pamaln usaq pue palodal [|om Apsow usaq aaey sjesieidde ay) papusiul se pue ‘sajdiould
ay) 1suiebe pasieidde usaqg sey uun yoe3 ‘buonpal sI syun Jaquisw UdaMIaq dIUBLIBA 9] pue ‘18w buleq ale sajdiduly Ajbuisealou| “uswdojonap
9JIAIDS 10J MIomawel) B se Ssa2IARS [eleuoaN Aujenp ybiH Joj wjjoo] 8yl buisn ale suun je ey waltedde sem 1 ‘susia jesieidde ino bBuung

‘uaddey siy) apew aaey yaiym saaneniul pue sbunssw Jo Jaquinu
e yum Buuanasiad 1oj ‘(921A19S |eABIIISY DLIRIPIRY SPUBIPIAl 1ISOAA ‘©SINN peaT) UOS|IAN lUd Pue (SHJINA o) weynsuod pea) Kiawobuopy Kiepy
pue ‘(dnoib ayy pasieys oym uoabins oueipaed) Joayemer ysuio oy syuey [eioads anib app jendsoy s,ualpiyd weybuiwaig 1e sjenpiaipul Jo saquinu
e Kq aAa1yoe 0] 10} pue awn Jo |eap 1ealb e uayel sey NDId Se [|oM se plem |ea1bins |eleuoau ay) 1o) '9'1 Sjeasasad |ealbins |je 1o Jaquinu auQ

"SO1IS ||e ssoJoe Bupiom wea) poob uo yuspuadap Ajjeanud
SI 24NNy BY) Ul puB MOU SS829NS 3yl INg ‘asin |ealbing yoeannQ ayl se epay anapeusag ‘69 ,jona] punolb, 1e 109foid siyy jo uoneswaidwi
3Y1 0] SJoNQLIUOD [enpiAlpul weayiubls usaq aAeY 9J9Y] SISUOISSILLWOD INo yum siapinoid podsuesy pue uiogmau ‘A1abuns Jayebol 1ybnouq
yoiym 1998foid siyy jo ynsai e se ‘Kisbins [ejeuoau Joj siajsuen uoibal jo 1no a1eudoiddeur ul uononpal [ENURISONS B US3Q SBY 919y "SJoUOISSILIWOD
ayl yum pue ‘jendsoH s,uaipiiyp) weybuiwag Ajeoadse syun Jaquiswi USBMISQ UONRIOgR||0d BANd8Ye ue jo ajdwexs ssyoue si 129foid
K1obuns |e1euosu ay) ulyum Jayiebol paaaiyoe aaey am 1eym Joj ‘L L0z splemy sadinies Aluseiey uo dnoig Aieyuswelied Aued-||y @y Buluuipn

"WJOMIBN |B1ReULIRd SPURIPIA 1S9\ @Yl Aq pardope uaaq sey 1ey) uoneuidse
ue si siyl pue awn ybu ay) 1@ 9oeid b1 ay1 ul Ageq b ayy bumeb aie am KBuiseaou] saljiwe) J19Y) pue Saigeq d|geJIdUINA 10} 919 paleuIpJo-09
aJow Buipinoud ul sso29ns Ino jo wed Jueuodwn ue usag sey Syun usamiag ylwlem pue skemyled aied jo Buipueisiopun ‘uonesunwwod pasosdul
1eY) 9SUBS B SI 8J9Y| 'SIUNOD UONNQIIUOD S,8uokion] ‘Buniom-wes) 1ealb Jo ynsal ayl si shkemyled aied IOMIBN UIYIM PIJSAIIBP Salqeq alow
Buiney pue ‘Aijenow Ul UoNdNpal ‘siajsuel) YJOMIBN Jo INo pue uoibal Jo 1o ul uondnpal ‘AIANoe paseasdul ay| S8ssa29Ns Julof JNo 0] uonNNgLIUOD
Joy) ul apud saye) ‘sopelb pue sauldidsip fje jo ‘nun A1aas Jo saquisw ajbuis A1ans adoy | "SpuepIA 1SOAA YINOS 8] SSOIJR SIS JUSIBJIP UO ‘Spud
awes ay) spJemo) Bunjiom ‘wes) e Jo 210w 1. am 91| S|y} 1| “Jay1abol [om paxiom aaey suun saquiaw NNINMS 2Ul ‘Ajinjaies a1ow UsAS S82IN0Sal
a|gen|eA Jno asn 0] AlIssadau ay) Aq uaAup usaqg aaey am asnedaq sdeysad 1o ‘ssajayuanap “1eak ybnoy e uaaq Apaignopun sey 1| "sn Jo auo AI1ans
pue yoea uo JusawuolIAuS Bunjiom Joues| e pasodwi aAey sainsesw AlILI1SNe SHN pPuUe ‘S82IAISS Jno ||e uo pajoedwi sey iweuns) [eidueul) jeqolb ay |

NNIMS ‘PeaT [edlulD ‘|dssny plojpag uoslly

)1OM}3N 3y} J0j sue|d ainin4 pue dnouc) uonejuawajdw] Abajens

Page 16



ol

‘Qunwiwod ay) 01 syun

[ereuoau wolj ‘Aijigesipoinau jo sadA e yum saigeq Jo a4ed Joj uonisuel) ssajweas e 1o) skemiyied aied Jo juswdojonap ay) Joj uonepunoy e wioj |jIm
SIY1 1ey) papuaiul si ] uawdojanap Jo abels pasueape ue ul S| dWOIPUAS umoq Yum saigeq Joj Aemyied aled }IomiaN e pue ‘sanbeajjod ouneipaed
Aunwwod 1no yum sbunsaw Jo Joquinu e usaq aAeY a1ayl )nsal e sy ‘Ayoied sem ‘awolpuks umoq pasoubelp Aimau yum saiqeq jo Ajjeanyioads
pue ‘swajgoid |eaibojoinau Yum saigeq Joj aied 1ey) pabpajmouoe osje sem 1| “A|jeao| sueidlneipaed AlunwioD) YliM SUOISSNISIP JO JUSWSIUBWLWOD
ay) 01 po| siy] “Aieudoisdde erep indur jim oym pue ‘dn-mojjo) Jeak-z oyl 10} USIpP|IYd SSOSSE |IM OYM UO UOISSNISIP YdNw ud9q Sey a1y
syui Aiunwwo) jo uswdojanag

:spJepuels 9soy) puokaq aonoead Inq 19s uaaq aney ey} SpJepuels ayl anaiyoe
0} 1snl jou aALns 3 ool ayl uiyum (pardwi ate ybnoyl) uondxs jou ase yoiym saibajens bHuidojonap uasaq osje sey yJomiaN ayl

‘'skemyied aied yiomiaN uiyum Aj@ieudoidde oy pased ate Auew moy pue ‘(saljiwe) pue saigeq ‘siaylow 1oj poob jou pue |je sn 0] A1s0d
K1an) uoibal jo 1no Auew moy “yuomiaN Jo 1no buiob ale siaylow Auew moy jo eapi ajgelal e aney 01 uibaq am 0s elep siyl bunejjod usaq sey xay

"SJ9jsuel] 0J9IN-X8 pue 0JaIN-ul Y1og Inoge usAlb

Buieq uonew.ojul 91LINIJL UO S3I[2J PUR ‘SNIUN [RIRUOSBU SB [|9M Sk Sa1ns A1aAep 01 siseq Ajiep 921m) e uo punoJte sauoyd ays 'SIdjSuel) 0J9IN-X
pue 0J21N-ul INoge uonewojul bunods||o0d usaq sey pue ‘s|ge|ieAe aJe S100 aiaym Jo nok wiojul 01 ‘(Kepli4 01 Aepuoly ‘G-6) a|gejieAe uaaq sey yupnr
"Pa199]]02 8g UBD BIEP Yons moy jo 1ojid NdYg B 10) eiep Bunoajjod usag aaey J01ed07 10D 1B S3GI04 Yupnr pue (pes) [eaiuld S1N) hodjiyd xoy
‘S1opIn0id 92IAISS |B1IRUOBU BY) 01 UMOUNUN ‘S)uN Alluid1ew U9aMIa] ‘Jaylow e Jo Jajsues) uoibal Jo 1no ul )nsal Aew siy| ‘wa1sks

1oU’|eIRUOBU BU) UO aJe sidjsuel) 01ain-xa [ejeulsod 1eyy Aem ay) ul pajuswinoop Ajjeanewsisks pue Ajaunnos Jou ale siajsuel) [ejeusiue ‘uonippe uj

‘aled Jo [9A3] Jaybiy e saiinbai oym juejul

Jayioue 91epowwodde 0] JUN ,BWOY, S,JaYloW 3y} JO INO SI JBJSUB) ‘SIUN JUdJaYIp Ul paledo| buieq syuiq JapJo Jaybiy Jo suim) ul synsal Jajsuen) ‘uun
1y 1B paJJeIS pue uedeAa si 109 ajeldoidde ue uaym juejul ay) Joj aied Jo [9A3] paldinbal ay) apinoid 01 91ge nun uoibai-uiyum 1saieau ay) 1sed sjoaen
Ageq :(eendoidde Ajeoiydesboab ssajun) Aemyied xiomiaN |BwWIOU BUY) BPISINO ((S100 pajeis Jo yoe| ‘6'a) suoseal |eajuld-uou oy uoibal ayl apisino
‘alinbal 01 padadxa si Ageq ueyy aled Jo [9A3] Jomo| e buipinoid 1un e 1e suiewas Ageq ayl 1yl yans Jajsuen pajie) ‘6 a ,oendoidde, oq skemje 1ou
Kew siojsuen ay] -alinbai Aayy aled Jo |ana) a1endoidde ayy ssedoe Aew saiqeq pue sioyjow jueubalid 1ey) os sisjsueld) |eieuisod pue |eleualue 1oj
poau e sI 2oyl 1ey) pasiubooal si )1 ‘suun 1sienads ul pa1enuaduo0d S uoisinoid a1ed aaisudul Agasaym SHIOMIBN ulogmap Jo Juswdojpnsap ayl 22uIS
aAneniul Ndvg e - 10jid slajsuel] [eleultad ajqeidasoeun

"a|genjeAul si elep ,|edo,
SIY1 ‘JOVIND wouy 1ano axel |IIm Apog yaiym buipiebal suoissnasip Jo sawooino bunieme ajypy ‘bunsaw | Loz au1 1soy 01 paalbe Ajpuiy aney pue
‘0102 12q0o100 ul sbunasyy Aljelop [eleulIad [enuuy Jno Jo 1sii) ay) paisoy [eudsoy AD ‘sjuswaaaiyoe siy uo payejmelbuod aq o) si pue ‘suodal
Aueuow jereunsad sayiabol bumnd pue pieoqyseq NNINMS @41 buipnjoul ‘wa1sAs siy) Jo uawdojoAap pue asn ay) SALP 0] PaNUNUOD Sey yeisey Ysia

‘|IRJap 0] UONUBNE PUB SHOYS JIdy)
uo paleimesbuod aq 0} sI elep ,Jebpeg, si1o1us oym uostad K1ang ‘pa109)j0o eiep Jo Ajenb ayy ur syjuswanosdwi Wwedyubls ur paynsas aAey YJOMISN
3] SSOJ2e S|enpiAlpul Jo Jaquinu e A apew suoye ay | "eiep ayl wolj suodas [enuue Jo uonessusb ay) pue ‘Iun Joquisw Yyoes ulylim uolldajjod eleq

"SPUBIPIAl 1SS\ @41 Ul SHun [je Joj sexog Alowaj) papun) os|e sey pig 9y | 'pPa1eanpa 9q Se ||oM Se San|eA
pue uonewuojul abueyosxa 01 Aunod ay) ssoloe wolj syuaied pue siosiape snoibijal ‘sieyiom aseayyeay Joyiabol ybnoig sAep ayy ‘Apuenodw alop

Page 17



Ll

‘K1ajes pue Aijenb |eoiuld aaup pue aansadsiad jeuoibal e uieluleW 0] WINJOJ B SB 108 0] NUNUOD [|IM YIOMIBN SU)
K@rewnn -oa1n19s Buluoissiwwod 1sije1dads [ereuos bunsixa ayl 01 yull pue suswabuelle asay Jo abieyd aye) eniosuod BuluoISsIWWod 4o ay) se
awn yons nun Aljigers a21AI8s ulejuiew o) abpug e se 19e [Im yJomiaN oyl Ajjeniuj "papnjaul g 01 sanuoud [eaol Joy Aijiqixa)) Buimolie 1sjiym ‘saigeq
pue Jayiow Yyloq Joj Sawoano asiaApe pue sanijenbaul Buionpal punole sanuoud [euolbal Jo JUNOJJR d9)e) OS|e ||IM 1] 'S|qe|leAR dI9UM 'SpIepuels
pue asuepinb jeuoneu Buisinn paseq aduspiAs o ||IM uoneaydads ay| -ebeuew pue Jojuow aduewlouad 0] SISUOISSILULIOD J0) PUB JSAIIRP O}
sJapinoud 1oy spiepueis 8102 apinoid [jim uonedidads ay| spueplA 1S9AA U1 uiyum suonejndod jje 01 849 Jo [9A3] [ewiulw e BuldAlep ale siapinoid
[le 1.yl 2INSud 0} J9PIO Ul S2IIAI9S Alusaiew Jo Buluoissiwwod ay) Joj uoneoyidads 221A19s apim uolbal e jo wuawdojonap ay) pea| [jIM YI0MIBN dY |

-9ouanadxa Jasn aanisod Joj Buiwie pue suaied buibebuas 1sjiym uoibal ayy Inoybnouyy papiroid aie sadinles Alijenb
'9AI109)J0 '9Jes 1ey) BulNsua uo SNJ0j |IM 1] "24ed ulogmau pue Ajussiew Jo uondalip aibarens ainmny ay) Jo Juswdojandp ayy isisse [[IM NNd M UL

"SYJoMIBN |eaiuld pabeuew uiyum bujiom jo asueuodwi ay) sasiseydwa pue 90Dy 9y Aq L Loz Ainr ul paysiignd sem ,a1e) s,uswoppy Aijenp ybiy,
'S9IIAIBS ulogmau pue Anusarew jo A1aaldp ayy aAup pue adeys eyl ajge|ieAR 92UBPIAS pue spiepueis ‘saulepinb ‘saioijod snolawnu ale alay |

-Ased a1 Jo Buiyy, e ag |m siy| ‘ssaiboid panwi sey yoiym siapinoid aoinles Aularew
pue uJogMau US9M)}9J UOIDBUUO0ISIP |BILI0ISIY B U9aq Sey alay] ‘uoibal ay) ssosoe sawodno pue Alanoe ‘aondeid ‘uoisinoid 92IA18S Ul SUOHBLIRA
pue saniienbaul ulewsals assy) ‘siy) audsaq 'saiep) pue puebug ul saes Aljeuow uejul pue [ereunad 1saybiy ayl Jo auo yum Anunod ayy ul suolbaul
paALidap 1sow ay) Jo auo SI SpuepI 1S9\ 9y "Sewo2no |eieulsad pue jeussiew Jood Apuaisisuod pue uonejndod ay Jo Aujigesauina pue Aixajdwod
pasealoul ‘sjaAd] AlAnoe pasealdul Jo swiay ul ‘sabuajieyd oiioads awos ae) Spue|pIjA 1S9\ @Y1 Ul S2IAIS ulogmau pue Ajusaiely Aem Jopun
[lom mou SI NNd INAW Jo uawdojaaap ay| "YIoMIBN |eleullad |euolbal e jo uoneald ayl sem pabiaswa 1eyy Aoud jeuoibas doy ayy ‘6002 1290100 U]

‘abus|ieyd aimny | S3IHO|g Ino SI SIy L
(NNd INAN) YI0MIBN |RIRULIdd SPURIPI 1S9\ 3U) Jo wuawdojanaq ayl 110z 4o} ABajens ,mau, ulew inQ

‘uonejndod ajgeiauINA 1SOW By Ul SB1R1 UoNRUIDIRA ©)g ulogmau aroidwi 01 Jayiaboy buiom jo skem dojanap 01 ‘| Dd bBuiyoea | weybuiwag
JO UBBH 'UYleaH 2l|gnd Ul JUBYNSUO) ‘@SMOY MaIpPUy JJ YIM suoissnasip pauado aney am ‘Buisealoul usaq aAey SUONRINOU g SB 9SIMaYIT
uoneuidsoen 99g jo uoddng

"SUONN|OS |eap!l 8y} uo Buijiom |Ins ale dp\ 9al) d1e YdIiym ‘suiweliA uels Ayyeay
yum 2apiqy a22ejdal 01 ‘s19)je9) Jo Aiddns pue uoneonpa Joj ubiedwed 01 spea| Alaympiw yum abebus 01 dnois buluoissiwwo) weybuiwig ued ‘HASG
12 s Joy ubledwed ssaualeme joog pay Ul  UIWEBIA INOCe UOHBWIOJUI dpN[oul ‘BaJe SIY) ul SSAIMpI Alunwwo) jo ajos buisealour ‘soluld jeieu
-9]ue 1e sulwenA [eusdiew buinssi ‘abieyosip uo sbeg Ajunog ui s19jjea| uoneWIOUl pUB ( UIWEBIA :PapNoul pue passnosip al1am Salgeq pue siaylow
alow yoeas 01 djay pinod siepinoid 921A18S ulogmau moy uo suonsabbns ‘(weybuiwng yinog SHN ‘1sie1dadg asinN yyeaH oliqnd) pPpIY eue
pue (luawuedaq onaweIg pue uonanN Anunwwo) weybuiwiig ‘pea uoninN UyeaH alignd) 8999\ Jouea|3 Ag papuane bunasyy Abaiens e 1y

"9]qeJaulNA 1SoW 3] JO %GZ-0L usamiaq buiyoeal

Kuo ns si1 @yeidn ay] uonduossaid noyum pue swodul jo aAndadsau ‘weybulwldig ul Saigeq pue swnw e 01 sulwelA uels AyyesH oapinoid
01 paaJbe Apuaosal aney | Dd weybulwlig jo ueay ‘1ood usaqg sey suawajddns uiwela Jo ayeidn sy ‘sdnosb Auoiuyie uienad 1sbuowe pue Ao ayl
Jo yuoN ay1 ul Aenonued ‘uonendod weybuiwiig ay) uiyum saigeq pue siaylow 1oy anssi yyeay Jofew e si Aouadyap q ulwen “Jeak 1sed ayl Jono
sjeulnol |eaipaw ay) ul se Jjom se ssaid Jeindod ayy ul paybyybiy usaq aney ‘s1exou Buipnjoul Aouaiolep @ ulwelA ul 9sealdul ay) o) bunejal spiezey
uonejuswajddng g uiwenp ueis Ayiyjeay - ayeirdn g uiwenp anoidwy oy salbajens

Page 18



¢l

,81ed ujogmau pue A)julalew JUaIdIYd pue aANdayd ‘ajes Bulunsug,, - }JoMIB| |RIRULIBd SPUBIPIAI 1S9/

SI3qWIaW Wea] NNd
uonejuasaudas
SBOIAIBE LI M
pue A3iUI212W JO SIBUOISSILILIOD |
diysisquisiy

seAnEjuasaIdal
siogaRilq |Eaul]
50!
SIBPER] JIOMIBU JUBLN;
‘diysiaquispy

a2loyd 2Insue 0 me»Q._S wiar
aJed Ayludarew pue jejeuoau
SS01IR AYI|IPLIRISNS SSAIPPY

WNJIO4 EIBUOISEIWWOY |B20] pue jeuoneu

Wnie] ;apianid 104] 2IUDPIAD UO 13S SPIRPPURIS
Aujigenen

22NPaJ 0} 2UBI JO SPIBPUE]S pad.dy

Aduaniyja piemio) anlg
sanijenbaul inoaaug

30101 UB[1e4 DAUQ

HIOMIBN [RIRULIag EDURPI 8o

S20IIN0 LJjeay anoaduw)

[opOU }JOMIB\ [BleUllad SPUBIPIA 1S9/

'91e2 UIogMau pue Ajiuieiew wodj sawoano buinoidwi jo aandalqo
[euolbas ay) 1SISSe pue ‘sjun |[eleuoa) pue Aluieiepy bBunsixa jo saniAnoe ay) asiuowiey 03 JopJo ul ‘1ayiaboy Bunjiom dosy 0) posu am 210joq JoAd
Uay) 2JOW pue '‘SAlIY) 0] JOYI0 Yoed pasu || oM d1ewWi|d Syl Ul paspu] ‘paa2dns 0) ale suonelode|jod Ji adeid ou aney sepuabe |euosiad ‘siopinold
92IAJBS |enpIAIpUl Se uay) Jayied ‘ABajens uiof YI0MIBN |eleuliad SPUBIPIA 1S9AA aUl ulyum siuswdojaasp 921AI9S J1dY] 18 300| 0] auokians abin |

"palwi| A|SNOLIBS aJe $92IN0SaY

Sl 1@ seale JoYlo sode|d ‘S92IAISS INO Jo eale auo ul Buipuads-siw ey sn paulem sey ‘ybooy oonig NS 10SS8J0Id ‘1010941 |eJIPSIN SHN
INQ "SJBUOISSIWIWOI J1dy) pue siapinold aoinias Ayusarew yum diysisuned Jai1ealb B Ul 0S Op 9NURUOD [|IM pue ‘(SNDIN) SHUN 3JeD SAISUSIU| [BIBUOSN
‘(SNNT) SHuN [_IRUOBN |B20T ‘(SNDS) Siun a1e) [evadg jo suoniuyap 1jjoo | ayl yum Aidwos o1 skemyied aieo Bunepdn usaqg sey ylomeN a9yl
‘(Mmojaq [opow NNJINA 99S) WNJ04 J9PINOId B pUe WNJOo4 JSUOISSIWWOY) e ‘pieog NN INA 2U Jo pasodwod si NNJIANM dUL

‘dselb
INo uIyum aAneniul Jo Jos siyy sind uoneloqe|od buons Yy '921n0Sal JO 91SEM SANDDJJoUI pue abny e sjuasaidal Ageq pue Jayiow e Jajsuen) 01 yun
a1eudoidde ue Joj buiyoieas suoyd ay) uo sinoy Buipuads saampiw pue sueiIul) 92IAISS Jdjsuel) pajeubisap bunioddns e pue ‘ojendoidde se 100
uJlogmau pue paq Ajluia1ew e 91220] 0] WAL B YIIM ‘0J2IN-Xd pUe 0JaIn-ul Y1og ‘s|elsajal 11V Joj Jaqunu auQ, dojaasp 01 sI swie 1sabbiq ino jo auQ

"ulogMau |ewlou ay) 1o} s)2ayd-Ageq Bujeuspun aq |im a1nny ay) ul oym saaimpiw bo sajos a1edoidde jo yuswdojonap ay) woddns pue ‘@210)110Mm
ay1 0y bunejas sanssi ssalppe 0] ‘uoddns Buipasjsealq pue uonenadsnsal 1oy bo buluien Juawdojenasp aulepinb pue Aemyled aied yum aieloqe]od
0] 9|ge 9 0] SI UOISIA YJoMIBN ulogmap 8y ‘sajdiounid 14|00 | uIogmaN umo Jno yum aulj ul ‘,aaeid 1ybu ‘uoneisab by, st senuoud Ky sy Jo auQ

ge 19

@©
ol



Aep Buuies) wea) yodsued |

Aep Apris aaneluasaudal Juaied
a|npoy Buisinp [eleUDa) (BIBING
Aep Apris uoguany |ejeuoan [eabing
Sas4n0d Jagin)

(Asiaslun AJuas0s Uik LoRIuniuod Ul anpoLd-a aied aaqeled [ejeunau jo Juswdo@aag e

shep ApnIs 21D asneled |

Sjewnol |euoneuaiul

ul paysgnd 'sadualayuod ueadoing pue [euoged Je pajuasasd LWes] 0 3400 J0 SIB0LIBJY

HOAda L BU] pUNDUE SIUEA3  pUnDY puelg,

sufajng Adauenh Buiuel | pue uoeanp3

(saweifoud fep ) alepdn) f UOAONPUL 32NU YEIS [EIBUDAN X | PaI3AISQJ

SILUBONS 4Rk UBLND 104 Maas Builie s|xMs, B palaaag]

95.n03 Yodsuel) [eleuosu B papualie uoxg Asiry pue UOXES BIU0S — pieay 3a00eld U afiuey

| 107 1snBry L awwelfoid Jppy 29 pale|duund siuspnis &

Aemiyled augy

yhnouys Buissaifold ase pue g o7 Jegqwaides awie Boid gy Mau 38Ul paIUSLUILI0D SIUSpnIS £

SHUN D13yl Ui S3(04 AJjeioads yiisa Jels J0 JUawdoaAap pUE UDGEINPE 3Y1 U palsasll e
A0jE|E3ET SIS fUEe ABmLed 183187 3SINR

|EIELI0A N SPUBIPIK 15844 SU3 JO uoneiuawa|dul voddns oy dnosf uoneonps |eucifial e paysigelsy

2 & & & & & B L]

-

‘sa|diouud 100 | |elEU0aR 34T Yl 301 UL pUE Y0031 1IN0 Ul S31BU03U 104 318D Oy Je1s e Jo) Buiuen
puE uonReInpa Jo Aaaep auyi wu sadiound aspeloge oo euoissayid-gnu afelnoous 01 31 Aydosopyd Jng paau ol
Buipiooae sjusAa UoPeINPa Ma U UBISap pue 3aNPOJU pue sJauled N0 Ylist 3404 O] 3NUGUOD |k 3k Jead Ixau ayl 18a0)
“ginpoy [eabing |eleunap auyl Jo Builund |njssadons ayl uaaq sey Juaidoaasp mal
"UDIIEDINAS J8U0IIJElH 35NN [BleU0a padiuespy 01 Bunnguiuod pue Aumoddnse
103loi4 10514 Aeraied |eleunap YHS auyg Buinuijuode
SlUaAa UoneInpa pue sAep Apnis Jo onojuod Mlowdap ayl Buipuedxas
‘s10adse 10UnSIp [B18A3S LD PBSNI0) aARL LUES] UDLEINDE 3L |

GUEINELETIEY ]

dNO¥D ONINIVEL ANV NOILYONAd3

€l



142

‘FESINU [BlEU0AU Jo) shesmyled UoNEINpe mall Jaal|ap pue dojasap 0} 5|34 pue Alauea] aa0RIOANTHS auy)

Sranap uoneanps poddns 01 S82IN0SAL YIOMIBU SAIDRIEI S50
(5002 1100 Hoa) g pue 7 sajdiauid 4o uone uswia dll 8y splemol
Burom awelfond yiom pue sanaalgo ylosgap) Yy aul ul Apagoe Buidied) pue uoijeanpa Josuads ¢ poddng
B RAAAS UIYI Jels |eledoau o] voddns Jiapeae pue aaape wawdojasap femyied Jaaled Jayn
sluaaa Buillel] uoienwis aInpol)
shep Apnis yiomgap) jo ogoppod ay dojaaag
sjuasa Buiuies) pue uoieanps jeuossapoid 4ynw poddng
Buluies] [eleuoau MojepueLl maiaal 0] SIS Yl 3404 0 |

sEISiaAlun B omian ‘s1snd] Aq pataalap sewwiedfosd Bumiel) (BleU0aU 0] 8INGUIL0D 0} 8NU Uo7

'suawpedag Builiea pue uoleanpg jend] 'siauped [eleuuad 'spun [gleuoap ayl g diysisuped g yiom o)
SUe[q 3Ty

SHUR Al e uoijeiu Buiese 51 ApRIS ZS7) AU L

!

-8 yHA) Buiobuo 1 uogasu esuo Aea jo sisoulieip ayl ul 404 40 ApNIS B pue SaNUIUDD 7= S0 09 oun Juawyniaal

MRS A9 pauoddns aoja) Yaiess

-Nnioad paysiuy sey (siead Buneloge|oa pue dasg) Apnis Xo-88Ng By HI0MIEU BUY] SS0M0E SANUIUOD ALAIIDE JolEasay

yaleasay

4e1s jeaiuna 01 poddns [euong pue JILUSREIE SpIADlL e

saallequ aogaesd poofl dojasap pue aleys 0] sanbiea)od uogednpa Yk Ajeuogeu pue Aleuoifal iomdap =

adialas |eleuoall

8y} jo spuewap ayl 1eeaw o} spaau Buies pue wawdojaaap aoiopjiom 8yl 55888e 0] S|4 7§ sHoagau Buunogubiau yps uonelogeos W Busioss e

B RIAAS BUL UL LIOgaaL Uy 40 8B 8] Ul paajoAll Jels Joy Buinien pue uoijeanpa aleljioe) pue laiso) o] slaplaoid uoieanps [euoifal Y Buision, e

shep aauarauod ¢ shep Apnis |euoissajoadiynw jo swiielfold yiomiau Bunasa] e

SSLIARYY Ule|A

Page 21



HONE PUELULIDT YA 255 PEWES BIET el ojdi] paauespy (I8 pupy Yedogag
SlEJUIHEs alENpElS A203y ELOS SHpaa 5 pdojpesd JEuuar
BlEaUIHan alenp el dayaing ade|n S)paa O samoH aEyaly
BlE2WUET BlENPEIS uelauuld ae)n slpala Og AoAaZa BT
BlEaUiHan alENpElS Yo |843ed esl] 154 PInoqAey EwL

59 nesy jaaldiewsy a5 WSO 3y AUEWBS0Y
Bl ED BlENpEIS UUE Ylaqez)g UOIAUNSI] Y 25 lauuag ealpuy
Bl AT AlENREIS W aa ) LE 15 sielielzag esn

UDI1E PU AL Yl 250 |14 ElUY BlEJYAT alenpels) Aa|lE By, BlES

Bleayiyan alenpels SpdEYIY [BLEY UOIjE pUALULIDY Yl 250 laauads euajay
v MY ANJANLS | BlEIWYAT BlEnpEls) mEYS haaels
~ 154 2] dejiudap
ew ojdi] paaueapy UnajeT BpUEBLLY
e ojdi] paaueipy uoihe| ELE
a5 laog Aspanag
W odi] paJuespy [[15] EL
guvymy IN3IANLS
{Sopupojy PuojD puiyS puD

(oM [OIDROS] M) YIIDI N1 SHOLoMyT Suipnpiug)
Alstaaun ANo weyBuiwng

Page 22

D8EE) BOOTH
fotng woaans Fnpajy
B v i g NS 040z idag [E21BNS [E1EUDEN NIWAS
JoRurIo ) YRES £ Aysiaaup | LoF was [ejEUDEp — 82110814 paIUeApy
(Uonesedaid dNNY) Z Ay weyBuiuig Emm__am_m Ul a5 ewojdig ajenpesdijsod
aoloeld BuisinN sayebajaq JUIWAIUAWWOI)
[ejeuocap paaueapy IS Jo opN lspiroid uoyoo plemy | 81| 85In0D

LLOZ Yade L€ 03 0LOZ dY | NO¥M-I NNINMS AS 03180ddNS INGMYLHIANN ONINIVHL

Gl




ol

dnoi9o-gns sauldping ‘liey)
suowuwiis iyd

i @Aneniul bunioxa
siyl 01 bunngnuod 01 piemioj oo S\

"SyJomIaN Y1oq Joj saulapinb julol
2onpoid 01 YoM Ul YIOMIBN UIOGgMBN
29SS buunogybrau syl ul sanbes||0d
o  buol ag m am ‘Aienuer
woi4 -dnosb Ino Joj uondalip Mmau
e uodn papioap Apuadal WJomdN By

suoioaliqg ainin4

‘Kemuspun alow g pue pae|dwod
saulepinb inoj yum ‘1eak siyl |eudsoH
s,ualpiiyDy  weybulwag 11  suoabing
3yl YUM MJOM 0] panunuod aAeYy S\

‘Jeak
siy) Jole| |enaosdde jeuly oy Apeas oq
pinoys pue a19|dwod 1sowje s| aulepinb
aquejul wueaud eyl ul Buipas) |esou],
ue uo suepnAIq YIOMIBN BUl Yum
yiom InQ ‘bBuipss) amog pue buipas)
agn) ‘bBuipsspsesig Jo uonenul oy
apnjoul saido] ‘ealse siyl ul saulepinb
21ealo 01 dnoi9 1sasdU|  |RUOHIINN
Mau ayl yum K[@sojd paylom aney o\

‘sopInb Bunsixa Ino Jo awos buimaual
pue saulepinb mau [esanss bBulonpoud
‘}JOM JNO panunuod aAey am Jeak siyj|

*1eak sIy) yJom pJiey Jivy) Joj sloquuiawl
dnoib e sueyl o1 ey pinom iud

‘sjuaJed os|e pue Jjels J0j S92IN0S
uonew.lojul pale|a) pue dJUBPIAS BY)
01 Syul @1elodiodul pue paseq joulaul
9q 01 paubisep aie saulepinb InQ

‘uoluido padxa pue
9oUBPING B|ge|ieAR 1S8Q a1 uodn paseq
‘YIOMIDN BYl SS0Joe asn 10) saulepinb
[eowd oonposd o1 wie dnosb ayj

'saulBpIng
uo buppom  Aisng 1eak  isyoue
wads sey ‘jendsoy Aup weybuiwang
18 paseg 1ueNSU0) B Ssuowwis |iyd
Kq paJieyd pue jun yosesa wol Jjers Jo
posudwod ‘dnoi9-gng sauleping ay|

dnoio-gng sauneping

Page 23



Ll

pea7 upny |eJiul|g
yeisey euysin

(IN'SyUDUMg@URBISBIBULSIA) JlasAw Jo (JN'Syund-[INgIos @Uipalaw BSa1a))
BS9J9] 10RJU0D dseald ‘uonewlojul aiow 1oy Jo panjoAul 16 01 'NNINMS ayi ul saanoeld uno ypne Ajinyssedons o} diysieuned ul Bupjiom
0] pJemIo} 00| 9\ ‘Wweal Ipne NNINAS Jno uiol 01 suun ay) |je wolj Jjers buisinu pue |eaipaw palsalaiul abeinodua 0] 91| pjnom am ‘Ajjeul

"S9WO021IN0 N0 Ul spuaJ] pue Aianoe Buiuuni
Jeak 921y Ino 1. 00| 01 Wie am Jeak 1xau ‘aiowssayun ‘dO¥ Pue DIN ‘1D yum saigeq Jo sawodno ayl bunipne aie am Jeak Buiwos ay)
Ul "YJOMIBU INO Ul S3lgeq JNo Jo awo21No Jofew ay) 1e1op alow ul mainal 01 buluueld aie am ‘waishs uono9(j0d eiep Jobpeg paysiigeiss ue YU

‘spiepuels ayl yum Ajdwod 01 pasu am a1aym salqeq UIogmau
10} 2482 Jo sease weupodwi oM) a1e 3say) 1.yl aAdIRg 9N “Saulepinb aAndadsas Jno ur 1o 19S ale Yaiym spiepuels ino isuiebe pasedwod
SI'SIUY| "SHUN JNO Ul 8S0JINS JO 9sn ay) pue uoneisab syaam gz ueyl sso| saigeq Jo aled noy Aes ay) uo supne ino Buisnaoy Apuaiind ale app

pUCTRITERETIN!
aJow suonebi| Yad ybnosyl aALIp ay) ayew ued am Ji 93s 0] [endsoH s,ualpjiyDd weybuiwiig yim uoISSnasIp ul a4e 9N SN J0) Buiunsuod awn
1ayjel ale pue sieak ay) Jono siaquinu ul Buisealoul a1e suonebi| yad 1.yl Jea)d st 1l pue SQNNY Ag 1no paied Ajajes ale siajsuel) seipied ay |
‘suonebi] yad buipsau saiqeq pue siajsuen oeipied Jidy) 1e bujoo| (S1N) wesa| uodsuel] ulogmaN ayl 1o} supne ayl pasiniadns osje aney |

‘Jobpeg woulj pa1oenxa aq ued eiep SNINDD 94l 184l 8INSUd 01 SIBUOISSILIWOD a1 YIM YJOM 9/ JUN [RIRUOSBU |BIO|
01 Yoeq Jajsuel] (q pue Bulusalds 4Oy (e ale Jeak siyy 1oy SNINDD aul Auauenb qyNN Aq pauodal pue sabpeg ybnoiyy pa1os|jod sem siy|
‘S)9aM €€ > Salqeq Joj uoissiwpe ay) buunp yjiw 1sealg (g pue sy g 1Sl dYl Ul UONBYNSU0ID Waled (e ‘4eak 1se| SNINDD Z uanib atem app

"saIgeq 8y} JO Sawo21no ay) uo buisnooj Ajjedadss aimny syl ul wodas aaisusyaidwod alow e aaey 0) adoy ap\ "Siun aAndadsal ay)
Kg papinoid uonewlojul ay) woly NNINMS a4l Joj wodas jenuue umo Jno aonpolid o) pabeuew aaey 9\ "9)ISgaM INO UO pieoqysep siyl ysiignd
01 buiob aie am juasuod s,auokions Yupn J1eak 1se| pieog ayl 1o paosnpoud | yoiym suodas Apauenb ay) peseidal sey siy| ‘wayl uoddns 01
1599 moy pue a2e(d Buiye) a1om SaNIANde B 9I19YyM 99S 0] dUOKISAS MOj[e PINoM SIY | ‘siajsuel) uolbal Jo 1no pue ‘sawo21no Jolew ‘AluAnde Ino
JO spuaJl) 8y} Jojuow 01 [9A3] pJeog ay) 1e paalbe sem siy| pieoqysed NNIWMS Ajyiuow ino ysiignd 01 ajge usaqg aaey am Jeak Jjepusjed siy|

-1eak siy1 sxebouieH ul bunasy |e1RULIB 9U1 1B
pue bunaajy 3}JomBN pPeNY JNO 1B }JOMIBU INo J0) UONIS||02 elep Jabpeg payiun e jo syjauaq ay) uasald 01 pabeuew os|e aney ap\ "sanoeud
Ino a1edwod 01 JBpIO Ul YIOMIBU 8y} SSoJoe saodnoeld asiplepuels 01 paau am ‘ssajpyuanaN ‘Anua eep sabpeg ul wualadwod pue Juspyuod
alow Bumab si ‘yers Jo siaquiaw Jolunl buipnpoul ‘auokiang "Auanoe Jeak |eioueul) puodas Ino aanpoid 01 pabeuew aAey am Nsal B SY ‘6002
udy .1 @Y1 uo uonoajjod eiep Jabpeg pauels ||e 9\ 'NNINAS Ul SHUN ay) || Wwolj uonda|jod eiep Jabpeg payiun jo Jeak aanonpoud e uaaq s

1S

dnoig-gng ejeq pue lpny |jesiul|)

Page 24



8l

yeisey AS pue juessed |\ ‘sewoy] S
"Wwa)sAs U0ND3||02 BIEP [RIRUOSU PalIUN B JO S)yduaq oy :uoneisab sysam | uey) SS9| ulog saigeq Jo sawoano bBuiskjeuy

LL0Z uer .z Bunsapy jJomiaN penp - s1snep spuejpiiy

Yelsey AS pUe uojiyg v 'JeuuNS \ ‘UOSLUIBH [ IAUSYS Y
"92INIDS J9JSURI| UIOGMBN SPUBIPIA 1S9\ @Y1 A pa1onpuod siajsuel) deipied Jo 1oeduw

LL0Z uer .z Bunaapy jJ0maN penp - s1aNep spuejpiiy

yeisey AS PUE UOJIYQ V "JOUUINS  ‘UOSLLIBH  ‘IAUSYS V ‘UBWIYSY ¥
"92INISS J9JSURI| UJOgMBN SPUB|PI 1S9 @Y1 A pa1onpuod uonebi| y(qd J0) Siajsuel) Jo MIIADY

LLOZ uer .,z Buneap yiomiaN penp - siene spuepiiy

yelsey AS PUe uojiyg v ‘JeuunyS  ‘uosiIeH [ IAusyS v
92IAISS JBJSuUeI] |RIBRUOSBN SPUBIPI 1S9AN 89Ul AQ pa1onpuod Siajsues) Jeipied anoe Jo 1oedw|
epeuelo Ul LL0oZ LZ - 8L Kep ‘ABojoipies olneipaed ueadoiny 10 uoneidossy ayl jJo bunasyy jenuuy Yisy

yeisey AS pue uojiyg v ‘JauumS  ‘UOSLLIBH [ ‘IAUBYS Y ‘UBLIYSY o
(SLNINA) 92IAI9S Jajsuel] [RIBUOBN SpuepIA 1S9 @Ul Ag pa1onpuod uonebl| yad ybnoiyy aaup Joj puewsap buisealou|

LLOZ ,,LL 01 UIGL aunr aeBoitey LLOZ auIdIpaly [eleuLIad

yeisey AS PUe uojiyg Vv ‘JauunS  ‘UoSLLBH [ ‘IAUBYS VY
92IAIDS JBjsuel ]| |e1IRUOSBN SPUB|PI 1S9AA @4l Ag pa1onpuod siajsuel) Jeipied ainde Jo 1oedw|

LLOZ ,LL 01 YiGL dunf a1eBolseH LLOZ dUIDIPI [ereuLad

yeisey AS pue juessed |\ ‘sewoy] S
"wo)sAs ejep [eleuosu

paljiuN e Jo SIJauaq 8y - YJOMISU |RIRUOSU B UIYlIM uoneisab syoom | € ueyl SSa| uiog salgeq Joj Sawo2no Jolew ay) buiskjeuy
LLOZ ,LL 01 YIGL aun( a1ebouleH LLOZ dUIDIpay [eleuLlad

suonejuasald J91sod

Page 25



6l

NNIAMS ‘PeoT d11391sqQ
UnIeN 11'g

"saIqeq JI9Y) pue SJayiow Jo uypuadg ay) 01 aq Ajuo ued siyl pue Aoy a1ow syiomiau [ereunad ana Jo 19adsold ay) oxew
Kjjeuoibal sebueyd 1eyy buibeinoosua si )| "aied Aluisiew Jo ajoym ay) Joj pies g ued awes ay] 210joq ob 01 Aem owos SI 219Y) 2482 |RIRUODU
10} Aujeas e aq AKew siyy 1sjiypy eoeid aendoisdde ayy 1e aied ajeudoidde ainsua 0y SI SyJjomiau |ealuld pabeuew Jo soye bulkuspun ay|

‘paniwpe sijuaned e
Janalaym aled ul Kouaisisuod bunnsus Ajjeuoibal paonponul aq Aew asayl aulapinb wia1eid ayl yum sy "uonainsal yimmolb pue eisdwedsald se
yons wawdojanap aulepinb Jayuny anjoaul Aew siyy ‘Lodal snoinald ay) Ul pauonuaw Sy “YJomiau |ereuliad alow B SpIemO] YI0M 0] SNUIUOD AN

‘uoibai Jo N0 sivjsuen
[ereuoau bBuniwil ur usds ss822Ns ay) |9jieted o) 1dwane 0] aied Jo 1adse siy upne 01 yiom no Bulkied ate ap) 1ou 1o deudoidde aie asay)
Jaylaym pue siajsuen Aluioiew Jo 9|BIS ay) dUIWIIBP JN2IYIP 2I0W SI )l ‘S91BUOSU JO Siajsuen 0491 xa Aj@1eindoe Jojuow 01 9|ge ale am IS|IY\

"SUOISSNISIP 8y 0] [99) |ereuniad aiow e ajessusab 01 parewebjewe usaq aney om) asay) Apusnbasqng
"JUSAD 1BU] JO SSB2INS BU] Joj) yeys [IBN Jg 01 syueyr — jeudsoH AuD ayy Jo sisenb se spunol Ajuisiew Jo ysune| ay) N0 pallied am Jeak
1Se| Byl U] "YJomiaN |ereuoaN ayl jo buluuibaq ay) 92uls paysiigelss uaaq aaey ABojoleuosN Ul SpUNOY puels) ‘uiodpuels [eUOnNEINPS Ue WOl

‘wiJioj yedp [euly ui st auldpinb wisaid ay) Jo a1umal oy ajdwexa Jo4 Iwal Jno jo ued aq 01 senunuod JuswdojaAsp auljepINg
"suoneJaqiiep
ino 01 yoeoidde pasuejeq alow e aonpoid 01 jers Aeympiw pue oL@1sqo yum abebua 01 tenoiied ul ‘NNINMS 94l Ul paAjoAul sjendsoy

ay1 uiyum dnoub-gns ayy Joj ajiyoid Jaybiy e apinoid 01 anunuod suoy3 ‘bBuibeinosus sem 1NoUIN] SSBIBYIBUOU 1N SIUBSWIIWILWIOID [BIIUID [BUISIUI O)
anp ua)jo ‘wajqoid e sulewas NNINMS UIYIM S1sni| || wod) uonejuasaiday "1eak 1se| ay) JOA0 SUOISBI20 Z uo 19w sey dnoibgns Aluseiew ay |

dnoi9)-gng Aluielen

Page 26



0¢

"(LLOZ/SO/LE 0} OL/SO/SL) SOMIBU NNINAS SPISINO PUB UILIM SHUN WO SUOISSIWPE JO JoquinN° L d1nbi4

0 W = ~N O

paNIWpe 2JoM Salgeq 9y} 9JoYyMm WoJj SHUN ay) ale
Buimolioy ayl “(y1)s|eilalal se ||am se (swoy| +¢)ulog ul yroq papnjoul siy| eiwlayiodAy onnadelay) paniadal saiqeq uaaldulu (1) Jo |B10) Y

juswWea) PaAIadal OYm saiqeq JO Jaqunp "L

‘elwlaylodAy onnadelay) Joj 91Ud2
NNINMS & se (L1L0Z/S0/LE 0} 0L02/S0/SL) I1eudsoH spuepuesy weybuiwiig 12 pasuswiwod Ajeionjo sem uawieal) ayl asuls Jeak |eioueuly
1se] a1 Joj uodas ayl sI buimojjo) ay] eixAydse jereunad yum uioq saigeq Joj uondo juswiean aunnod e se bulood jo asn ayl bunioddns
aouepinb mau paysiignd auIdIpajy |BIRULIDd JO UONRIDOSSY USNlg 9yl pue adud|[@dx3] |edlull) Joj a1mnsu| [euonen YN @yl ‘0Loz Aey uj

uonosnpo.nu|

(Burjoo)) eiwsayrodAH onnadeusay] 10j Loday ANANoy Jesp jeloueuly LL0Z-0L0Z NNINMS

Page 27



‘Ayredojeydaouy oiwseyos| a1xodAH jo Aiuanas ¢ ainbi4

91eJ9pOIN

| | o
i
0T

ST

JIH @y Jo Kiuanas ayy Jad se uonnqguasiq °s

‘pasusWwWod Buljood uaym sinoy ul abe s Ageg: z ainbi4

Page 28

o

.

Low}

, .
AWRVAL
/\ /\,,,\ S

{sanoH) oL
BAISSEH — < #,

{SINOH) A0y —a—
Tl

"sinoy xi1s uiyum Buijood 1oj pasuswiwod a1am salqeq ayl ||y ‘sinoy 9 Ag si buljoos jo bunuels 1oj abe papuswiwodal ay|

‘pasuawiwod buijoods uaym aby ‘g



¢c

uawieal) buljood jo sawoanQ G ainbi4

palg =
PaAIAINS

pue sawoy
pagdieydsig m

awo21nQ0

"JUSWIBAJ) 91BD DAISUBIUI JO [eMEBIPYIM BU) LWOJ) 819M PaIp OyMm salqeq auyl ||y
juawieas) Buijood 19)e awo9No jeniy| 'g

‘saimesadwa) uoISSIWpY “ 81nbi4

ST 0T S 0
| | " Om
2 o & O
SRS A S e L st
*
oy

"D oVE — ,€€ S! Buljooo 1oy ebuel 1ebiel sy 'sjendsoy Burusgel syl WO 1UN BY) 01 [BALLIR UO SBIRJ USSMNOY 8y} JO saimelsadwial 8y |

saimesadwa) uoissiwpy ¢

Page 29



174

[endsoy spuejesy weybuiwiig
KbBojoleuoapy ul weynsuo)
NNIWNMS ‘pea Buijood

nedeyues eApip

_-'A \-‘ ]

‘Ruanas 01 buipiooaoe Ajevnop ‘9 ainbi4

NIV

paig m

dIH
J|H 949A3S  91RJSPO|A

0]

ST

"J1H Jo dnoib a1aAaS BY) WO 819M PaIp Oym saigeq ayl ||y

*JIH Jo Aianas ayy uo paseq AljeLol 9

Page 30



ve

"92uUe|eq PIN|) pUB UONINU ‘2182 _WOIS Yum Ajuiew si saigeq |edibins

Joj buued yers Aq papoasu poddns ay| uoibai uiyum ulewal saigeq se [jetono Auanoe pasealoul bunoajjal ‘Jeak ay) JOA0 pasealdul Sey d2IAI9S
yoeanno ay) buisn HHg Jo 1no pausjsuen syuaned |ealbins jo Jaquinu ay) Ing ‘oneis ey paulewsal sey piep) |ealbing jeieuosy oyl wodj yoeq
paligjsuen suaned uspuadap ss) Jo Jaquinu dnjosge ay| 'S109 parenuaa dn buidal) ‘NDId wodj yoeq pausjsuen syuaned ale Auofew ay |
"(SS0JD M3 puUB SpPUBLBAH ‘S,UBWONN 3Ul) SNNN € [9A3] 01 Ajulew Wwas aq 01 ‘saiqeq do-1sod “I9x2Is 10} SI puail ||BJSAO 3y "HOg 1B dALe
Koy a10joq saiqeq do-aid pue HOg ulyum saigeq ‘HDg wolj Kues pabieyssip Aj@anoe saiqeq apnjoul anapeusag Ag pauoddns suaned g ay |

L6 L29 ves coL [e10] [enuuy

oL L6L LLL vl ¥ Jouenp

2e 66 vL Ge € Jauenp

92 GolL oclL 6¢ Z Jauenp

L2 ZLL LEL GE L Jauenp

aled jo saposida

||e SSOoJ4oe UddsS 10 U009 s)oRUOD soposid3
sjuaned jo Jjaquinp Jo saposida |[r10] | SUSIA 2US auoyd yoeannQ asinpN

:AAnoe (epay anapeusag) asinp yoseanno

"HMg pue HOg udamiaq saleuoau [eaibins jo sidjsuel] pue Ajanoe asiny pea ‘lendsoH
s,ualp|iy) weybuiwig 1e skep paq pue suoISSIWpPe JO Jaquiny ‘suoissiwpe pakejap pue pasnjay :aJe sioledlipul asuewioad 1Bylo

‘suolbal Joylo woulj A1abins [eleuosu Joj saiqeq parodwi aney

pue Ageq ou pauloap aney (NJId) Hun aJed aAIsuau| dLeIpaed pue pM\SN Apuadal aiopy (N1 painbal ¢ pue A)\SN 841 U0 109 e palinbal g
UoIym Jo) ‘L 1/0L0Z Ul S1euoau g 01 ‘(NLl) Nun aied aaisuaiu| painbal g pue (MSN) piepn [22161nS [e1RUOSN 9U) U 109 e palinbal 1) 0L/6002
Ul SS1BUOSBU £ WOJ) Pasealdap aAey 9say | "siajsued) uoibal Jo 1no 0] saiejal Jojeaipul asuewlopad Aoy 8y | :si01edipul aduewsoyiad Aoy

"pieog 193l01d |ereuoa| oy Aq pasonuow
pue pauoddns aq 01 Senunuod 92IAIS 3y  "uolbal ay) ssoloe A1abins bulinbal uiogmau jo a1es syl Loddns 01 dnolo Buluoissiwwo)
1s1|e192dS Sspuepin 1S9AA @U) Ag pauoIsSIwwod sem juswabuele 921A19s siy | “s|eidSoH S,uswop) 3yl pue HOg usamiaq uawdojonap

92IAJ9S |eaIbINS |e1RUOBU 3] JO Sluawalinbal ayl 1no pie| 1eyl Juawnoop Buluoissiwwod e si uoneaydads a21n19S A1abing |eleuosay ay |

"HOg 01 paniwpe aq 1ou pjnod Asy) asnedaaq sisnt] J1ayio o}

JUSS dJaM S|eliajal Jo udd Jad aulN "apew sem |elajal e se Aep awes ay) uo (HOg) [eudsoH s,ualpjiyd weybuiwiig o) paniwpe atom suaned
10 %499 Ajuo 1Y) pamoys 1pne ue ‘700z Joqwaidag uj ‘Aiabins [e1eUOBU J0) B1oM BSBU] JO ZG ‘SPUB|PIA 1S9AN 941 apisino palean Aj@ieudoiddeul
a1aM salqeq 901 ‘90/500¢ U] ‘A1abins buLinbal saigeq uiogmau Joj sadinlas Loddns 01 sem 109loid A1abing jeieuosayy au jo asodind ay |

LLoZ A1abing jejeUOD)

Page 31



Gc

pea uosiel] A1ebing [ejeuos asInN yoseannQ [ealbing |eleuos pea
[]9SSNY pJojpag uosIy epoy anepeulag

r- L‘

"SIUOISSIWILIOD 1IN0 YUM pue ‘jendsoH s,ualp|iy) weybuiwag Ajjevadss suun Jaquisw ||B u9amiaq Uuoneioqe||od 9A129))0

Kiyby e Jo ynsas oyl si siy| "ieyj os ‘1oy1aboy panaiyoe aney am 1eym 1o} ‘L LOZ SPiemy sa2in1as Auuiaiey uo dnoug Aieyjusweljed Aued-|iy
ay1 uom aney 03 1s00d 1ealb e usaq sey 1| "siajsuel) uoibal Jo N0 019z dA3IYIE Sk [|om sk ‘(jlewndo-gns |ns S sawi 18 YdIym) UoReIIuNWWOod
Buipnjour ‘Ayjenb ur anoidwi pue usyibuans |Im 921A19s a2y 1eyl paledidnue si ) pue bulobuo aie suoye 1ng 194 199)1ad 10U SI 92IAIBS BY |

‘plepn [eda1bing |e1euoa oyl

Jo abiey) ui asinN pue uoabing [jea-uQ “1sibojoieuoaN HANG ‘uoabing pue asinN yoeannQ ayy buinjoaul HOg 1e buneasw Aloedes siysL-go
ue buimojjo) ‘Aepii4 01 Kepuoy ‘siseq Ajiep e uo palinddo sey |eudsoH s,uswo/) Wweybuiwiig 1e Jiun |eleuoau ay) Uuo salgeq Jo MmalAal |eaibins
"L dunr aouIs "L L0z Key 62 uo 1sod siy dn xool pue psiodde sem uosbing oueIPSR WRYNSUOD ‘999 JBAIQ JIA ‘921A9S By) Loddns

01 ‘(pea uosier] A1abing [eleuOa) [[9SSNY pJojpag uoslly pue (asinN yoeannQ A1ebing jejeuoaN pea) epay anapeulag 0] uonippe uj

‘salgeq |ealbins ‘10) skemyped a1ed

pue ‘jo wawabeuew [euonunu ay) Joj pue eiusay anewbelydelp jenusbuod Jo uswabeuew ay) Joj buipnpoul Juswdo@asap Jo sabeis paosuenpe
ur ale sauldpinb jo Jaquinu vy walshs ,sjewajal A1abins |eleuoau (e 1oy Jaquinu auo, e dojanap 01 (SYJINN) 22IAI8S [eABLISY dlieIpaed
spue|piN 1S9\ 18 Aiswobiuoly Atepy pue uosiipy dijiyd yum paylom oym dnoub ayy pasieys osje 1oayemer Jj\ ‘dnoib siyy Aq padojanap

os|e a1om sAkemyied aied jejeusjue oy 'S19|jea| uonewlojul Jualed yum buoje ‘ausgam NNIANMS 94 Uo ajgejieAe ale sauljapinb jo Jaqunu

v “Joayemer ysuio JN Aq palieyd (9dSN) dnoug saonoeid % spiepuels [ejeuoap ayi Aq padojanap aq 03 anunuod aonoeld 1oy Saulleping

‘(jkel1ooy) sweay audIpa|\ [e194 8yl Ag uonipuod
[eaibins s Ageq s1oy) Inoge 19]jea| e uaalb usaq Apealje aney sjuaied Ajbuiseadu] 'suoissas asay) Jo sued jueuodwi aie piem ay) 01 UISIA B pue
‘MSN @41 Inoge uonew.ojul usnupn ‘buljjosunod jejeu aue Joj sjuated pue suoabing usamiag suone)nsuod JuanedinQ spuane os|e anapeulag

‘pa1en|ena buiag mou si Syl pue 3|Npoj [e216Ing |ereuoa oyl pa1ajdwiod aARY SOSINN [RIRUOSBN §

‘JJe1S SpueeaH 01 SIYl pudlxa 01 8 [[IM SN20J dY) | LOZ Ul "1el1s NDId pue HANG Joj Jejnanied
ul pue [esauab ul jje1s yloma J1o) 1eak ay) Inoybnoiyy papinoid usaq sey uoneonpa Jo swwelboid aaIsusIxe uy "uonesnp3 pue buluiel )

Page 32



9¢

aJnelsadway HOD._MH

oyl payoeal |le pue Adesayl Buijood 1o palsojsues) aiom saiqeq Lz

¢ ainbi4
NNOESS NNAMS

0

S
LL0Z-0L0Z @ oL
0L02-600Z @

SL

0z

Kuoedeq jo yoeq ojanqg uoibay JO INQ Jajsuel |

‘1eak snoinaid ayj ul gz 01 pasedwod

Aioeded Jo yoe| 01 anp uoibal Jo N0 patidjsuen alom saiqeq g AlUQ

(%8) syomidu Jaylo pue NNO

pue (%22) NNOESS (%LL) NNWMS 10j d1om pawiopad siajsuel]

Z ainbi4

ouedyel 0
pausjsuel] B
paisenbay @

seYI0 NNO NNOESS NNWAMS

690L 0021

LLOZ - 0L0OZ M40Mm)dU Yyoes 10} pawiojiad siajsuel |

L ainbi4

paugjsuel] @
s1senboy @

LLOZ 01 0L0¢ 10} saniAnoe S| NINM

‘(1em jou p|NO2 HuN

pue Jajsues) uo Apealje 1o sanssi buiyels) S1NINA Ag pasnjal atam 9%/
‘(lewsyal areudoisddeur Jo Juasuod |eualed ‘s100 Jo Aljigejieae ‘uonIpuod
s,Ageq ur abueyo "6°8) syun burayal Aq pajj@oued a1am SIajSuel Jo %z |
‘pousad siyy bunp paisenbal siajsuen ayy Jo %18 pawlopad S| NINM
"(1eak snoinaud ayr ul L 0}

paledwod gzl ywowysisanbal Jajsuely) saoiales Jajsueldy buunoqybiau
Jo youne| ay1 01 anp %6 Ag paonpal sey Jeak ayl Joj AKuanoe ay) ‘||eionQ
SanIAnDYy

"LL0Z Kreniga ul
1s0d ojul swed pue payuiodde sem nodjiud 'y "IQ 1S0d WeYNSUOD) awin
[INJ & pue Jauonnoeid dSINN |RIRUOSN pPadsueApy J A\ L Jayioue apnpoul
01 Jayuny paseasoul sem 196png oyl Jeak siy| ‘ease spuepliin 1S9\ 2U)
Ul sjuejul 10J 81ed ¥oam e skep / ‘sinoy g apinoid 0] senunuod S| NIAM

LL0Z - 0L0Z
(SLNINA) 921AISS Jajsuel] [eleuOaN Spue|pliA 1S9

Page 33



ueNSuU0) uodsuel | |R1IRUOSDN uRYNSUO0)) BSINN
nodjiydg x|y uosliey ajoer

Ui

611 sjuapidul jejo)

T T uspIY
|euosiad

ot (43 siagjsuel] NN
€ € |eusaix3
T T uonejessy ( Jayio
9T 6T juawdinb3
L 8 duenquy
6T €T uonesunNWwo)
€ 14 SJuU3pUI SIN
ve 6¢ 1ean
9 Vi saSeyoys yeis | jeawnd
o1 ran ainjesadwa)
|elol | ‘ON uapnuj jo adAL
0%

'SMOJ|0}
S UMOpP USX01q 9J9M SJUSPIOU| "UdNRUSpUN SIdjsuel] [e10] JO %6 Ol
sa1enba siy ‘| 1L0Z/01L0Z Buunp pauodal ai1em SsluspIoul gL L 1O |e10]

92UBUIBA0N) |B2IUI|D

Bunoayy buudg K1o190S |R1RUOSN

12 uoneasaid |eio ue — SININM @Y Ag passjsuent SISIYosSones) ‘¢
92U319JU0D) YIOMIBN pPenD —92IAI9S JdjSsuel]| |R1IBUOSN

spue|pI 1S9\ a1 Ag pe1onpuod uonebl| Y(d o) Siajsuel) Jo MIIADY 2
92UB12JU0D) YIOMIBN peny — dIIAIDS Jdjsuel |

[e1euoaN spuejpiN 1S9MA Aq  papinosd  siojsues) oeipied 9y ‘L

:pojuasald atom sypne ¢

supny

S95IN02 SN |B20] Woddns 01 anunuod Je1s SN

Buiuien Jeisued pare|dwod aney yeis g

Kep Apms Ayiedojeydasu] oiwaeyos|

-oixodAH 10j elwsoylodAH onnadelay] oay) popusne oAy JeiS ||V
"L 10Z Jeqwiada( Joj pauueld si Aep

Joyuny y Jajsuen buunp asue eyl SUONENIS SNOLIBA puUB 3JOM Wea) ay)
moy ol ybisul aney 01 seapuane pajgeus SIY]  SYIOMIBU Y} SSoJde
Je1s [eoipaw pue buisinu Jo S|9Ad| || wol) uonewasaldal yum ssaoons
1e0.b e panoud |10z Aey v uo doe|d yoo1 yeyr Aep Buluren S1NINM UL
uoneosnp3

Jolensiuiupy | o=
NI9|D 101B20710D | =
(LM G'L) S9SINN 8 =
MmojjoJ uodsuel| | =
Jauonnoeld 9SIN |R1IBUOS|N PAJUBAPY @3aUlRl| € =
slouonnoeid 9SINN |BIBUOSN PaJuURAPY {7 =
URYNSUOD BSINN | =
(powiodde
9q 01) peaq weynsuod NNIASS SVdZ ® NNAMS Svd € =
(1L0Z A1eniga{ woly) pea]ueyNSuUo) | =
:JO SISISUOD Wedlay] =
Buyyers

"£G9'L0%3 sem aunypuadxs pue £59°L0%3
sem 10bpng Aed uoN ‘(LL0z Atenuge jnun paj 1ou 1sod jueynsuod
01 @Np 09G'0663 Sem ainyupuadxa) €2/'080'L3F Jeak auy Joj 18bpng Aed

Buipuny

4
™

(8]
(@)
©

o



8¢

‘suonesiueblo JuaiaIp
ssoJoe paleys si asnuadxa pue abpajmouy 1eyl buinsus noge aieuoissed we | se ‘siyl op 01 payse aq 01 pased|d Ajpwanxa sem | ‘aunf
ul yoeq HANG 1B play sem 1eyy Kep Apms Jiay 1e sisidesayioisAyd jo K19100S [euonep ayl 1oj s9oualiadxa Ino 1noge yeads 0) payse os|e sem |

"WIOMID dU1 SS0IdB pPaingIisIp usag mou aAey asay) pue dnoib poddns |\ 7y D oyl wod) siualed Jaylo swos yum buoje ‘s1ojjea
uonewloju| Juaied ayl mainal 01 padjay | ‘jnyasn Ajpwanxa ale skep ay) ‘papuane 1.yl jeis ayl o1 bupneads woly se ‘aouepuane Jo }oe| 0 anp
pa||@oued aq 0} pey aney sAep Apms awos 1eyy bunpuioddesip si )| “1eak siyy soie| uiebe awes ayy op 0} adoy | "Jeak 1se| HANG 1e Aep Apnis a1e)
[ewswdojanag aus 1e (jpeq pue poob yloq) sasusuadxs sAjiwey Ino noge axods | pue dnoiH gng ale) |euswdo@Aa 8yl Ul PAAJOAUL WE |

"SaAI| JIvy) ul awin buneiseasp siyl 1e asusiiadxa ajgissod 1sag ayl 196 sjualed || 8Insua 0} palepI|OSU0d pue paleys ‘Panuinuod
9Q ued aled aaneljed aA19291 0] paau oym saljiwe) pue saigeq djipy 01 ylomeN oyl punole Buiuaddey si 1eyr yiom 1ealb ay) 1yl adoy
| "d|INpow qdD aJed aAneljed ulogmap oyl Jo s1oadse bBuluien auljuo ay) Jo auo Joj sadualadxa 1no noge Buryel pawjy osje sem | "Anunod
ay1 Jo seale JBYl0 wody seapl pue adnoeld 1saq aleys pue noge no puily 01 Anunuoddo jealb e usaq sey SIyl pue UOPUOT pue JaI1SaydUB\
y1og ui skep 4|nD a1e) anneljjed SS|g 18 uayods aaey | ‘suonejuasald 9say) Jo )nsal 192Jp e Sy ‘SAep puodas ayl Jo Y1og 1e uoissnasip
a|ge1 punoJ e paieljioe) | pue sAep Apnis ,| Aep, ay1 Jo yoea je pajuasald | yaiym ‘sasualiadxa pue smaln sjualed jo uonejuasald e soyaboy
nd | ‘Asuinol umo Aw uo aw padjay Ajjeas aney ing “1s41) 18 Auenoued ‘Ajjeuonows ynaiyip atom skep Apnis asay] “awn uoys AJoA e 1oj uaqje
‘aled anneljjed panl@dal paspul pey am eyl pasijeal uoos | ‘skep Apnmis ayy Jo bBuiuue|d ay) ul panjoAul BWRIA] | SB ‘JOASMOH jSem Kjjenioe
2Jed aaneljed 1eym pueisiopun Ajjeas Lupip | se ‘queadjal Ajjenoe juaiaom sadualladxe [euostad Aw eyl pausaduod sem | Ing ‘dioy 01 Addey
sem | ‘wea| 199loid a1eD aAneljjled UIOGMBN BY) Ul POAJOAUI BWO029( 0] payse sem | ‘Jeak 1se| Joquordag ul yoeq bBunesw pieog 1siiy Aw 1y

‘PaAIDdal BARY | Yorqpad) AjoAo| 8yl Jo awos Ag pajquiny uaaq 9ARY | pUB SJUSAD YJOMIBN UM PIAJOAUI
awo2aq 01 Anunuoddo Aiana uayel aney | ‘siuswanoidwi ayew djpy 01 An 01 pue saljiwe) |eal Jo sadualadxa
ayl aensnl 01 ajge aq 01 Auunuoddo ay Joj Inpueyr Apwanxa we | ‘Aep Aloas asoy) ale nok uaym Ajeroadsa
‘ag ued uun [eleuoau e uo Ageq e Buiney sousuadxs bulkjuie) paspul pue |eineuun ‘Ynaiip e 1eym 10b1o) o)
Kseod 0s s ‘|lews sem Ko Jowybnep Aw 1sjiym suonsanb bBunpjse pue jun [eleuosau ay) uo awin yonw os buipuads
Kq A dwis ‘pey Apealje | abpamouy yanw moy pasijeal os|e aAey | Ing ‘Jeak Ssiy) yanw 0S pauies] 9ARY | 'Wed) ay) Jo
ued [99) Ajjeal | pue Bulwodem Ajpwanxe usaqg sey auokiansd ‘uondadxa INOYIM ‘JIDASMOH "dARY 0] djge aq Ajjemoe
pinom | indur ysnw moy ainsun sem | pue sbunssw pieoq Auauenb 01 panwi g pjnom juswaajoAul Aw ybnoy)
| ‘Kjjenmiup “Kpsuaswiwi 11 pakolus aaey | pue NNINMS 241 YIM PaAjoAUl swedaq | 92uls Jeak e Apoexa 1sow|e Si |

NNINAS ‘@Anejuasalday jualed ‘noayosueag ajey

Page 35



6¢

jueid 01 ob saioueubaud |e 10u 1241 WOYBIY 01 Ajued ‘auizebew
slonew 1ou ul paimea) osje sem A10o1s s Ajjop\ "uonewuojul pue yoddns jueasjal 01 bunsodubis pue uun |eleUOSU B Ul Ageq e aney Aew oym
sualed bunioddns ‘auidjaH seousiadx3 paleys Jivy Joj J8SUN|OA B We | pue (1du) 1SnJi| yuIigp|iy)d jeuonen ayl yum buisjiom uaaq os|e aney |

"HAM\9 1e [eaddy big saigeg Aui] oy jJo pie ul yiog ‘Aep wuojiun-uou e ybnoiyy 95/ 3 JoAo pasiel [00Yyds S pueqsny
Aw pue QOO L3 JoA0 pasiel 1ey) 18qol1aQ 1Se| 1Ueou0d e pasiueblo | '00S‘ L3 1sow|e pasiel 1eyl SS9 JO pIe ul 0S|e Ua2u0d e pjay Me| ul Jayle)
pue Jayiow Aw pue 00S'v3 Jono buisies ‘'SS|1g Jo Jleyaq uo uoyieley uopuo ayl uel Jayie) A Awej e se ‘Buisielpun) usag os|e aAey 9\

‘K|1e20| pue Ajjeuoneu yiog syun pue SYJoMIBN UIOgMaN
yum diysuonejal s,sS|1g Jo buiuayibuans ayy 9as |m siyl Ajnjodoy ‘senuad |euoibal mau Jo uawdojanap ay) pue Abajens mau s,5S|19 noge
paloXa We | 'Siy) 01 pJemioj Buoo] we | pue SS9 YUm SUOWILWOD JO 9SNOH 3yl 01 paliAul udaq aAey | ‘pouad |eieuosau ay) buunp buusyieb
eiep 1noqe suoluido sjuaied sayieb o) aseuuonsanb e Jayrebol ind 01 Jorsayoueyy Jo Alsioaiun ay) pue SS9 yum 199foid ol e jo ued usaq
aney | ‘auizebew siy) ul S9pdIJe [RISASS UM ‘Buizebew ssijig i Jo) jaued AlosiApe ay) UO We | pue aping) uonewloju| ualed SS|g pasinal
ay) ol Indui pey | ‘bBuiuien sawos aAIw291 0] pue sdoy ualed bBuiwoosaqg buuspisuod aiem Jo Apealje atom oym Anunod ay) punole woJj siuaied
JoY10 198W 01 |Nyasn sem 1| "HA\G 1e play Aeq uonewoju| siualed ayl papuane | ‘Aleniga u| "SS9 YIM PaAJOAUl BJ0W SWO023q OS|e dARY |

*Joyioue 0] Jlun auo woJj uonisuely ayl buidjay ui [eioyouaq Ajpwaxa ag [|IM 9Say) |99} | pue wea | Jodsuel] ay) 1o} S19|jea] uonewiojul
walted mau ay) buimainal yum panjoaul usaq 1snl aaey | 'siuaied Joj awin |njssans Aj@Wwanxa ue Si SIY) Se ‘pallajsuen) ale salgeq usym Ylm
Jenanued ur djay [im siyl [99) | se “yJomiaN 8y ssosoe sjualed Joj woddns pue uonewlojul aieys 01 suun djay 01 91| pjnom | ‘syiuow Buiwod ay)
ul uo snaoy 01 adoy | buiyiswos si siyy pue uoibai ay) punose sdnoib poddns snouea ay) 19auu0d djay 01 buikn we | ‘sjos yiomoN Aw Jo ued sy

"HY/M 18 1un ay) Joj sisieyd buipaspnsealq
mau Joj bBuipuny Jo 00093 @in2as 01 pabeuew am Alenuer ul ‘dnosb e sy ‘Asuinol siay jo ueis ayr wouy b uoddns yoeas 01 swaled
Jloj Asea si 11 1ey) 0S NuN ayy o asow dnotb ay areibajul 01 adoy pue uwnmne siyy Auognd bBuiseasour aie am Ing ‘syualed mau 1NIdaI pue
yum abebua 01 ynaiyip Ajbuiseaoul sawodaq sey 1| ‘sualed 01 yeads pue buoje awod 0] sjeuolissajold yyeay awodem skemje am pue saniAnoe
Kipuaiy Kgeq Jo suoissas Jaise) op pue Buoje awod 01 saiuedwod [BI0] S)AUI B\ [NJSSOIINS dJB SUOISSDS dSBY) PUB 911UdY) S,UdIp|IYD [B20|
e 1B 198W ap\ ‘010z Auea ul yoeq aJiysiarsadiopy ul dn 19s am dnolb uoddns ayy (sajoeain @i IV bunied) ‘W 1v'D uni 01 djay 01 8nunuoo |

"2Jmny ul 210w puane o) adoy
| pue buneulose) usaq dABY 9SaY | ‘pPaWIojuUl-||[oM We | uaym ajgenieA 1sow si indul Aw |99} | se ‘pasies buiaq aie 1ey) sanssi ayl pue Ajjeaiuld
Buiuaddey si 1eym jo dseib poob e aney | ainsus 01 Ajuiew ‘1eak siyy Aeq MIoMBN penD Syl pue SpUNOy puels) Syl JO SWOS papuane aAey |

"WJOMIBN U1 UIYIIM S)UN [|e Ul Saigeq Jo a1ed ay) 01 Aoy SI a1ed panuad Ajiwe) 1Y) 21nsud 0] JJom 01 91| pjnom | Ing ‘suonsabbns
Ino 01 aAndadsal paweas suun 1sop\ aJieuuonsanb uaied SSI1g 8yl payoune| pue swualed Jaylo 01 ayods am ‘SusIA 8sayl Jo ued sy

‘KIION yum suun z pasusiiadxa Ajuo am se qybisul swos aw aAIb 01 sdjoy 1| Juaiayip oS ||e a1e Aoyl se “YJomiaN
aY) UIylIM S)un ay) Jo 1Sow ISIA 0] 9|ge 8 0] d|gen|eAUl )l PUNO) | pUB Jaquiada( PuUe JBqWBAON Ul SISIA uoneubisap 1un ayl Ul POAJOAUI SBM |

Page 36



0¢

‘doysyiopn Buiuuelq Aemyied e 01 paieaipap sem uooulaye ay| ‘aAndadsiad
sualed e wolj salp Ageq e uaym suaddey 1eym uo maia ssidesoyioyshsd e pue ‘Aqeq peap e buipiebas sjuswainbal jeba| ayy passnasip
oym syiea( pue syuig Jo Jensibay e ‘1019a41q [eJouUn4 e wolj yjel e ‘1sibojoyied syl pue Jauolo?) ayl Jo ajol oyl buuanod Aep puodas e pey uayl o\

"saljiwe) Jo spaau |emuids pue snoibijas ay) bunssw uo
uoissnosip jaued e Aq pamo||o} ‘spaau jemuids pue [einnd ‘yiie) U0 PAIRAUDIUOD SUOISSDS UOOUIBYR By | 'SIUSLIWOI JIdY) J0) payse atam Kgeq Jisy)
150] pey oym siualed gz uaym ‘sualed ay) Jo auo Ag usyeuspun ASAINS e WOJ) YOBgPad) POPNIUI SIY| IUSAD 3| [NJSSans siy) buunp sjeuoissajoid
woly palinbas Asyy 1eym pue ssusiadxs sivy) noge yeads Siuaied om) aAeY 0] 91eUNLIO) BJoM aM SAep 9say) Jo yoea uQ 'dJl| JO pua ay) e
SUONRIBPISUOI [BIIYIS BY) PUB SBIBUOBU J0) d|ge|ieAR S| 1ed dANneljjed Jeym Uo SUOISSSS SWOoS pey uayl 9\\ 'SSIT19 pue NdVYg ' 1DV wouy 9suepinb
[euoneu ay) uo uonewuojul Kg pamojjo} ‘,oAndadsiad 21L1sqo ue, ‘,suibag ) Seop aloym — aled aAneljjed, palonod skep Apnis asayl Jo 1s1l By |

‘Kiwey J1lvy) pue a1euosU ay) Joj aied aaneljjed uo swwelboid uoneonpa buiobuo ue Juswajdwi 01 SI wie ay |
‘s1asinpe [enmuuids pue snoibijal pue sjualed ‘yeis a921dsoy pue Jeis Aiunwwod ‘SIoNSIA Yieay ‘saaimpiw ‘yels buisinu jjeaipaw Buipnjour ‘spue|piiy
3U) SS0JOB 9JBd JO SBale ||B WOJ) S9apuane 0/S Yum ‘L Loz aunr pue Alenuer usamiag a2ejd 3001 smoys speod pue sdoysyiom / JO SaldS Y
‘siasinpe |emuids pue snoibijal pue saanejuasaldal jualed ‘si01eaNp3 9219RId SYIOMIBN ‘Siobuepy yiomiaN ‘sueidiul) pea pajuiodde ay) papnjoul
yoiym dnoub 108foid aie) anneljed e dn 1as pue ‘aied aaneled ul 1salaul ue pey oym suoidwey)/siueynsuo)  pawiodde 1098foid ayy ‘Ajlenmuy

xog AauinoryAiowayy

"SPUB|PIAl 8Y1 Ul SHiun [eleuoau pue Alulaiew 01 saxog Kauinor/Kiowsay apinoid
01 Buipuny paieoojie am 129foid siyl Jo ued se os)y ‘Ageq e jo yieap ay) Joye suaddey 1eym o1 Bunejas abpajmouy ay) pey JJe1S 1eyl aiNsud os|e
pue ‘Kjiwey 1oy pue Ageq buikp ay1 Jo aied punole JJeis uoneanNpa pue wiojul 0} Smoys peod pue sdoysyiom papiroid oym jjers buisinu pue |esipaw
ul 1SoAUl 01 pasn sem buipuny ay] -199foid ay) poddns 01 aimonns uswabeuew bunsixa sey) buisn Joyaboy payiom SyIOMIBN SPUBIPIN + UL

‘pousad jereuoau ay) ul a1ed aneljied buuinbai Ajiwe) pue Ageq ay Jo spasu ay) Uo 10129s Aleyunjon ay)
se [jom se ‘sjeuoissajold yyeay pajjje pue Jjels |eaipaw ‘bBuisinu e Joj Buiuien pue uonesnpa apinoid 01 SN pajgeud SeY pue |njSsa2aNns Sem piq Siy |

'SJUBLINJ0P SSITd PUB VS Pausiignd Apuaoal auy pue (6002 180 dANEI|Ied S,UBIP|IYD 10§ LUONBIOSSY)

.10V, Ag paonpoid Aemyred ayy bunuawajdwi Aq panoidwi pue passaippe sem spasu aied aAneljjed buuinbal saiqeq jo aied ayl 1eY) 2INSUD 0)
sem 109loid ay) Jo wie ay| ‘aied aAneljjed |eleUOSBU 10J YOS LT 10} SHJoMIBN Byl Ag yeaH Jo wawuedaq ayl 01 piemio) Ind sem piq e QL0 1shbny uj

100l01d 88D aAnel|jed [B1BUOSN SPURIPIA 1S9/

Page 37



1€

NNINMS ‘@sinN peaT/iebeuey yiompdN
wessed Kiepy

'$S$922NS 1IN0 Jo yJew abny e se siy) 99s am wea | 199(01d e sy ‘uondo ue se SiYy) PaIapISUOD UBAD dARY 10U PINOM Wea) Jay
"199loid ay) 01 Joud "aied aaneljed Joj 921dSOH |B20] 8Y) 01 JIUN JBY WOJ) palidjsuel) usaq pey Ajiwej 19y pue Ageq e awi 1S41) 91 10J 1ey) pauonuaw
ays ye1 Joy buung -aandadsiad sueid@ISqO Byl Uo ye1 |yl aAeb uep@ISqO peaT oyl Aep 1se| ayl uQ  ¢|nyssadons 1o8foud siy) sem og

"saljiwe) Jo spasu jemuids pue [ea1y1d Jo AlIsIaAIp ay) Jo Buipueisiopun pasealoul uy

's1921JJ0 1s1bojoyIed pUuk S,J8u0l0)) dY) ‘SI01DalI[ |BJBUN ‘syiea pue syuig Jo) sensibay ‘auldipaw

[e19) ‘sooidsoH "6 — a1ed aanel|ed jo seale 1oy1o ul sjeuoissajoid yum syull pabloj 9ABY S92IAIBS [R1RUOSU UIYIM Jjels — Buijiomiau ajgenjep
‘awioy Jo Sa2IAIas |endsoy

|[e20] 01 Ageq peap ay) Jo bulkp ay Jajsuel 01 Juawnoop e adnpoid 01 sadidsoy |eoo] ayr yum Bujiom si 921A19s 1odsued) |eleuoau ay |
‘spue|pi\ @41 Joj paanpoud usaq sey aJed aanel|ed 1o Akemiyred aied pajelbaul uy

‘owin ynaip Kiaa siyy buunp syualed Jo spaau ay) Jo buipueisiopun 1a1ealb e aney jje1s

‘aled anneljed buunp wayl Woddns 01 saljiwe) pue salqeq 1o} d|ge|ieAe Sa2IAISS Jo buipueisiopun Ja1ealb e aney je1s

‘Spue|pI\ @Y1 SSoJoe Jje1s 0] paleullasSIp usag aAeY a1ed aAnel|jed |eleuoau punoJde sjuawnoop Adijod a8y Jo suonepusLILWOdal ay |

AAAAA A A

199(01d 3y} JO S9SS929NS 3Y) JO SWOS UO UOII3|}0Y

" A19soja asow yonw aanoeid Aw 1apisuod aw ayeuw Jim pue bunjonoud ybnoy A19) -onseue) Sem UoISSas S,umolg ealld,
,onnoadsiad sjuaied ay) osje — a1ed arneljed 1oj uoibal ay) uIyIM djqejieae sem jeym no buipui,
,""JO 9JOLL Op 0] P3U dM JBYM MOUY O] PaaU 3/ ‘[njdjay Sem jeym pue SaauUdIIadxd Sjudied
« 1IUB|[8IX3,
, ‘Aqeq bulAp ey 1oj Juem pue pasu Aayi 1eym pjoy bureq pue susied woly sjusuwwod buliesH,
,Jnjasn 1o smain juaied bunyorold jybnoyy A1oA suoissnasip jediyld,
, buiiow sy Ajjeroads 3 ‘noA yueyr ‘Aep aanew.ojur pue bunyorosd-ybnoy; v,

AAAAAAA

:papnjoul sjuedidnied wolj paAIgdal SjUSWIWOD awos “Aep oyl Jo SUSU0I Byl Uo Yoegpaa) aanisod A1oA yum jjam pajenjena sAep Apnis ayy Jo ||

Page 38



[10C sunf
ct LINO HAVO HAISNHINI AALVNIISHA V OL AHIHHAASNVIL Hd LSO STHHAM 9C NVHL SSH'T SHIAVE T1V =«

[e31dSOH eIpUBXI[Y 9Y) & IIAIOP IA0QE A0 (+€ SYIIM € UIY) SSI|
I9)SIDI0AN 0} JJJSURBI) 94+€€-0+LT $191dL1) “S)99M 7€ udYy) SSIT sarurugaad
CE0¥69 0610 “I°L jun AIeN)Id) € 0) PILIdJSuBI) 3 [[IM SHIIM UIM) 10 °INO PI.LIJSURL) 3( 0) SSI|
TEHASOH SSOJOMON. = ey ss0] ANOQE] UI UIWIOM 10 WIO] SIIQEE 10 UON)E)SIT SHIIM ()€ JO ANOQE] UT UIWOA
6€1CSS T8LIO0 ‘IPL
SIFEIS YLON nun aae) [eads Hun d1e) [eradg
[endsoy bﬂmﬁmm YONPPaY [endso eIpuexary [endsoH Ajuno)) pioJaI9H

LI SY99M (+L7> INO J3JSUBI],
UO0I)E)ISIT SHIIM ()+LT< UI IJSURBL],

899996 9LYT0 ‘2L
JOIMIBA\ 29 ATJUOAOD)
s[endsoy A)sIoATun Jjup) [ejeuodN [8207]

NND IS, SHN 2IN0V J9)S3DI0 AN

0TSE ¥2F 1210 2L pap1a0d a.1e3 J0 SPAYT IV pap1Aoad 3aed Jo SPAJ] [TV

spue[lieoHq
puej3ug Jo ueay JU() a8 JAISUNU] [BIBUOIN] JU() a8 JAISUNU] [BIBUOIN
spueaedy - 3sna SN ], uonjepuno
9897 LT9 1710 <AL PUE).IEOH - JSNLL, SR Honepuno
‘endsoy  Uonepuno SHN pue[sSuj jo }aedH SHN S, UdWOAN\ WeySuruLIg
S, USWO A\ WeySuruirg
INNINAS

:SPUEIPIA
1SIAA OY) UIYIIM SHIUQ)
9.18)) JAISUIIU] [BJRUOIN] rendsoy deridoadde 03 Jno
POLIDJSURL) 3 [[IM 9+67-C ANOQE] UI UITO AL
110 PaLIBISUED uonE)SIT $HIIM 97> N0 JIYSUBL],

3(] 0} MO[3( PUE UOIJBISIG SHIIM () UO0NE)SIS SHIIM 97< Ul JJSUBL],
yun dae) eradg jup] [ejeuodN [Bd07]

)sniL, SHN [endsoy adoy poon) ysniy, SHN [endsoy 1)

LAVHO MO'Td HIVO 40 STHAHA'I

EE JInyijos 9 |jompues ‘weybuiw.g “19)S29.10 ‘Pi0joIdH
AHOMLIN NHOIMIN SANYIAIN LSIM NHFHLNOS

Page 39



asinN pea/iebeueiy
YJOMIBN UIOgMBN puepIA 1ISOAN UIayinos
wessed Alep

"3 pue ‘suonnglIuo?
‘"oddns Buinunuos 1ok Joj nok sueyl o1 oy Ajjeuosited pinom | pue ‘sn Jo auo AJoAS pue yoes 01 UMOP SI YJOMIBN SIYl JO SS922NnS ay|

"SaIgeq pUB SWNW JNo Jo S1SaJalul 1saq ay) ul 1ay1abo) 3Jom 0) anunuod
PINOYS ©M pue ‘swie djewn|n Jno WoJj sn Jd19p 1ou pinoys siy) 1eyl Kibuons 199} | Ing ‘sn uodn s jweuns) SHN ayl ‘pauonuaw sey uoslly Sy

"aled 1oj YoM uiyum Buluiewal saigeq ||e moys
M Jodai s, Jeak xau Anyjodoy “A1abins o) 1no uaym saiqeq | Ajuo L1/0L0Z ul K1abins |eleuoau 1oy spue|pljy 1S9 98Ul JO N0 1Wam saigeq
OLL 80/L00Z Ui 10B} U] "aled palinbal ayl aA12231 0] YN Byl JOAO ||e [aAen 01 Buiney atem saljiwe) pue saiqeq pue Aj|eooj 109 e 186 10U pjnod
spue|pIiN 1S9\ @U1 ul K1abing Buipaau saigeq 1) oym s)un ay) 01 asuodsal e se gooz ul pauels sem 109loid |eaibins ay| -bunyiom diysiauned
Jo @ouenodwi BY) SSIBASUOWSP pIeME SIY| Juswelled JO S8SnoH auyl 1e L Loz AInf ,LL 8y1 uo (YyesH d1gnd 1o} a1e1s Jo Kierososs Jspun
Kieyuaweried) diN uoyiN auuy wody  Anusarey uo dnoso Aiejuswelied Aued-|ly ayl, wouy pieme ayy paiydasoe am ey apud 1ealb yum sem j|

*0S Bulop spJemo) }Jom 0] suonudul d1e B18Y) 10U dJe Aay) 8JoyMm pue ‘Sjun [RIRUOSU JNO UIYNIM 19w Apealje a1e Juswnaop
SIy} ulyum ‘(,spaepueis, wiay Aew siayio 1eym o) sajdioulld ayl jo Auew ey asijeal o1 buiuaueay Aiaa si 3| sajdiduid ayy bunssw spiemoy
Bunpiom si ABaiens yiomBN aul (6002) S2IAISS [RIBUOSN J0J WMj00| ayl Jo uonealgnd ayl Buimojjo) 1eyy selensuowap Loday |enuuy SiyL

‘'spiepueis [euoneu paaibe o0y pue ‘awn ybu ay) 1e aae(d 1ybu ayy
ul 24e2 1ybir ay) A19291 Spue|pIA 1SOAN Bl Ul S3ljiwe) pue salgeq ainsud pue Jay1abol yJom 01 anunuod o) aney am sueaw abessaw Jeajd siy|

., Juawabebus uayibuans pue mausl 0] S10KS N0 JO 11BaY dYy] 18 SYI0MIBU 9SaY]
ind o) uem | oS ‘sAemyied pajeibajul ssosoe aied jo Aujenb ayy arosduwi 01 18Y18b0o) BLI0I SI01ISS JUBIBHIP WOy SUBIDILID a1oym 82ejd ay) se
WBISAS mau ay) Ul SYI0MIdU 10J 8j0J [BNUSI € SI 919l ‘SHN 8yl ul piemioj Aem ayj aie SyIomiap ., 1yl paiels (L1og 1udy 1) uosjoydiN piaeq

SjuaWIlIo) buipnouo)

EE IINYIj0S 7 [[]oMmpues ‘weybuiwiig ‘19)1S92I10)\\ ‘PI0JoIaH
NHOMILIN NHOIMIN SANYIAIN LSIM NHIHLNOS

Page 40



ve

JURISISSY DANN2DXT ‘YIPaJd|\ BSaId |
asInN peaT/lebeuey yiomia ‘wessed Aiep

UI9(IN0S/DI0" SHIOMISUUIOGMOU MMM :9)SIN
JousyumiuessedArew
YN SQUIDd-[INYIOS @ YlpaJoll eSa1o) ‘lrewq

(luBISISSY ©ANNJBXT ‘YIPaIBIA BSBIa]) LSYY 9FL LZLO
(@sinN pea/lebeuely yiomiaN essed Alepy) €9y 9y LZLO  :duoydale |

Ndv 069

[Inyljos

peoy plojjens

21eo) Ssiell

100]4 €

:ssaippe buimojjo) ayy 1e paseq Apualind si pue ‘1sni| aie) Alewud [Inyijos Aq paisoy si JoMmaN ay |
:SJ9quiNU 19BUOD pue SSaIpPpPY

‘salenb Aue yum djay 01 Addey sAkemje si pue ‘uonewlojul jo uonngiisip pue 1divdal Joj aseq |enuad e sapinoid 921)j0 YJomBN ay |

921}J0 YJomiaN ayy bunoejuo)n

Page 41



.’S9Iqeq pue SIAYIOW JOJ SIIIAIAS dA0IdWI pue dUI[WEass 0} wre [[e Yorym sAemiyed ared pue sainpadoid ‘sarorjod jurof padofaaap osfe aaey
9\ ‘sduraes 3500 uol[[iu {3 A[erewrxoldde pue ‘sioyjow pue saiqeq J0J dIed 19)}aq Ul SUN[NSAI ‘SIIIAISS [BIISINS [BIRUOSU JO UOIIBUIPIO-0D pUE
a1ed jo Ajenb paaoiduwir aaey 1s150[01BUORU SUNISIA PUB 9SINU OBANNO [BIISINS [BJEUOSU |/ "UOISAI JO JNO PAlIdJsuel) SaIqeq JO Joquinu ay) ul
UOT)ONPal p[ojua) B ul pajnsal sey 30afoid ay ], -sansst Ayoeded pue Ajfenb passaippe yorym ‘wes) 109[01J [BI13ING [BIBUOSN SPUBRIPIA ISIAN O}
JO YIom 9y} sas1ud00a1 preme SIY], NIV U Aq pasiuSoal usaq Sey YIom Ino Jey) pajySI[ap aIe dp\, :PaIeIS 9I00JA YINY pue juesse AIRJA

"dJN UOITIA duuy YI[eal] d1[qn  JIoJ a1el§ Jo AIeja1dag Jopu ) A1ejusuwrer[Jed Aq ‘Juswel[Ied Jo S9SNO}] ‘UOI[IAR] 9JBIIS ], oY)
1e ‘A[n[ 11 Aepuo]y uo uondadar pwwns (NHJJV) Amuerejy uo dnoiqy Arejuswerfred ALed-[[y oY) Je pIeme IIay) Yim pajuasald sem wea) ayJ,

‘sjuowa[ddns [ejeuard areoeudaij Aq paiosuods sem preme Sy, 'SI0IAISS Ajtuiajew [eoo] Suraoidwr ur yiom aAreAouur Jo gurardsur
93pa[MOouoR YOIYM ‘SpIeme ) Je A1089)eD _S9Iqeq pue SIdYIOW J0J SauwodIno arolduwr 1o sanifenbaur yireay ssaIppe 0} SadIAISS Ul JuswaAoxdwt

payJew ISOJ\[, dY} JO JSUUIM dY) PIWEU dIoM SYIOMIDN UIOqMAIN Anuno)) yoelg pue airysdoiyg ‘aIyspiojjelS pue ‘Spue[pIjy IS9A\ UIOUYINOS

(NDS) 1un) aIe) [eroadg
(NDS)  Mun 8wy [eroadg
(NN'T) U] [eIRUOSN] [8D0]

nu) Aqeq pue I3y YONPPIY
nup) reyeuod) adoy pooo)
JNU() [eIBUOI)] JI)ISIIION

age 42

U [e213ING [e)dSOY S UdIp[IY) Emauﬁip@m

(NDS) Nu a1e) [eradg nun Aqeq ase)) renadg piojosdy
(N.LIN) MU dIe)) SAISUSU] [BIRUODN] )U() [eIRUOd) SPUB[LIBIH]
(NONT) MU [ereuOsN [Bd0] nun) rereuod) fendsoy £11)H

(NLIN) Mu[) 91e)) SAISUSIU] [RIRUOSN  JIU[) [EJRUOIN S, USWIOA\ WRYSUTULIIYg

:sasrduwod NNJAMS

WI™YINO0S/GI0 SHIOMISUUIOGMIU MMM //.dNY

SOVV/LGYY 9V.L 1210

Nd¥ 064

[Ytos

9len) SIell]

ISNIT, aIe)) \QmEEm [InyrjoS 0/

[IYI[0S 23 [[eMpueg .EmswEE:m ‘19)S9JI0A\ ‘PIOJoIOY
MUOMIAN NHOIMAN SANVIAIN LSAM NYHHL10S




Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black Country
Newborn Network
Incorporating the Maternity Network

Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



CONTENTS

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

FOREWORD

INTRODUCTION

NETWORK ACTIVITY/WORKLOAD

NETWORK STANDARDS ASSESSMENT

NETWORK CARE PATHWAYS DEVELOPMENT

NETWORK SUB GROUPS

WEST MIDLANDS NEONATAL TRANSFER SERVICE (NTS)
NEONATAL SURGICAL OUTREACH NURSE POST 2010
MATERNITY NETWORK

NETWORK EDUCATION & TRAINING

NEONATAL PALLIATIVE CARE PROJECT

FINANCIAL REPORT 2010/11

KEY MILESTONES/NETWORK ACHIEVEMENTS APRIL 2010 — MARCH 2011
PLANS FOR THE NEXT 12 MONTHS APRIL 2011 — MARCH 2012

CONCLUDING COMMENTS

Page 46



FOREWORD

It has been my great pleasure and privilege to Chair the Newborn Network for eight years and as this is my last
Annual Report as Chairman, | wish to reflect on the Network throughout that period and not just the last year.

The Network’s aim is ‘Better Services for Mothers and Babies’ and | am happy for our achievements as a network
over the years to be judged against that aspiration.

The Network does not deliver front line services; its role is to help and support those who do, to deliver high quality
services to our mothers and babies. We have consistently done this by developing a systematic and sustainable
framework of quality and standards. Whether through the initial designation of units, our Neonatal Guidelines or the
Standards Assessment Toolkit we have produced useable quality frameworks which help our units achieve the
highest quality standards and the best outcomes.

Alongside the quality framework, we have worked using the unique nature of the Network to bring together Clinicians
and Managers from across our Network to learn, to develop and to support each other in the pursuit of our aims. The
education and training we have sponsored and provided has enabled both individuals and teams to raise their
standards and achieve their personal and professional ambitions.

| was particularly pleased that in 2007 the Network was instrumental in establishing the West Midlands Neonatal
Transfer Service, an essential part of an efficient and effective newborn service that had been missing.

| am also particularly proud of the role that the Parent Representatives have played in shaping and developing both
the Network and services. Their drive, enthusiasm and challenge have been a major contributor to our success as a
network.

Throughout the Network’s life, it has had to change and adapt as circumstances and policy have shifted and it is only
right and proper that we do. Whether it's responding to BAPM standards, the “Toolkit for High Quality Neonatal
Services” or the QIPP challenge, the Network has constantly adapted to ensure we remained relevant and effective.

The future looks different for us all as the NHS is once again reformed. What is increasingly clear however is that
clinical leadership, the integration of care along pathways not organisational boundaries, the systematic and
sustainable framework of quality and standards, and real meaningful patient involvement are at the heart of the
Government’s policy for the future.

The way we have worked and delivered our aims as a Network is a clear example of how the NHS must work in the
future. | look forward to the Network’s way of working being developed further across the NHS.

| could not finish without thanking everyone who participated in the Network Board or its Sub Groups or made a
contribution to our work. | have enjoyed Chairing the Network because we have made a real difference to mothers
and babies, but | could not have done that without your help, support and enthusiasm.

| would in particular like to thank Ruth Moore and the Network Team, and Andy Spencer our Lead Clinician for your
help, support and hard work.

| shall continue to follow your progress with interest and wish you all the best for the future.

Jon Crockett
Chair, Staffordshire, Shropshire and Black Country Newborn Network

3 Page 47



INTRODUCTION

During the first half of 2010/11 the Network Manager/Lead Nurse role was undertaken jointly

between Ruth Moore and Chris Thomas.

Individual Trust visits were conducted in the second half of 2010/11 in order to;
e Review the Trust’'s gap analysis with the Neonatal Toolkit for High — Quality Neonatal

Services' and identify areas that require network support

e Discuss the Network standards assessment tool and demonstrate the new functions

available

e Discuss the development of appropriate care pathways for women and babies within the
Further information about the
development of the care pathways can be found later in the Annual Report on page 7.

Network with consideration of each hospital’s position.

Chris concluded her secondment as Network
Manager/Lead Nurse at the end of Oct 2010 when Ruth returned following completion of her
year long part time secondment with the East Midlands Specialised Commissioning Group.

Ho. | Duality szatements

In-izero and pastnatal iranstets for nednala spacal, Mgh-dependancy, NENsEve
1 amd surDical care fMiDw parinatal network guidelines and cane calnways that ars
nsEgrated weh pifer materniy and newbim newol guidelines and cathwsys.

Metwons, commissioners and providens oF Speciaist Nednaial cars ynsenaks ar
annia nesds ascesemen: and ensure 232h RefK Nas adequate capacily

SOer3ia Neonalal BETVICEs Ndws 3 SUMCENL, EhIS0 2nd CompeEley
miuzidissplinary Wk mes.

MEonals ranster senvicEs provide DabieE wilh safe and sMiclen: ranstens to and
from specialist neonatal mare.

PafENis of Da0SE recelving SPSCialst neonatal Lare Irs encourages and
SUDDDNED 10 b2 iwwolved 0 plarming and prowiding care for their baty. and reguiar
communication wih cHRical S13T CoouTe thrugnol e care pathway

i

8 Mathers of bables recaldng specails: neonatal care are suppormad o slar and
coninue breasifeeding, AouBNg beNp SuUpDoned 10 express mEK

Bables recalving spesalist nepnaial care nawe IReir health ang sosia care plans
T coordinated i heln ensune 3 safe and effeotive ramsEion fTom RosSpa’ 18
community care

Erovigers 7 s0ecislist neonatal sendees Maintam 3souTals ard compiste dats,
5 | and actrealy paricipate m natioral cinica audis ant applicanle ressarch
PrOgTammas.

B Baiies recelving Epecsdist neordial care hidwe thelr health oulcames mMonEonea

The Network’s Standards Assessment Tool is currently being updated to
ensure that it reflects all newly published national standards and principles
relating to neonatal care which will facilitate the Network and the individual
Trusts to assess themselves against the standards and formulate action

plans where any gaps against the standards exist.

Ruth Moore
Network Manager/Lead Nurse

The National Institute for Health and Clinical
Excellence (NIC 2) Specialist Neonatal Care
Quality Standards® were published at the end
of October 2010.

Nine quality statements were devised by the
Topic Expert Group which drew on the Toolkit
for High Quality Neonatal Services', Standards
for Hospitals Providing Neonatal Intenswe and
High Dependency Care® and Standards for
Maternity Care: Report of a Working Party
Each quality statement is accompanied by
quality measures which aim to improve the
structure, process and health outcomes of
specialist neonatal care. The quality standard
requires that the physical, psychological and
social needs of babies and their families are at
the heart of all care given.

NHS|

Parents’ experience of Neonatal Care

What is the survey about?

mwsﬁmmmysmmnmmmmmum

this questionnaire. This is the neonatal umit where your baby stayet last (whers your baty
wasd-sd\ameuirum F your baby receved most of TEIr cae N 3 NECAALA unit in ancther
hospital, there ars some extra questions in szefion J About where they scent most of their fime.
These uns may have been neonatal imensive care Lnts (NICLY, high oepersency uniss
{HDUY or special care taby units {SCBLY
Tris is 3 national survey and your Vews 7S very mDorant in heiming us Fnd oLt what parsets
TNk of neonaal senvoEs anc Now ey tan be improves

In 2010/11 the Network supported all the units to take part in the first
national parent survey of neonatal care. The development of the survey
followed the launch of the Toolkit for High Quality Neonatal Services in
November 2009 and was taken forward by BLISS, the special care baby
charity with support from the Newborn Networks.

Researchers at Picker Institute have coordinated the survey. Using Picker
methodology the survey was conducted in 3 waves during 2010/11, all
data has now been collected and reports from the survey are due to be
published in Autumn 2011.

The Network parent experience survey stopped whilst the national survey
was undertaken. The Network will work with all units to decide the future
approach to take with regards to collecting, understanding and using
parents experiences of neonatal care in the Network to improve services
for babies and their families.

Who should complete the questionnaire?
The questons showld te answersd by the parsnys| or guard anis; of the babybabes
marred on the front of the envelope.

Completing the questionnaire

i you have hac 3 pravious experence o a bacy who was carea for on 3 necnatal unt
please only fink 300Ut your Most recent experiencs arswerng these questions.
Tre word ‘baby’ & wsed throughent fo refer 1o either a single baby or mare than one
Eaby

Tre questonnaire should take arouna 30 minues to complste For most guesbons,
please tick clearly msios one box [ using a black o blus pen. For some questions you
may be asked to fick more than one box. Not all sections will apply fo pou. Sometimes
)oumlﬁmmewxywhm sicked has an msinuction to go bo another question. By
Sllowing e mstucbons carsh Iyymwim;wugm;mmacmapwmym

Please do Not write Your NaMe OF F00TESS anVWnere on the questionnairs.
Taking part in this survey is veluntary. Your answers will be treated in
confidence.

Questions or help?

f you have ary questions, o f you weuld like to complste the questionnars over te phone or
with the help of an interpreter, please cail Fresphons 0508 157 2273 and we wil 60 our best to
helo. Tre ime 5 opsn Zam< 3pm Monday fo Frcay.

Vormie Sy SN et 0T o 1

1 Department of Health (DH) (2009) Toolkit for high quality neonatal services. Available from www.dh.gov.uk
2 National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) Specialist Neonatal Care Quality Standards. Available from
http://www.nice.org.uk/quidance/qualitystandards/specialistneonatalcare/specialistneonatalcarequalitystandard.jsp

3 British Association of Perinatal Medicine (BAPM) (2010) Standards for hospitals providing neonatal intensive and high dependency care.

Available from www.bapm.org

4. Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (RCOG) (2008) Standards for maternity care: report of a working party. Available from

WWW.rcog.org.uk

Page 48




NETWORK ACTIVITY/WORKLOAD

Activity/Workload

Each neonatal unit changed to the Clevermed BadgerNet neonatal data collection system from 1 April 2010 following
the recommendation to move to this standardised system by the Network Data Group. This has enabled more
detailed activity reports to be produced for this years’ Annual Report which in the future will facilitate more meaningful
comparison of data between Units, Networks and Regions as nearly all units in England use this system.

Table 1 The number of admissions in the
Number of Babies admitted for a single network SSBCNN from 1 Apr 2010 to 31 Mar 2011 Gestation network has increased by almost
Gestation| RWH UHNS | S&TH | DGOH | WMH |MidStaffs| Total 23% compared with 2009/10
Less than 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 data, with the most significant
22 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 increase being at S&TH (70%
23 7 4 1 4 1 0 17 increase). The change in the
24 8 6 6 2 0 2 24 data collection system to
25 9 10 0 1 3 2 25 BadgerNet has enabled some
26 13 7 9 3 4 1 37 neonatal activity to be captured
27 19 9 5 6 5 4 48 that was previously missed
28 12 9 13 5 14 2 55 including babies being cared for
29 21 21 4 13 13 3 75 on post natal wards. Further
30 16 20 9 10 9 2 66 investigation is required to
31 12 30 12 15 15 7 91 ensure units are entering activity
32 25 22 19 25 21 13 125 data in the same way to be
33-36 188 115 229 162 134 77 905 confident in its comparison and
37-42 224 174 433 174 190 % 1289 to understand the implications of
43 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 the change in activity from
Greater than 43 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 previous years.
Total 554 428 740 420 409 207 2758
The inclusion of the breakdown
Table 2 of admission by gestation/ birth
Number of Babies admitted for a single network SSBCNN from 1 Apr 2010 to 31 Mar 2011 Birthweight  weight in the annual report will
Birthweightf RWH | UHNS | S&TH | DGOH | WMH |Midstaffs| Total be useful to review the impact of
Less than 500 2 1 1 0 0 0 2 implementing _the care pathways
500-749 23 7 3 7 5 3 53 on where babies are born.
750-999 32 25 15 8 12 4 96 ) o
1000-1249 32 29 16 14 21 9 121 Despite the ap;;ar ent s:gn/f/can)tc
1250-1499 31 32 18 23 19 6 129 mgr ease in & tﬁ nur;vberk o
1500-1749 20 44 34 32 33 15 178 g 0%29’10’;; n ph e fne worl I /r;
1750-1999 45 35 41 40 50 17 28 ° " e spi 3 care leve
2000-2499 190 55 189 %2 % 37 59| "’l"y S Shows at‘ » ecr ea//se ‘tm
2500-2999 70 60 128 61 62 39 40| INtensive CI‘IW e dac ity In a “;77{‘7;
3000-3499 44 62 130 68 49 24 377 Z” 0\(/jer a ecrte_a_?e in lfg
Greater than 3500 65 78 160 75 62 53 493 ngf en kenc;; n dac 'g’ y s'”/z; 'f'canet
Total 554 428 740 420 409 207] 2758  STWOrK . lgnitical
e increase in special care activity
Number of babies and total care level days by hospital Compared tO 2009/10 data_
Number of babies and total days of Intensive care
Unit|Unit Level |Babies Less than 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33-36 37-42 43 Greater than 43 Total
RWH|NICU 569 (9] 0l 133 223 231 342 357 10§ 79 74 14 84| 129 129 [y (] 189¢
UHNS|NICU 444 (9] 15 9 95| 19§ 149 93] 53 114 74 87| 43 98| 109 (Y 0] 1137
S&THILNU 763 0| 0| 53] 193 (o] 108§ 86 144 45 34| 20| 24| 104 169 0 0 980
DGOHLNU 433 0| 0| 44 15| 13| 14| 71 22| 34 31 28 25 150 47| (o) 0] 454
WMHLNU 422 0| 0| 1] 1] 12| 5 49 97 47 52 60 24 56 53 (o) (o] 457
Mid StaffgSCU 207 0 0 0 2 2 0 3 0 0 3 10 3 28| 5 0 0 56|
Total 284 0| 15] 240 529 454 61§ 659 42§ 319 268 219 203 561 499 0| 0| 4974
Number of babies and total days of High Di d care
Unit|Unit Level |Babies Less than 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33-36 37-42 43 Greater than 43 Total
RWHINICU 569 0l 0 50| 41 132 145 315 169 141 159 38| 68| 107 95| 0| 0] 1451
UHNS|NICU 444 (9] 0 0] 53] 124 192 2594 151 274 109 97| 53] 99| 93] 0| 0] 149¢
S&THLNU 763 (9] 0 33] 60| 0] 103 61 179 59 31 27| 2 41 69 0| 0] 656
DGOHLNU 433 (] 0 0] 13 27| 71 54 64 117 66| 31 43 38| 87 0| (] 611
WMHLNU 422 0| 0| 0] 0] 21]] 28 131 239 57 48| 85 52 102 123 (o) 0] 886
Mid StaffgSCU 207 0| 0| 0] 0] 0] 0] 0] 6) 4 20| 5 27 14 32 0] (] 108§
Total 284 0| 0| 83| 167 304 539 819 799 64§ 415 283 245 401 499 0| 0| 5202
Number of babies and total days of Special care
Unit|Unit Level |Babies Less than 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33-36 37-42 43 Greater than 43 Total
RWH|NICU 569 0| 0 30 49| 142 62 185 553 364 389 29§ 552 1882 1347 (8 (9] 5859
UHNS|NICU 444 0) 0 0 38| 192 152 199 20§ 521 462 619 449 1227 819 0 0 4877
S&THLNU 763 0 0 44 131 0 174 35 462 162 226 381 410 1949 1679 0 0 5643
DGOHLNU 433 0| 0| 0] 16| 30 86 149 115 259 445 382 551 1518 644 (o) 0] 4194
WMHLNU 422 0| 0| 0] 13| 78 29 88 382 219 139 344 289 1309 89§ (o) 0] 3781
Mid StaffgSCU 207 0| 0| 0] 18| 6] 3 14 53] 64 54 134 212 577 389 (o) 0] 1523
Total 284( 0| 0| 74 265 448 506 665 1773 159q 1715 2154 2459 8453 5779 0| 0| 25877

Page 49



Table 4

Number of admissions by referral type for a single network SSBCNN between 1 Apr 2010 and 31 Mar 2011

Admissions from Within the network

Referral Type| RWH UHNS S&TH DGOH WMH |MidStaffs| Total
Inborn Booked 451 372 686 384 373 182 2448
Inborn Booked Elsewhere 42 13 23 9 14 2 103
Inborn- unbooked 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Readmission 5 2 2 7 24 5 45
Postnatal Transfer In 27 14 3 4 6 7 61
Home Admission 3 0 3 0 0 0 6
Cannot Derive 2 0 3 1 3 4 13
Total 530 401 720 405 420 200 2676
The inclusion of  the
Admissions from Outside the network' breakdown of admissions by
Referral Type] RWH UHNS S&TH DGOH WMH |MidStaffs| Total referral type in the Annual
Inborn Booked 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Report he/ps the unit and
Inborn Booked Elsewhere 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .
network to review where the
Inborn- unbooked 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .
Readmission 2 15 14 7 6 4 68 demand for neonatal services
Postnatal Transfer In 2 25 14 20 9 9 101 is coming from and the impact
Home Admission 2 3 7 1 2 3 18 on capacity ~management.
Cannot Derive 0 1 1 1 0 3 This will also be useful to
Total 48 a 35 29 18 16 190 review  the  impact  of
— implementing the care
Total Number of Admissions thwavs on where babies
Referral Type| RWH UHNS S&TH DGOH WMH |MidStaffs| Total pa b Y
Inborn Booked 451 372 686 384 373 182 2448 are born.
Inborn Booked Elsewhere 42 13 23 9 14 2 103
Inborn- unbooked 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Readmission 27 17 16 14 30 9 113
Postnatal Transfer In 51 39 17 24 15 16 162
Home Admission 5 3 10 1 2 3 24
Cannot Derive 2 1 3 2 4 4 16
Total 578 445 755 434 438 216 2866

Table 5.

Number of distinct babies admitted for a single network and those that died SSBCNN
Babies admitted from 1 Apr 2010 to 31 Mar 2011 Gestation and Birthweight

Network Admissions and Deaths

Gestation|Admissions|Deaths
Less than 22 0 0
22 1 1
23 20 11
24 27 11
25 29 4
26 41 8
27 56 3
28 62 4
29 78 4
30 71 il
31 93 4
32 129 3
33-36 930 3
37-42 1329 8
43 0 0
Greater than 43 0 0
Total 2866 65

Network Admissions and Deaths Overall number of deaths in the

Birthweight|Admissions|Deaths network by gestation and birth
Less than 500 4 » weight are included for the first
500-749 61 19 time in this Annual Report.
750-999 109 15 ,
A more detailed process to
1000-1249 133 7 . .
review neonatal deaths s
1250-1499 136 4 . , .
currently being piloted in the
1500-1749 184 4
T = 2 network by the QIPP Group to
o — ; identify if any avoidable factors
- can be learnt and shared across
bl el - the network in order to improve
005 0 : outcomes for mothers and
Greater than 3500 510 3 babies
| Total 2866 65
Transfers

In 2010/11 WMNTS undertook 271 transfers for the units in our Network. There
were 57 transfers out of the region, 44 of these were appropriate (35 appropriate
surgical transfers to Liverpool, 4 appropriate transfers for surgical/specialist care
not available in our Network, 5 appropriate back transfers of babies to units closer
to home). 13 transfers outside of the Network were inappropriate, that is outside of
the normal care pathway for babies in that unit, 7 due to cot capacity, 4 for surgery
[4 less than in 2009/10] and 2 for cardiac reasons [2 less than in 2009/10]. There
were a further 6 inappropriate transfers (3 less than in 2009/10) between units in
our Network for cot management reasons. WMNTS also performed 25 back
transfers of babies into the network. It is likely that these babies were born outside
of the network as a result of an in-utero transfer possibly due to a lack of capacity.
This is being monitored more closely in 2011/12 to understand where the
pressures are; maternity and/or neonatal, through the exception reporting linked to
the care pathways.

The number of inappropriate transfers to neonatal units outside of our Network is

not significant wﬁégélmrk meeting its target of keeping over 95% of babies 6
within the normal athway for our Network.



NETWORK STANDARDS ASSESSMENT

The quarterly Network Standard Assessment Snapshot Reports at the Board meetings identify the progress units
have made in meeting the standards during 2010/11. By March 2011 78% of all tests were fully met in the Network,
compared with 73% in February 2010, with a further 8% partially or almost met. Only 5% of tests were not met. 9% of
tests were unanswered, these were mostly relating to the few maternity service tests within the tool.

Below is the table and graphs from the March 2011 snapshot discussed at the Network Board meeting.

Network Status
Test Test Test
Test Un Test Not Partially Almost Fully
Answered Met Met met Met
Parents & Families 4 4 12
NNU Staffing 8 12 8
NNU Equipment & Facilities * 16 1 3
Maternity Service Staffing 14 2 2
Maternity Services Facilities & Equipment 0 0 0
Maternity and Neonatal Clinical Governance 30 0 17
Clinical Practice 12 2 19
Totals 84 21 61
Breakdown of Network Overall Test Status
100% -
90%
80% A
70% A
60% -
50% A
40% -
30% A
| ==|
20% A -
10% - -
0% =
8 2 s 8 8 o 8 8 S
E i 5- 2o Ser SLE g o
i o 58 € wge 2CE =
o 2 FES £5 225 EEs ks
£ = Le g Esg B58 £
5 pd = T z ©
o = =

During 2010/11 work was completed to develop the tool to include a facility for Trusts to export their data from the tool
which can then be used as evidence of progress and to develop business cases as required for unmet areas. Visits to
each Trust were completed towards the end of 2010/11 to demonstrate the new features to both neonatal and

maternity colleagues.

Work was commenced to update the tool to reflect the Principles in the Toolkit for High Quality Neonatal Services and
the NICE Standards for Neonatal Care which were published in October 2010. This work will be completed in

2011/12.

7 Page 51



NETWORK CARE PATHWAYS DEVELOPMENT

“Neonatal Networks should lead the provision of neonatal care throughout the population

(NHS| they serve.” (Toolkit for High-Quality Neonatal Services, 2009). Key objectives include:
ensure babies and their families receive the highest quality of care, as close to

R home as possible;
- help hospitals providing maternity and neonatal care to work together effectively to
plan patient care and optimise resources;
create new clinically-effective pathways of care, covering all aspects of care and
treatment including prevention;

- The Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black Country Newborn Network has undertaken work to
l_ develop care pathways appropriate to the individual designation level of each Neonatal Unit
@Mz

in the Network.

Stakeholders (Neonatal and Maternity services
Doctors, Nurses & Midwives, Managers and
Commissioners) were invited to participate in a
consultation event in September 2010 in order to
influence the development of appropriate care
pathways in our Network.

At the event there were short presentations about
developing care pathways from the Network
Management Team as well as the use of care
pathways from the Commissioners’ perspective.

The majority of the event was group work to gain
stakeholder input into the development of
appropriate care pathways within Network which
also identified future work to be done.

Care Pathways Consultation Event

During the afternoon of the event each area completed a draft care pathway template
for their neonatal unit. s S o

Following the event unit visits were held with the Network Management Team to
discuss the content of the draft care pathways, the majority of which was agreed by the
Network Management Team with a few exceptions relating to the gestational cut off for
the Local Neonatal Units and also the location of the cooling services in the Network. Neonatal Clinical Pathways

Progress has been reported through the bimonthly Network QIPP Group and at the
quarterly Network Board. The process and care pathways have been collated into a
Network Care Pathway document which includes an exception reporting process and a
Parent Information Leaflet. The Specialised Commissioners have been involved
throughout the process.

[GRAFT TEMPLATE
ttaParcenice. Thiosssies  Biask Sountry
emzerm wewens

|care Pattuesy excopeon eson

|
I
Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black C oce. I
opsire s ek couny [YTATS Sr——
LOmo/RTe FIEROY T3S OF ATk PanERT |
% e o e e
Care for Premature & Sick Babies in the S DRt o1 e R 5 ST
Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black Country
Newborn Network

[ —————— I T N

- ey
A —
[ o= = -
Bener seraces M DaBS N0 fEMeas
o
Parent Information Leaflet [

Page 52 8



NETWORK SUB GROUPS

The Network Sub Groups undertake the main work of the Network. Each Group reports to the Network Board
Existing Groups in 2010/11

Group Chair

Parent Representatives Group Julie Ebrey

QIPP Group (Formerly the R,D & A Group) Sanjeev Deshpande
Workforce Development Group Chris Thomas
Guidelines Group Kate Palmer
Equipment Group Babu Kumararatne
Feeding & Nutrition Group (Formerly the Breastfeeding Group) Gina Hartwell

Long Term Follow Up Group Chrisantha Halahakoon
Resuscitation Group Dave Roden

Transfer User Group (Formerly the Joint Transport Group) Alyson Skinner

Network Groups Summary of Key Achievements in 2010/11: ‘

e Monthly Parent Support Groups were commenced in Dudley and Wolverhampton -
and the Parent Support Group in Stafford was re-launched

e Network Parent Information Leaflets on Cranial ultrasound and Echocardiogram Halning Hande
were agreed and a Parent Information Leaflet on how care is organised in our e o Moo
Network was drafted i e

e Feedback on the use of the third edition of the guidelines was collected and :
presented | S

e Work was commenced to develop agreed West Midlands neonatal clinical
indicators

e GCP training requirements in the Network were collated

e Approval was gained to monitor mortality and serious incidents across the Network e e e
and work commenced to agree the process for this

e Training for Network staff observing and learning from Betty Hutcheon undertaking Bayley Assessments was
completed

¢ All units were able to enter Bayley assessment data directly into the Badgernet
syste m 5"""“’"?;’:.2':.:":5‘.1’3:3:3 51':'3

¢ Annual Neonatal Breastfeeding Study Day attended by 21 delegates

e Network Neonatal Nursing Foundation Programme accredited by Wolverhampton
UniVerSity Parent Information Leaflet

A

113

Echocardiogram

Network Groups Summary of Key Objectives for Next 12 Months:
¢ Assist the neonatal units in the setting up of Helping Hands Groups in Walsall and
Shropshire
e Provide an advisory role to discharge planning teams in the Network
e Agree and implement a process with the WMQI to monitor and report on agreed
neonatal clinical indicators
e Collate and review neonatal safety incidents (NSls), recommend and disseminate
the lessons learned to the stakeholders
Monitor and share learning of neonatal mortality within the Network
Undertake a Network Education Survey to identify topics for Network Study Days
Publish a fourth edition of the guidelines in Autumn/Winter 2011
Widen participation in the neonatal guidelines to include South West Midlands Newborn Network
Produce a report of network 2 year outcomes
Hold an ultra sound scan machine equipment evaluation event in the network
Update Network Resuscitation Guideline in line with updated Resuscitation Council NLS guidance
Audit breastfeeding practice in neonatal units to ensure uniformity of practice across the Network

9 Page 53



WEST MIDLANDS NEONATAL TRANSFER SERVICE (WMNTS)

Activities

15 W
Jackie Harrison

Transport Nurse
Consultant

transfer and unit could not wait). See Figure 1.

Figure 1

WMNTS continues to provide 24 hours, 7 days a week care for infants in the West Midlands
area. This year the budget was increased further to include another 1 WTE Advanced Neonatal
Nurse Practitioner and a full time Consultant Post. Dr. A. Philpott was appointed and came into
post in February 2011.

Overall, the activity for the year has reduced by 9% due to the launch of neighbouring transfer
services (average transfer requests per month 129 compared to 141 in the previous year).

WMNTS performed 81% of the transfers requested during this period. 12% of transfers were
cancelled by referring units (e.g. change in baby’s condition, availability of cots, parental
consent or inappropriate referral). 7% were refused by WMNTS (staffing issues or already on

160

WMNTS activities for 2010 to 2011

Alex Philpott
Neonatal Transport
Consultant

@ Requests
m| Transferred

Breakdown of the transfers performed
for each network were; Southern West
Midlands Newborn Network (71%),
Staffordshire, Shropshire and Black
Country Newborn Network (22%) and
Central Newborn Network and other
networks (8%). See Figure 2.

Only 9 babies were transferred out of
region due to lack of capacity
compared to 22 in the previous year.
See Figure 3.

21 babies were transferred for cooling
therapy and all reached the target
temperature.

Figure 3

Figure 2
Transfers Performed for each network 2010 - 2011
1200 1069
1000 - 887
800 4 @ Requested
600 - | Transferred
400 | 335 271 Oref/canc
= -_\ s =
0 iy S Mo
SWMNN SSBCNN CNN Others
Funding

Transfer Out Of Region DueTo Lack of Capacity

SWMNN SSBCNN

20 until February 2011).
15
10 m 2009-2010
= 2010-2011
5 m
0

Page 54

Pay budget for the year £1,080,723 (expenditure
was £990,560 due to consultant post not filled

Non pay budget was

£401,653 and expenditure was £401,653.

10




WEST MIDLANDS NEONATAL TRANSFER SERVICE (WMNTS) CONTINUED...

Staffing

The team consists of:

1 Consultant Lead (from February 2011)

3 PAs Southern West Midlands Newborn Network Consultant Lead
2 PAs Staffordshire, Shropshire and Black Country Newborn Network Consultant Lead (to be appointed)
1 Nurse Consultant

4 Advanced Neonatal Nurse Practitioners

3 Trainee Advanced Neonatal Nurse Practitioner

1 Transport Fellow

8 Nurses (7.5 WTE)

1 Cot Locator Clerk

1 Administrator

Education

The WMNTS training day that took place on 4th May 2011 proved a great success with representation from all levels
of nursing and medical staff across the networks. This enabled attendees to have insight into how the team work and
various situations that arise during transfer. A further day is planned for December 2011.

All staff have attended the Therapeutic Hypothermia for Hypoxic-lschaemic Encephalopathy Study Day.
Two staff have completed PanStar training.
NTS staff continue to support local NLS courses.

Audits

Three audits were presented during the year:

1. Acute cardiac transfers provided by West Midlands Neonatal Transfer Service — Quad Network Conference

2. Review of transfers for PDA ligation conducted by the West Midlands Neonatal Transfer Service — Quad Network
Conference

3. Gatroschisis transferred by the WMNTS — an oral presentation at Neonatal Society Spring Meeting

e Clinical Governance
A total of 119 incidents were reported during 2010/2011, this equates to
18 9% of total transfers undertaken. Incidents were broken down as follows:

! % of
ri Type of Incident No. Total
! Temperature 12 10

Clinical Staff shortages 7 6
Clinical 29 24
NTS incidents 4 3
Communication 23 19
Ambulance 8 7
Equipment 19 16

Other Escalation 1 1
External 3 3
CNN Transfers 12 10
Personal Accident 1 1
Total incidents 119

11 Page 55



NEONATAL SURGICAL OUTREACH NURSE POST 2010

Bernadette Reda

Quarterly Comparisons (Calendar year)

Period Bed Days Saved on NSW & ITU | Out of Region Transfers
Quarter 1 (Jan — March 2010) 164 (9 pts.) 5
Quarter 2 (April — June 2010) 181 (8 pts.) 4
Quarter 3 (July — Sept 2010) 243 (9 pts.) 2
Quarter 4 (Oct — Nov 2010) 420 (12 pts.) 0
Annual 1008 (38 pts.) 11

Neonatal Surgical Liaison/ Outreach Nurse

Financial Year

Out of region transfers have decreased from 23 neonates in 2009/10 to 8 neonates in 2010/11.
Of the 23 neonates, 14 required a cot on the Neonatal Surgical Ward (NSW) and 9 required ITU.
For period 2010/11, 8 neonates of which 4 required a cot on the NSW and 4 required ITU.

1.2 Point of Discharge
Comparing the number of general surgical (171) patients discharged home to those transferred to another hospital

from the NSW.

2010 Quarterly Total Discharges Home Transferred

1st Quarter 68 47 69.1% 21 30.9%
2nd Quarter 73 59 75.3% 18 24.7%
3rd Quarter 93 60 64.5% 33 35.5%
4th Quarter 67 53 79.1% 14 20.9%

The ratio of discharges to transfers has remained roughly the same over the year.
The maijority of patients transferred out of Birmingham Children’s Hospital (BCH) seen by the Outreach Nurse are

from ITU.
Figures for 2009 Figures for 2010
Total discharges for Specialty 171 290 Total discharges for Specialty 171 301
Total Discharged Home from NSW 212 Total Discharged Home from NSW 215
% Discharged Home 73% % Discharged Home 71%
Total transferred to other hospital /ward from Total transferred to other hospital /ward from
NSW 78 NSW 86
% Transferred to other hospital / ward 27% % Transferred to other hospital / ward 29%

1.3 Delayed Discharges/ Bed Days Lost on the Neonatal Surgical Ward (NSW)
This is the annual cot capacity occupied by patients who would be more appropriately cared for elsewhere rather than
in a surgical cot on the NSW.

Quarter 1 151 Days | 11%
Quarter2 | 195 Days | 14%
Quarter 3 | 54 Days 4%

Quarter4 | 208 Days | 15%
Total 608 Days | 11%

1.4 Nurse Outreach Episodes

Phone Contacts | Site visits | Total episodes of contact Number of patients seen across all
episodes of care
Quarter 1 35 137 172 27
Quarter 2 29 136 165 26
Quarter 3 25 74 99 22
Quarter 4 14 177 191 16
Annual Total 103 524 627 91

The 91 patients include babies actively discharged early from BCH, babies within BCH and pre-op babies before they

arrive at BCH.

Page 56

12




NEONATAL SURGICAL OUTREACH NURSE POST 2010 CONTINUED...

1.5 Number of patients transferred out of BCH with outreach support

Arul Jawaheer | Jester Lander Parashar | Parikh Singh
Quarter 1 | 1 3 2 1 2
Quarter2 | 1 1 1 3 1
Quarter 3 | 1 3 1 1 1 2
Quarter 4 | 1 4 1 5
Total 4 5 8 11 1 2 5

Quarter 3 —There was a decrease in outreach activity due to annual leave. Education and training continued but was
also slightly less.

The overall picture is one of decreasing phone contact with more distant Trusts and increasing number of visits to
fewer, level 2 and 3 Trusts, closer to BCH. The trend is for sicker babies being sent to mainly level 3 NNU’s (BWH,
Heartlands, New Cross and North Staffs). The majority are patients transferred back from PICU, freeing up ventilated
cots. As seen from the data above, the number of less dependent patients transferred back from the NSW has not
really changed. The number of surgical patients transferred out of BCH using the outreach service has increased over
the year.

1.6 Support Provided
The kind of support needed by staff caring for these surgical babies has remained constant and is mainly with stoma
care, nutrition and fluid balance.

1.7 Training and Education
An extensive programme of education has been provided throughout the year for Network staff in general and in
particular for BWH and PICU staff. In 2011 the focus will be to extend this to Heartlands staff.

5 Neonatal Nurses have completed the Neonatal Surgical Module and this is now being evaluated.

1.8 Parent and Family Support
The Outreach Nurse has attended several outpatient consultations between
surgeons and parents for ante natal counselling. Written information about the

Birmingham Children's Hospizal [T75]
8 el T

NSW was provided and all the parents took up the opportunity to visit the ward. All information for Parents Carers
the parents had previously been given the leaflet about the surgical condition by

the Fetal Medicine Team. Congenital
Outreach No. of contact Dlaphrag.matlc
Hospital episodes Hernia
*B’ham Women’s 243 N
*Heartlands 61 .? &, S
*BCH 39 ! “ - i

*New Cross 27 o S S
«City 17 el
*Russell’s Hall 15 -
*Walsall Manor 15

*Sandwell 12

*Good Hope 6

*Coventry 5

*Warwick 5

*Hereford 5

*North Staffs 1

13 Page 57



MATERNITY NETWORK

= IUT Audit and Research Study
el A poster of the Network IUT Audit was presented at the 2011 Quad Network
B e SR S T Conference: ‘QUALITY MATTERS’ in Loughborough in January 2011.

= Over 100 IUT’s have been recorded, mostly from Royal Wolverhampton Hospital with
some from University Hospital of North Staffordshire.

The IUT Research Project is looking at the psychological effect of transfers on
parents. It is anticipated the study will be completed by the end of 2011 and the
findings will be presented at the Stakeholder event in February 2012.

Network Obstetric Guidelines

The first edition of the Obstetric Guidelines book has been
published and copies of the books distributed to all units in the
Network. The book has been compiled as an aide-memoire for
all staff concerned with obstetric management, towards a more
uniform standard of care across the Network.

The book includes 50 guidelines that have been drafted with reference to published medical
literature and amended after extensive consultation. The book is available to purchase by
individuals outside of the Network at a cost of £10.00 ISBN 978-0-9557058-2-3. Order forms are
available on the maternity website:
http://www.networks.nhs.uk/nhs-networks/staffordshire-shropshire-and-black-country/quidelines

Maternity Network Stakeholder & Perinatal Education Day

The Maternity Network Stakeholder event was held at Dudley Clinical
Education Centre on the morning of the 11 February 2011, and focused on
working together towards choice and quality of maternity services. 70
delegates attended the event and commented on the good mix of
presentations that provided an excellent update.

The Perinatal Education event was held in the afternoon and had a surgical
theme. 35 delegates attended the event, commenting on the excellent and
interesting presentation by Mr Lander and the very good presentations
relevant to daily practice.

Laurence Wood speaking at the L .
Stakeholder Event This is an annual event and the next Maternity Network Stakeholder and

Perinatal Education Event 2012 is to be held in February 2012. Further
details will be available in Autumn 2011 on the Maternity Network website:
http://www.networks.nhs.uk/nhs-networks/staffordshire-shropshire-and-black-country

Coordination of the Maternity Network

Sarah Blackburn, Maternity Network Administrative Secretary left the Maternity Network at
the end of February 2011. Administration and management support to the Maternity Network
is now provided through the Newborn Network.

A Maternity Network Planning Meeting was held on the 1 April and the objectives below were Sarah Blackburn

agreed for the Maternity Network for 2011/12:

Objective 1: To receive feedback on the format and usefulness of the Network Obstetric Clinical Guidelines 2011
Objective 2: To explore the potential for introducing a common maternity data system

Objective 3: To develop and share good practice in maternity services

Objective 4: To obtain robust data on the clinical outcomes and service user experiences of IUT

Objective 5: To influence maternity service issues being taken forward within the new NHS
organisational structures

Quarterly Maternity Network Planning Meetings with obstetric and midwifery representation from
each of the maternity services in the Network are planned in 2011/12 to take forward and
monitor progress of the work streams necessary to achieve the objectives.

Simon Jenkinson, Lead Obstetrician

Page 58 14



NETWORK EDUCATION & TRAINING

Network Practice Educator Role

In the year of 2010/2011 the role of the Practice Educator continues to be seen as an important
aspect of the Network to encourage retention of staff and maintain valuable training across the
Network, especially in light of the financial constraints. In view of this Julie Crabtree was seconded
into the role of Practice Educator for Staffordshire and Shropshire from Aug 2010 for 11 months
part time to keep the role active and provide clinical support to staff, whilst Jo Cookson was on
maternity leave. Despite the reduction in the Educator resource, education and training in the
Network continued to be developed and taken forward.

Julie Crabtree

Acting Practice Educator (Staffordshire and Shropshire)

Neonatal Nurse Foundation Training Programme
Another very successful Foundation Programme was
completed. The newly accredited Programme by the
University of Wolverhampton was undertaken by
eleven nurses from across the Network.

2010 Foundation Training Programme Nurses

Education and training of neonatal staff remains a high priority within the Network and this is
verified by the amount of network funding provided for this, as demonstrated in the table below
showing details of the education, training and development programme funded by the Network
during 2010/11.

Lynsey Clarke
Practice Educator (Black Country)

Title No. of Places Used Cost
Surgical Skills Study Day 12 £78
Ventilation Study Day x 2 52 Nil to Network
Care Pathways Consultation Event 38 £2910
Neonatal Breastfeeding Study Day 21 £170
Bayley Ill Observational Training and DVD 8 £1061
Quad Network Event - Midlands Matters 13 £360
Developmental Care Study Day 16 £36
Neonatal Care - The Bigger Picture Study Day 2 £90
Neonatal Nurse Foundation Training Programme Study Days x 13 137 Nil
Neonatal Nurse Foundation Training Programme Accreditation 11 £766
Newborn Palliative Care Study Days 61 Funded by the DoH
Total Training Funded by Network 371 £5,471

Newborn Palliative Care Study Days

The Newborn Networks in the Midlands, successfully secured DOH funding to disseminate and educate on the newly
published care pathways around newborn and neonatal palliative care, with a view to improving practice in this area.
Lynsey Clarke, Practice Educator, was seconded part time to this project. Lynsey’s main role in the project was
developing the programmes for and the running of the Palliative Care Study Days that were held in various locations
across the Midlands.

15




NEONATAL PALLIATIVE CARE PROJECT

The three Newborn Networks in the West Midlands successfully applied for a proportion of the Department of Health’s
£30 million funding to support new children and young people’s palliative care projects in 2010. Applications were
submitted at the end of July 2010 and the funding released was to be used by the end of the financial year, March
2011.

The scope of the project was widened to include all four Newborn Networks in the Midlands; Southern West Midlands,
Staffordshire, Shropshire and Black Country, Central and Trent Perinatal Networks.

Aims of the Project

« To establish a co-ordinated approach to neonatal palliative care across all the Neonatal Units within the Midlands.

« To ensure that all staff have the knowledge and skills to care for neonates in need of palliative care, and their
families.

« Make sure that the babies and families in the Midlands receive care in line with ACT, BLISS, GMC, and BAPM

publications.

To improve the experience of babies and families.

To ensure that the needs of all faiths are addressed and understood.

To ensure equity of care within the Midlands.

To provide multidisciplinary Study Days ensuring that all neonatal/maternity staff caring for babies do so to the

highest standards.

o Understand what parents really want from professionals

e Produce an Integrated Comfort Care Pathway (ICCP) for newborns in the Midlands.

Development of the Project

«  First meeting of Network Leads was held on 14™ October 2010.

o Sign-up of Network Boards obtained, the Project Board formed, Project Lead & regular meeting arranged.
« The 4 Networks’ existing management structures were used to support the project.

Outcomes of the Project

. Seven Palliative care study days were delivered with 540 people attending in total from across the four newborn
networks (2 different programmes, 5 X 1st Study Day and 2 X 2nd Study Day programmes held)

o An Integrated Comfort Care Pathway for Newborns was developed for use in the Midlands

« Memory boxes were provided, to all neonatal units, and a process to replenish these supplies established, so that
all bereaved families in the Midlands had access to these to keep mementoes of their babies in

e« A neonatal e-learning module was developed in conjunction with the University of Coventry Palliative Care
Project

Palliative Care Study Day Memory Box

Neonatal Palliative Care in Staffordshire, Shropshire and Black Country Newborn Network Plans for 2011/12
Following the work commenced in the West Midlands on Neonatal Palliative Care in 2010/11, it is proposed in
2011/12 to develop a Palliative Care Lead/Champion in each neonatal unit in the Network who would work together to
form a Network Special Interest Group to support each other and take forward palliative care initiatives in their unit
and across the Network.

To support this, the Network will fund one member of staff from each unit to complete the new Neonatal Palliative
Care E-learning Programme available through Coventry University in Autumn 2011.

Page 60 16



FINANCIAL REPORT 2010/11

Resource Allocation 2010/11

Recurrent Funding

The Newborn Network infrastructure is funded recurrently by the West Midlands Specialised Commissioning Team
(WMSCT). The in year total funding in 2010/11 to support pay and non pay was £273,360 which has remained at the
2009/10 level.

WMSCT provide the funding for neonatal services directly to the Acute Trusts in the Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black
Country Newborn Network, the total funding for neonatal services in Acute Trust contracts for 2010/11 was
£19,371,603.

There was a total increase of £1,843,720 funding in neonatal services in the Acute Trust Contracts values in 2010/11
in the Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black Country Newborn Network.

Non Recurrent Funding
There was a total £44,473 underspend carried forward from both the 2009/10 Maternity Network (£12,973) and
training budget (£31,500) to provide non recurrent budgets for these in 2010/11.

Expenditure in 2010/11
Expenditure in 2010/11 is summarised in Table 1.

Table 1

Network Infrastructure Annual Year End Date Year End

Recurring Budget Expenditure Variance

Pay 278,525 255,021 -23,504

Non Pay 22,024 21,270 -754

Income

Guidelines -355 -355 -25

Non NHS Training 0 0 -900

PCT Staff Recharge -26,579 -32,096 -5,517

273,615 243,340 -30,700

Maternity Network Annual

Non Recurring Budget

Pay 6,473 5,890 -583

Non Pay 6,500 5,284 -1,216
12,973 11,174 -1,799

Training Budget Annual

Non Recurring Budget

Training 32,210 5,499 -26,711

Income (Sponsorship/fees) -2,369 -3,387 -1,018
29,841 2,112 -27,729

The underspend in the Network Infrastructure was due to the reduction in hours of the Practice Educators following
maternity leave in 2010/11. In addition the Network received payment for additional hours the Practice Educator
worked on the Neonatal Palliative Care Project (see page 15) between November 2010 and March 2011, the funding
came from Solihull Primary Care Trust, host of the Southern West Midlands Newborn Network who received and
coordinated the funding from the Department of Health for the Midlands Palliative Care Project. The underspend will
be carried forward to fund the Practice Educator secondment post covering maternity leave until the 4 July 2011.

Maternity Network Budget
The Maternity Network budget was almost fully utilised in 2010/11, the invoice for the stakeholder event had not been
processed by year end. As this was non recurrent funding there will not be a Maternity Network budget in 2011/12.

Training Budget

£5,499 was spent on education and training in the Network. Although less funding was spent on education and
training in 2010/11 compared with 2009/10 (£15,736), more staff benefitted, 371 places in 2010/11 compared with 227
places in 2009/10, this was in part due to the Department of Health funding for the palliative care project. Underspend
in this budget will be carried forward to provide a budget for Network training and education in 2011/12.

17 Page 61



KEY MILESTONES/NETWORK ACHIEVEMENTS APRIL 2010 - MARCH 2011

SPRING 2010

Nursing Time Spent Audit presented at the Spring
RCPCH meeting

Participated with BLSS, Picker Institute and other
Newborn Networks in the work commenced on
the First National Parent Survey of Neonatal
Services

All units in Network commenced collecting data
using the Clevermed
BadgerNet data system

Sl el s, St e 4 el
. Ve
A Neonatal Surgical Vanbosn sk

B
Skills Study Day was
held for staff in Network

Cooling meeting held to
consider issues relating
to therapeutic
hypothermia  in  the Vo s
Network and transport e

st £ 90 Lasochs macuaniers

e L e Lt
S i s b s o s sk i e
e e 1

SUMMER 2010

First sampling wave undertaken for national
parents survey

2009 Neonatal Guidelines user survey completed

Andy Spencer, reappointed for a final term of
office as Lead Clinician

NHS White Paper, Equity and excellence:
Liberating the NHS published

Network office move (again!)

Neonatal Surgical Project: Surgical Care
Pathways for Antenatal Babies. Meeting held in
the Network with

Fetal Medicine
Specialists  and
Neonatologists.

Meonatal guiieline s
2009 User Survey

— -

AUTUMN 2010

Network “Influencing the shape of the Network Care

Pathways: a Consultation Event” was held

An export data function was added to the Standards

Assessment Tool

Fifth Network Foundation Programme commenced,

newly accredited by Wolverhampton University
Parent Support Group commenced in Dudley

Successful bid for DoH funding for Palliative Care
Project

The National Institute for Health and Clinical

Excellence (NICE) Specialist Neonatal Care Quality

Standards were published

Second sampling wave undertaken for national
parents survey

Individual Trust visits were conducted with the
Network Management Team

— h——— — i -
Neanatal Support tg
Graup

s @ bseal grows For mums snd dsds wha
have had 2 baby en the Neenmal Uniy

It iz based at the Woodside Children's
Cantrm, Dudlsy,

Thars ars health professiansls from the
haspital and family suppare workérs
thare e halp snd suppert you and
thare experiendes.

— - Plwase popin 12 - 2 to see a frisndly

Export Data Function SA Tool T p—,

Data of nest masting:

WINTER 2010

Parent Representative (PR) training facilitated by
BLISS was held with SWMNN for potential new
network PRs.

Bayley assessment observational training was
provided for Network staff

Quad Network Event 2011:*QUALITY MATTERS’
was attended by 18 staff in our Network

Maternity Stakeholder & Perinatal Education Events
were held

Network Obstetric Guidelines book published

Programme of Neonatal Palliative Care Study Days
held

Third sampling wave undertaken for national
parents survey

Helping Hands Parent Support Group commenced
in Wolverhampton

Nursing Time Spent Audit submitted for publication
in Archives of Disease in Childhood

2011-13

Parent Rep Training Feb 2011

Page 62

18




PLANS FOR THE NEXT 12 MONTHS APRIL 2011 — MARCH 2012

Network Objectives 2011 — 2014:

- Objective 1 High Quality data and information to support high quality care
- Objective 2 Best Care For babies and families

- Objective 3 The Network is fit for purpose and able to demonstrate added value

Specific objectives, work programmes, leads responsible and timescales for the forthcoming year will be developed
and agreed in a Network Business Plan for 2011/2012. The objectives will include some of the commitments and
priorities for the Network identified below:

To monitor and report activity within each unit in the Network and investigate exceptions to care pathways.

To update the Network Standards Assessment Tool in line with NICE Quality Standards Specialist Neonatal
Care and the Toolkit for High Quality Neonatal Services.

To develop and implement a monitoring and reporting process of agreed neonatal quality clinical indicators
and quality matrixes for use within neonatal services and newborn networks in the West Midlands.

Finalise and distribute Parent Information Leaflets on how care is organised in the Network.

Support Network Parent Representatives (PRs) and NICU Teams to set up Helping Hands Support Groups in
their area.

Work with WM cot location, NTS, SWMNN and Commissioners to develop and agree how to implement a
single point of telephone contact for clinical advice, cot/maternal bed availability and the Newborn Transfer
Service available 24/7.

The QIPP Group to review the findings of the National Parent Survey and feedback key messages to the
Network Board.

To develop the Network workforce required to deliver the Network work programme.

PRs to work with the NICU Teams within the Network, to encourage attendance at Helping Hands Support
Group and improve the discharge planning process.

The Network Business Plan is available to download from the Network website at:
www.newbornnetworks.org.uk/

19

Staltea dubive, Shropshive & Black Ceuntry
Fiewhicorn & Baternity Hetwoark

BUSINESS PLAN

201112

Page 63



CONCLUDING COMMENTS

This will be the last year that | will be writing concluding comments as Clinical Lead. The process for appointing my
replacement is well underway. Consequently this gives me the opportunity to reflect on the achievements of the
Network since its inception over seven years ago. At the time | wrote a paper with Ruth entitled “Newborn Networks:
The Golden Age For Neonatology or Just Another Expensive Re-Organisation?” Although there is still much to be
done before the golden age dawns, the achievements of the past year demonstrate that the Network has a clear value
and purpose.

The coalition government is determined to collect evidence of quality; quality of care and quality outcomes. To this
end unified neonatal data collection is starting to serve us well, regionally we are using the data to develop quality
indicators with the West Midlands Quality Institute and nationally we are for the first time participating fully in the
National Neonatal Audit. Good outcomes are predicated on quality care from well before birth and so | am absolutely
delighted that the Maternity Network has published their first set of clinical guidelines. Ensuring high quality consistent
practice is a key role of the Network and so the continued success of the neonatal guidelines is extremely important
and we are delighted that South West Midlands Network are joining us in this ongoing venture. Parents are rightly
high on the political agenda and so we are proud to be able to report participation in the National Parents Survey.

In reflecting about the past, it is clear that many of the current achievements have resulted from sustained effort to
improve across a broad range of initiatives. In addition to the outcomes | have mentioned above we have been party
to the development of a comprehensive transport service, we have worked to standardise equipment and reduce
costs, we have appointed six network consultants and improved senior cover as a result. We have improved cot
capacity and nursing ratios, we have designated units and implemented care pathways, we have undertaken
publishable research and network wide audit. We have developed the role of Nurse Educators and shared good
practice, we have developed a nursing foundation course and improved recruitment, we have increased preterm
breast feeding rates and we have standardised long term follow up across the Network. We have set up Parent
Support Groups and we have worked closely with our Commissioners to ensure that the QIPP initiatives achieve real
benefits. All of these initiatives and others have been designed to improve the quality of neonatal care and the parent
experience. As the NHS is re-organised the challenge for us is to keep working together to make sure that all these
initiatives continue to deliver benefits for patients and parents.

Andy Spencer, Lead Clinician
Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black Country Newborn Network

Page 64 20



Staffordshire, Shropshire & Black Country
Newborn Network

University Hospital of North Staffordshire
1* Floor Admin Area

Maternity Centre

Newcastle Road

Stoke on Trent

ST4 6QG

Tel: 01782 672381
Website: www.newbornnetworks.org.uk/

The Network consists of six neonatal units within the following acute hospitals:
University Hospital of North Staffordshire NHS Trust

Royal Shrewsbury and Telford Hospitals NHS Trust

Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust

Royal Wolverhampton Hospitals NHS Trust

Walsall Hospitals NHS Trust

Dudley Group of Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

e
Unoeristy Heogprtal of
Mgnm Watoeadin.m
gpd it
I

“StaHondshee Grnond |

—espitsl |

¥
Pac” SR Manar Hoypal |
| e Crom Hiospital Wl

| Winkeeshampion ,'51n1‘1nr|:bil}'_,.ii~_' :
Ly

EMRpT——
P

e

sShirogshire

LS

Designed and produced by Sarah Carnwell and Ruth Moore

21 Page 65



Agenda Item 3

Q G| | Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Ysbyty'r Eglwys Newydd

a'% Caerdydd a'r Fro Whitchurch Hospital
~' N H S Cardiff and Vale Park Road, Whitchurch. Heol Parc, Yr Eglwys Newydd
i i Cardiff, CF14 7XB Caerdydd, CF14 7XB
University Health Board  phone 029 2069 3191 Caerdydd, Cria 7t

Eich cyf/Your ref:

Ein cyf/Our ref: PH-jb-03-1794

Welsh Health Telephone Network:

Direct Line/Llinell uniongychol: 02920 745682

Jan Williams OBE
Chief Executive
20 March 2012

Christine Chapman AM

Chair

Children and Young People Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Ms Chapman

Children and Young People Committee — Neonatal Services

Thank you for your letter dated 21% February 2012 in relation to Neonatal services.
Cardiff and Vale UHB welcomes the opportunity of contributing to the evidence
sought by the Committee.

| will address the issues raised in your letter as follows:-

Neonatal Action Plan

Attached is the Neonatal Action plan as at the end of December 2011 and details the
areas of compliance and those where continued work is ongoing. The action plan is
monitored at both a Directorate and Divisional level within Cardiff and Vale and also
informs the overall action plan being implemented across the Neonatal Network. The
action plans draws on the support of other departments within the UHB eg Capital
and Estates and cross divisional/departmental working is required to secure
improvement in key areas such as the environment and staffing. Compliance with
the standards are RAG rated as shown in the attached plan.

Annual Report

The latest Annual Report for the Unit is attached. This covers the period 2010/11
(January — December 2010) and the annual report is produced mid-year to ensure all
data is captured appropriately to inform the development of the report. In common
with the action plan, this report is monitored at the Divisional level and considered at
the UHB Quality and Safety Committee. Action plans are put in place to address any
issues relating to compliance with standards, staffing or environment and these are
regularly monitored by the Divisional Team and any necessary remedial action is
taken if there are changes to the plan required. Attached for further information is the
categorisation of clinical incidents by type and severity that have arisen within the
Unit during the period October 2010 to October 2011. ¢ Aoy,

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro yw enw gweithredol Bwyrdd Iechy ol Prifysgol y d a'r Fro -
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is the operational name of Cardiff \&gw rsif | Health Board 0/5AB\-"Q



Investment Plans

The UHB is currently addressing two key areas for improvement where progress is
required to meet the All Wales neonatal standards — adequacy of commissioned
capacity and the need for an increased staffing complement.

Work is underway to restructure the physical environment on the Neonatal Unit to
increase cot capacity and provide two additional spaces. The Unit is poorly designed
and whilst it is fully occupied, a complete redesign is not possible. However, an
incremental plan for decanting services within the Unit has been developed that will
deliver this increased capacity within the first quarter of 2012. This will support the
capacity requirements within the Network arrangements and specifically mitigate the
shortfall within the central region.

Further consideration of the future siting of the Unit will be possible following the
completion of the Children’s Hospital for Wales scheduled for 2014/15.

In relation to staffing levels and skills, the Division is working in conjunction with the
Nurse Director, to develop a plan to move towards full compliance with national
staffing ratios for Level 1 and Level 2 care. This plan will be completed by end of
May 2012 and will be considered alongside the other UHB priorities for investment
by the Executive Team. The development of the South Wales Plan for future service
provision across a number of specialties may have an influence over this local plan
and the UHB will ensure this is factored in to the plan as necessary.

Costs associated with Cross Border transfers

The UHB does not hold this information as the Welsh Health Specialised Services
Committee (WHSSC) commissions this service on behalf of all LHBs. This includes
the need for cross-border flows when they become necessary and agreements with
English providers of this service. WHSSC should be able to provide the data relating
to this but caution must be exercised in its interpretation as each year a number of
mothers have, for clinical reasons, to deliver outside of Wales particularly if a service
that the mother or baby requires is not available in NHS Wales eg cardiac surgery for
the newborn. WHSSC should also be able to advise whether the nature of the flow is
related to clinical need or when there are occasions this is due to capacity within the
Neonatal network.

Local information demonstrates that during 2010/11 there were twenty-four (24)
occasions when the Cardiff and Vale Unit was unable to accommodate the total
demand for services and this would have resulted in transfer both within and outside
of Wales. Whilst additional cot capacity may help reduce this, it is unlikely that this
can be eliminated in full due to the peaks in activity that occurs throughout the year
unless excess capacity is created at significant additional cost.

The UHB experiences a small inflow of English residents which is primarily driven by
two sources: English visitors to Wales who unexpectedly give birth and whose
babies require neonatal care and secondly through reduced capacity within NHS
England but this is an infrequent occurrence. Where this arises, the UHB makes
every effort to repatriate mothers and babies as soon as clinically appropriate to
release capacity for local residents. ¢ 90,

UA)
Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro yw enw gweithredol Bwyrdd Iechyd Lle ifysgol Caerd o Fro - /
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is the operational name of Cardiff and éL alth Board 0/5AB\-"Q

7

&

05/,
P[Op



Discussions with WHSSC and neighbouring LHBs

The Committee is aware that the Neonatal Services within NHS Wales operates as a
clinical network and that cross organisational planning and collaboration is key to the
success of the network. The UHB is fully engaged with the development and delivery
of the Neonatal Network Plan and the day to day management of neonatal capacity
across South Wales. The needs of the South Central Health Community are being
addressed in conjunction with Cwm Taf LHB with particular emphasis on cot capacity
across the two major sites. This will feature strongly in the discussions with the
Network and WHSSC as commissioners of the service.

Medical workforce

The numbers of junior doctors in training in Neonatology and Paediatrics in general
is a significant issue. The impact of the reduction in numbers and the effect of the
European Working Time Directive (EWTD) is having a significant impact on the
ability of all units to maintain services that meet national standards. This features
highly in the discussions around the development of a South Wales Plan in
response to “Together for Health”.

| trust that this provides the Committee with the information it requires and | look
forward to attending the Committee on 17" May 2012.

Yours sincerely

Paul Hollard
Deputy Chief Executive

Enc

0 /0
Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a'r Fro yw enw gweithredol Bwyrdd Iechy ol Prifysgol rgwid a'r Fro A &
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is the operational name of Cardiff &gw rsil | Health Board 0/5AB\-"Q



ZL-Rey

BaA0QE SY

"PBUOISSILIWOD S}00 81B)) BAISUS)U| [eJeUOBN
JO Joquinu 8y} 10} J08.I00 SI JusWysI|ge)se

anoge sy /' 9noge sy 2y} Jey} aouapiAe apinoid ued jun ayy gz
ZL-Repy asinu | "NDIN Ul uoneaulienb uonesisibal 3sod e spjoy ‘21e) SAISUSJU| |e}eUOSN
euoisinig/buisinu ‘s|oA9| Bulyels Jo malnal oym Ajnp uo asinu paweu e sAkeme s| alay "‘Ayoeded ul uonreayiienb uoneuisibal }sod sey asinu
s,uaip|iyo 9)o|dwoo e Bupjepapun BuisinN NAH Pue N1 pepuny o} ewm/ "/ Ag spiepuels paweu ay] ‘aied aAIsuau| [eyeuoaN Buuinbal
Jo peaH| suaip|iy) Jo pesH pue asinu Jolusg S9|BA |V JO HOUS ||B} SJUBWYSI|QBISS 810D JUdLIND salqeq Joj papinoad si |:| jo oijel Buisinu
Hun |11 1I9AS7 Ul 3
S3JIAY3S TV.LVNOIN 40 ONIJ4VLS 2
ZL-unp "spieoq
yjieay juaiayip ssosoe aoe|d ul ale seAmyjed ainsus ‘OIND3 pue ABojoinau ‘ABojoipied
0} Jayyaboy Buiiom o} pasebas ypm Ajunwwod NDIN ‘f1abins ‘a1 saoIAI8s }s]|eloads Jay)o 0} ssadoe
|ealjuad ynos yum Buliobuo suolssnosiq “spiepue)s sajepn umop dajs juanbasgns
|le Ag paulf}no S| aJed Jo S|9Ad| 0} SS820Y ‘sanbes||0o pue ||| 0} || |9A8] wodj dn da)s Joy ssadoe
o1384)Sq0 Yyum Aemuspun ale sAemyjed Jo Jaquinu v umop dajs juanbasgns
pue || 0} | |9A8]| woly dn dajs Joj Ss900E
Jajsuel) [ejeuoau
YIOM)BN 40} (yuswabeuew
pes| podsuel ] 3su ybly Joy 81jud9 isieroads 0} swoy woly
Alunwwos Buipnjoul) Ajjejeusjue Jayjow ayj Jo Jajsuely
|eJjuad ynos -ooe|d ul sessaooid JUSWISSOSSE |eula)ew-0)a)
ul sabnajj0o Jewuoju| “JuawdojaAap 92IAI8S :apnjoul shkemyjed asay
|ejeuoaN podsuel] pue yiomjau jo Jed se "81ed JO S|9Ad|
pue oujassqO| padojanap aq o} skemyjed |ejeuosN |le wouy pue 0} Aemuyyed [eliayal Jea|d e sl a1ayl |€']
ZL-Rey swea| }lomau
juswabeuepy ay} Jo uoibail |esua) ynos sy} ul ‘uonen|ens
9)eJ0300.1q | BuluoISSIWWOD 1o} sjuajul o1baje)s sy Ayoeded yIomjaN [BIRUOSN SS[BAN [[B JUS23aJ BY} Ul
Q [BUOISIAI]| pue)siapun 0} DSSHAM Uim abebul| paunuspl se Ajoeded |9As8] NQH 840w Joj pasu e sl 818y
zZL-unp ‘Speau |euoljeu ‘suonipuod oujelpaed xajdwod pue Aiabins
'spes| NDIN pUE [B00] JO JUB)XS [|N} BUIWIS}EP| [E}EUOBU 1O} Shie}s 8Jjudd |euoifal pue ajes Yuig ul ymoih
pue ajenooallq 0} }IOM}BU [E]JEUOBU [BIIUSD UYINOS UaAIb paau [euoneN pue [eo0T Yiog Buiieaw o} joadsal ‘paau uone|ndod |euoneu pue |eoo|
‘leuolsinig MBU B} Y}IM PaOUSWIWOD YIOAN Ul uUayeHapun Udaq Jou sey SISAjeue spasu [BwJo} 9Uj) }99W 0} PAUOISSIWWOD S| 81ed [e}JeuoaN| ||
34V TVLVNOIN OL SS3DOIV I
— JlaquinN
plepuejg
<)
2 ]
: g 28 5
o o Q c w
o g = = 0 N o
o e - e w Se
o o o 0 g bl =
= > o [
> 2 &8 8
2 2 3
=3
S S

Page 69



Zl-des

Kioympin

Jo pesH

pue uedjalisqO
pesT/uediulQ

juswdojanap Aoljod apnjouo)

"yuIq Jo aoe(d By} Je 8|qe|leAR JOU [9A8)]

e Je aJed salinbas oym a}eUOSBU Y} JO Jajsuel)
ay} Jo} aoe|d uj ale syjuawabuelle uaplp
‘pajedionue si uoienyis ysu-ybiy e uaym
(4aysuUeI} 0JBIN-UI) JOYjoW BY} JO Jaysuel) Ajawi}
QY] JOJ S)UN [ejeuOaU pue Ajulajew usamiaq
diysieuped ul aoe(d ul ale sjuswabuelly

NOILVLHOdSNVYL

ANV Agvd 3H1 40 VI

‘spJepue)s 9say) }Joaw 0} aled
|ejeuoau Joj Juswdinba ulejulew pue aseyoind
0} 9|qe|ieAe s| }16pnq ajeldoidde paaibe uy

3AILO3rdo
3AILD3rdo

9'¢

‘sejeuoau

10 21ed 8y} Ul asipadxa Ypm Jels apnjoul asay |
Adesay] sbenbue pue yosadg

YoM\ [B100S ‘Adeiayjoishyd ‘soneuan
Bujusaiog ‘Adesay] ‘sonsialq ‘Aoewleyd
:apn|oul

asay] ‘a|ge|ieAe Apeas ale saoiales poddng

"seoualayIp
|1e20] Junoooe ojul Bupye) ‘pasu uoljeindod
UO paseq PauoISSILIWOD ale sal}l|ioe) [eleuoaN

‘SIDIAYIS TVLVYNOIN ¥O4 SIILITIOVS :€

"PBUOISSILIWOD S}00 8le)) [eads
JO Jaquinu 8y} Joj 081100 S| JUSWYSI|qe)S
8y} 1ey) eouspiAe apiaoid ueDd Jun ey

€¢'¢

‘ale) [e1oadg Buuinbal
salqeq Joj papiroid si :| Jo onjel Buisinu

[444

‘pauoIssIwwWod s}00 Aouspuadaq
ybBIH Jo Jagquinu 8y} Joj J08.100 S| JUBWYSI|JE)SD
8y} 1By} 9oUspIAS apiaoid Ued Jun ay]

"21ed |ejeuoau Ul bululely sey asinu
paweu ay] ‘aied Aouspuadeq ybiH Buuinbal
salqeq Joj papiroid si g:| Jo onjed Buisinu

pea1 NOIN ‘JuswdojaAap Japun Adljod Jajsuely olajn-u|
Allenuue ‘syjuswa|ddns ‘Aessoau uaym apeuw S|
puny Juswmopua uo juelal| Buiupn jeyded jsuiebe spiq pue swwelboud Juswaoe|dal e
wea)| pue spiq Juswdinbs elA Juswdinba| sey yoiym Jaysibal Josse ue jo ped si juswdinba NDIN IV
juswabeuew juswade|dal Joy suoleoldde
ajesojoaliq| Jenbas uo juspuadap si juswdinbg
FARCER ‘Spuewsp
oujelpaed ay} 0} anp pajiwl| S| 84e2 [e100s pue Adesay} 0}
Buisinu $$9008B INq gHN U} HIym ajge|ieAe ale sadlales poddng
suaipliyd
0 pesH 8y}
ypum saidelay) Joy MaInal Bulyels [[edaao ay)
pes| [euoisiaiq| o} Meds e dn payoid aq ued yom siyl
ziL-Re MIHO 8y} ul 8|qejiene
swea| Iomjau | asiuadxa oujelpaed papusixa 8y} 0} anp JipJed ul buunsdo
juswabeuepy ay} Jo uoibal |esua) Yynos sy} ul SaIBAIIBP [eulajew ysi ybly Joj suoseal ol10ads ayy
9)eJ0308.1 | BuluoISSIWIWOD 10} sjuajul 9169)e)s s}i| 10 JUnoooe e} 0} Ajoeded Jo Buluoissiwwod ayeldoidde
9 |[eUO puejsiapun 0} DSSHM yum abebu| oy j0adsal yim DSSHAA Yim uayeuspun ag 0} Spaau IO
ZL-ReN 9sINN 8u03081Iq 17 SV
pue asinN pea’
aleD |eonun /' 9noge 993
ZL-Repy 9sINN 8u0308a1Iq ‘pasa)sibal 9,Gz pue sasinu AJasinu 4 pueq %G/
pue asinN pes’ Jo dn apew s| s}00 aJed |e1oads Joy Buiels ybnoyye /g se
aie) [eanu) /' 9n0Qe 993
ZL-Repy 9sINN 9u0308a1Iq 17 SV
pue asinN pea’
aleD |eonun /' 9noge 993
ZL-ReiN 9sINN 8u008IIq 17 SV
pue asinN pea’
aleD |eonun /' 9noge 993
ZL-Rey AKouaoiyns aujwialep

8sINN euo}o8lIq
pue asinN pea
aleD [BONUD

/'Z ®noge sy

0} pamalAal 8q 0} paau sainjonujseyul bupoddns

“JUsWYsI|qe)sa [edlul|d duy} 0} uolippe
ul sI SIy] “IOMSIA Yyeay uosiel| ‘asinu jsijeioads
‘6o ‘poddns abieyosip apiroid 0} spun

|le ul @oe|d ul ale yejs poddns pue [eous|)

€l'e

Page 70



Bulobuo

‘Ajuunwwos
NODIN [elusd
yinos yym aoed
u| 8Je uoIssnasig

" yJomiau
ay) Aq padojansp Buieq aie s|000}0.d

leled

ZL-Rey ‘S|aAd| bulye)s paonpal Ul }INsal SB0p Pue S|9Ad|
Buijels Alapmpiw ayy jo Jed s jno uswom Buliiaysuely
10} SUODSd pUB 92IAISS OU SI 818y} ‘uoljepodsuely
KiaympiN *9010I0M AJayMpIw By} Jeulajew Jo4 yeam Jad sAep ; ‘siseq Aep unoyz|
jo peaH| jo ped se pamainal aq 0} palinbai s| e uo paplnoid S| 9IAI9S By} ‘siaysuel) NN dY} 104
Z1-des juawdojanap Adijod apnjouo)
Kispmpiy
Jo peaH

pue uesnansqo
pea/uesiul)
pea7 NJIN

Juswdojansp Japun Adjjod Jajsuely ossin-u|

‘pue|bu3 0y Japloq

9} SS0IO. 10 S9[B\\ Ul SSOIOE paliajsuel)

97 0} poau Salqeq UdYM dDIAI9S SSO|Weas

e aInsua o} syiomjau Buunoqybiau yym aoed
ul aJ1e sjuswabuelly "‘pasu [eolulo 0} Buipioooe
3}JOM}BU BU} UIYIM SHUN USSMIS] paliajsuel)
aJe salgeq ainsus 0} 9oe|d ul ale $|090}0ld

B aNV ST1000.103d ‘SAVMHLY TVOINITO 19

‘wes) jusiiedul [eoiuljd 8y Jo 8soy)
0} UOHIPPE Ul 8JB SI8jSuel) J0} 8|qisuodsal Jels

€9

‘awioy Jeau jun e 0y yoeq Buirow

uaym Jayjaboy Aqeq pue Jayjow Jo Jajsuel) sy}
“yiomiau 8y} ssoloe Aoueubaid

ysu ybiy e yyum Jayjow e Jo Jajsuel} ay}

110} 9oe|d Ul 8.1e sjuswabuelle UsjLIAA

€9

Page 71



"10edwi ou/a1l| Sulaqg 3 01 ‘@4aA3Ss 3ulaq +++Y WOl SuiSued A1LIDASS XS JO |9A9] 83 S910Uap J 01 ++y Alo3a1e)

g8

L€

:s|ejol

Ll

L

ainpasoud ‘Juawjeas] - jusijed

uonedipajy - yusijed

142

(1ea1pan) Juswdinbajasinaq - Juaned

o|lo|lo|o|o

o|Oolo0|O0|lo

o|Ool0o|O0|o

o|Ool0o|oO|o

o|lo|lo|o|o

— | OO O

| 0| 3| ©

(senioey
‘Buiyjels [oul) ainjonaisesiul Ym swajqoid - 1aYyjo

o

o

N

MalAal/Buliojiuow
Buiobuo pue aied jo uoneuswajdwyi - Juaned

sjuaned
Jo uonejosi Ba Juspiou] [0J3U0H UOIII3}U| - JIBY}O

(uoneoynuapi
‘Spao2al °|oul) uoljeiuawnoo( - Juaijed

AJilel3uapipuoO ‘uoijeaIUNWWOD ‘JUaSU0) - Juajed

(sjuswissasse ‘s)sa) ‘sueas
‘sisoubelp "|oul) JusWISSasSSy [ealul]) - Jusned

(auaned Buissiw "joul)
abieyosip ‘Iajsuel) ‘suoissiwpe ‘Ss929Yy - Judljed

jejol

++Y

+Vv

NNN/NFGOS Ul L1/0L/¥2-01/0L/Z peuado sjuapiou|
KAanag pue Liobajen Aq sjuapioul

NOILVIIHISSVTIO ANV ALI3IAIS AD SINIAIONI XIANIddV

Page 72



AJW/KAD

13" March 2012

01443 744803

01443 744888
Allison.Williams4@wales.nhs.uk

Mrs Christine Chapman AM

Chair

Children & Young People Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Mrs Chapman
Re: Children and Young People Committee — Neonatal Services

Please find below a briefing in response to the areas highlighted in your
letter dated the 21st February 2012, in relation to the above services
within Cwm Taf Health Board.

1. A copy of current local neonatal action plan, including information
about the mechanisms in place to monitor and evaluate the
implementation of the key actions within these plans and
timescales.

The current local neonatal action plan is attached with
relevant timescales for action. Monthly meetings at
Directorate level ensure ongoing action is undertaken and
the action plan is monitored via the Chief Operating Officer at
monthly operational team meetings, this enables review of
progress and escalation of issues or timescale challenges.

2. A copy of the latest annual report on quality of care (as set out in
standard 6.8 of the All Wales neonatal standards), alongside
information on the number of instances when patient safety has
been compromised.

The expectation was that this would be available via the
badgernet system held by the network, this has not been
forthcoming to date. In order to address this the Health
Board are in the process of linking into the National neonatal
Audit programme which will in future assist in producing an
annual report.

Chief Executive’s Office Ynysmeurig House Navigation Park
Abercynon CF45 4SN Page 73



3. An outline of any action taken and any plans for investing into
neonatal services in the short, medium and longer term to ensure all
services in your area are fully compliant with the Standards.

As identified within the enclosed action plan a full review of
neonatal and children’s nursing services is being undertaken
and a workforce plan is under development. This will require
some re-investment into neonatal nursing in the future to
achieve compliance with BAPM Standards. Medium and
longer term investment plans are being explored within the
network programme.

4. The costs associated with cross border transfers, including the
amount paid to English PCTs for the transfer of neonates as well as
the income generated for Welsh providers.

There have been no costs related to cross border transfers.

5. Whether you have had any discussions with WHSSC and
neighbouring LHB about the overall increase in cots needed and any
joint planning as to where they are located and at what level of
intensity.

Monthly meetings are held between Cardiff and Vale UHB and
Cwm Taf HB to review all areas of the Neonatal Standards,
these meetings have proved beneficial and have assisted in
the following areas:

Improved communication

Improved transfer arrangements (reducing delays)
Development of a rotational programme for staff
Alignment of clinical practice

6. Whether any work has been undertaken with neighbouring Boards
or the Welsh Government via WHSSC, on workforce planning to
address what impact changes to junior doctor recruitment and the
number of training places in the future will have on services in the
coming years.

The Health Board has plans in place to meet the shortfall in
junior doctor’s recruitment in the short term and is fully
engaged in the ongoing regional work which is being
undertaken.

Yours sincerely

Mrs Allison Williams
Chief Executive/ Prif WeithredyB@9€ 74



ST AEET

0} Xoeq salqeq
OS pue NQH j0
Jajsuely buiqeus

paJjinbal uaym ajgejiene

sAem|e Jou aJe SadIAIS 9Say)
(>pomiau uiyum) Ajjeooj papinoid
aJe aled Jo S|aA9) [|e ybnoyly
ajesun aq 0} pawaap s Jayjow
JO Jajsuel) se saoIAIas 9| alinbal
Aay} uaym Aj|eoo| palaniep
Buliaq sesed Ajulsrew ysi ybiy
ul JInsaJ osje Aew siy] ‘pajoadxe
aq pjnom ueyy spotiad Jabuoj

10} Jun a8y} uiyym Buiuiews.

(s)yun i
[9AST paulep sey NOIN Yoe3 "NOI e Jo ued se g|qissod
SE aWoy 0} 9SOl SB S|9A9] || 1e 9|ge|leA. S| 8Jed [BJeuocaN | Z'L

‘paau uone|ndod |euoneu

pue |e20| 8y} }98W 0} PBUOISSIWIWOD S| 81D |BJeUOSN
1auuew Ajdwi} e uj aied Jo [9AI]

ojeridoidde ayj 0} ssaooe ajqelinba aney Aemyjed yiiq jewaou

8y} aAoqe pue JaA0 alinbal oym saiqeq uiogmau ||y :djeuoney
VI TVLVNO3N Ol SS3DJV -1 AAILO3Ard0

Aq Aljigejieae salgeq 9| ul }nsal Aew

D] @seasoul | pue oijews|qold usyo s yoddns

0} yJomau 0| Buissaooe Janamoy ‘saigeq

BaU} YHM dlom Z |an8| 0} a1ed apinoud 0} a|ge

Buiobup 0} dNUIUOI O dJe Ulew oy} Ul S9JIAISS [BO0T
= &
3 > 3
» 2} o ©
g = 8 =
> 3 3 3
g 5 2 e
= w w. m
> H 7] o
.auluv. Q. N
o 2
=} N

Page 75



oaoe|d u|

aoe|d uj|

994 pug

Alenigoe
pu3

spJooal
Buruiely J03UO

sjuapIoul [edIulo
Aue Jo)uop

awoy pue
s|ejidsoy usamiaq
Jajsuelyebieyosip
ur skejap Ayuapl
0] swoa)sAs
Burioyuoy
dojane(

a|gejieae

10U sI yoddns 9|
UayM SUOISEDD0
Joyuow o} Joddns
Jo} pajoejuod ale
}IOM}BU By} uaym
pue papinoid
Buiaq si aied

Dl uaym Ayuspl
0} Jel wmo

UIYIM SWalsAs
Burnioyuow
dojanap

0] paau e S| 818y |

Aq pa| ale pue Ajpwi} pue

9Jes y)og aJe siajsuel) aINsua
0] 92e|d Ul sjusWISSasSSE Ysi

pue sauljapinb 00| a.le a1ay}
pue Jes|o ale shemyjed juers|oy

Juasaid aq os|e pjnoys adousuadxa

pue Buiuiely |ejeuocau yum Joyop apelb Buluielyepelb
J98led J0 jueynsuod e ‘pajedionue si abe |euone}seb
syeam Og> 1e Ageq e Jo Alanlep usypp "yuiq Alens

1e 9|ge|leAe aJe UOIJe}losSNSal [eleuoau Ul paulel) Jeis | 22

"saigeq JO Uoljesi|iqels pue uolelosnsal
aAjoaYs pue ajes ‘1dwold ay} Joj syjuswabuelie
paysi|gelse aAeYy salgeq JO 81ed 8y} Ul PSAJOAUI SHUN |1

‘ap1noad Ady) 921AI3S JO |9AI]

ay) o) Buipioooe ‘swed) [euoissajoud Aseuljdiosip-i3inw ‘pauiery
Kjo3enidoadde yjim pajjels aie sadlAIag [BJRUOIN :djeuoney
S3JIAY3S TVLVNOIN 40 ONI44VLS ¢ 3AILO3rdo

"S9IAIBS ||| PUE || ‘| |9A8] WO} 8B1eyosIp pue 0] ss80e
Joy soe|d Ul 848 SWISIUBYDSW UOIEDIUNWIWOD 8AN08LT | ¢'|

"OWND3 pue ABojoinau

‘ABojoipied ‘Aiebins ‘o'l S82IAISS 1SI|e10ads Jayl0 0} Ssadoe
umop

dals Juanbasqgns pue ||| 0} || |9A8] woll dn da)s U0} sSa00e
umop

dajs Juanbasqns pue || 0} | |9A8] wod) dn da)s 10} SS80e
Jajsuel} |ejeuosau

(yuawebeuew ysu ybiy Joj a13ua0 jsijeroads

0} swoy woJj Buipnjour) Ajjeleusiue Jayjow ay} Jo Jajsuel)
JUBWISSOSSE |BUIS)BW-0)3}

:opnjoul skemyjed asay |

‘aleo

10 S[9A8| ||e wody pue 0} Aemyied |edisyal Jespp e sialayl | €1

‘JJE]S JUB)NSU0)D

Page 76



cloc
go4 pug

aoe|d u|

aoe|d u|

VIN

uayeuspun
8Qq 0] MaIAa)
Juswysl|qe)sy

suoneunssp
Jajsuel} JOJUO

Buiuresy Joyuo

S}JomeN

‘pamalnal
Bulaq si siyy pue jueldwoo
Ajainua jou aJe je| wmo

uoibal ay} uiyum Ayoeded

0| Jo oe| 01 anp paJdinbai
sJajsuel) Ayjbus| ale aley)

uaym asLie anss| "Jajsuel) ajes
Jo} @oe|d Ul ale sjuswssasse
3SU pue uoiEeUBWNDOoP Jajsuel |

‘Bl0J Jeys apelb ajppiw ajeledas e sey yun ||| A8 Y | LL'Z

‘Buiuien
Jus|eAINba 40 SUIDIPS|A |B}JeUOBN ‘soLijelpaed ul | SDD
BABY S)UN ||| [AST Ypm sjsni| 0} pajulodde sjueynsuod |1 | 012

"B)0J ||ED-UO JUB)NSU0D
[e1eUOSU B S| 818y ] "Jlun 8ieD SAISUSIU| [BJeUOBN
8y} 0] sannp |ediould J18y) 8ABY S1UBNSUOD JIUN ||| [9AST] | 6°2

‘pBUOISSILIWOD
$]00 810 BAISUBIU| [BJRUOSN JO Jogquinu 8y} Joj 1081109
S1 JUBWYsSI|geISe Y] Jey) aouspIAe apircid ued JlUn 8yl | 8'Z

"aJeD) SAISUBIU| [e]RUOBN Ul uonesiiienb uonelsibal
1s0d sey asinu psweu ay| ‘aied aAISUSIU| []BUOSN
Bulinbal saigeq 4oy papirocid Si i Jo onel Buisinuy | 22

a1en dAISUdJU| [RJRUODN
Hun il 1I9A97 ul ate | T3AT1

"9]0J Y} 0] pa)edIpap awi) Sey oym
JIeYD [e01UII0 B yim NOI B 20ed Ul oAy pinoys SNOW IV | 92

"Wiea) [BjJeuoaU ay} JO uoieonpa
pue Buiyoes) Buipinoid 0} pajesipap awiy pajosiod
U)IM 8SINnu |ejeuoau pajeubisap e aABY S}un [BJeuoau ||y | G2

"911ud9 ||| |oA8|
e e paJaAlap aq 0} Aqeq ay} 1o} aoe(d ul ale sjuswabuelie
‘syeam paya|dwod gz> 1e pauueld si AisAlep e UBUYMA | 12

"salouablaWe 211)8)sqo
pue |ejeuosU afeuew pue asiuboosl 0} paulel) aie
soaloueubaid Ysu -ybiy Jo AlaAlep 8y} Ul paAjoAUl Jels IV | €2

Page 77



‘siseq Aep 0} Aep e uo splepuels
INdV9 e s|oAs)| bulyels urejurew
pue pasi|jn ale (Jun ayj o}
UMOU3| puE paulel} |ejeuoau ale
MalIABL | 1ey)) Jels yueq Jenamoy ‘Jussald
juswysijgelse 1e spiepuels |NdYg Moleq
210z 9o4 10 Jed wuoy [jIAA ale s|ans| Buiyels aaiueISqnNs

"2Je0 |eleuoaU
u1 Buiuiely sey asinu paweu ay] "aled Aouspuadag
ybiH Buuinbali saigqeq 1o) pepiroid si z:| Jo onel Buisinuy | 912

alen Aauspuadaqg ybiH |ejeuocaN
yun |l ISA97 ul aJge || TN

"MJOMJBU S]I Ul SHUN || pue | |aAaT Yyim diysuonelal s)i pue
uun ||| |eAeT ey} ebeuew 0} 84 [[IM 8|04 SIY] JO JusWa|e Uy
"Juswiysijgelse Jels ay) 0} Alelawnuiadns si oym Jebeuew
@sInu Joluas pajeubisap e Ay pINoYs Jun ||| [8A8] AJeA] | G612

Page 78

MBIABI sobleyosip woddns yeis "9sInu |ejeuoau jsieroads
juswysijgeise [BJEUOBU JBABMOY 8SINU UoSIel| B YlM uosiel| ul wea) Buisinu s,ualp|iyd AJunwwod [eao)

2102 9o4 10 Jed wuoy [IIA [eleUOaU PaJe2IPap OuU S| d1ay ] ay) Ag papinoid si swoy s Ageq ayy Jeau poddns dn mojo4 | y1°¢
MBIABI "JUBLWIYSI|qe)SS |BDIUID BY} O} UolIppe. Ul SI SIY| "JOUSIA

yyjesy uosiel| ‘esinu sijeioads *6°e ‘Woddns abieyosip
apinold o) syun e ul 8oejd ul aJe yeis uoddns pue [eous|D | £1°2

Juswiysijqeise
¢l0¢ 9°4 J0 yed wioj [IIA

"9JIAISS |eleuosu
ay) 0 pajeolpap JusjeAinba OHS/OHS sey Jun || AT Y | 212




‘siseq Aep 01 Aep e uo splepue]s
Vg 1e s|eAs)| Buels ulejuiew
pue pasijiyn ale (yun ayj 0}
UMOUY pue paulel} |ejeuoau aJe
M3IABI | 1ey)) Jels yueq Jenamoy ‘Jussald
juswysiigeise 1e spiepue)s |NdYg Molaq
2102 9o4 10 ped wuoy |IIAL ale sjoA9| buiyels aanueisqng

‘aJe) [eoadg
Burinbai saiqeq Joy papinoad si ;| Jo ones Buisinuy | 2z2'2

ale) |e1oadg |ejeuoaN
Hun | [9A87 Ul aJe ||l 13IAT

HOd Ul OHS
pajeoIpap jou HOY ul dde|d u|

"©JIAIBS
[eJeuoau ay) 0} pajeslpap SINNVY/SOHS Sey Jiun || [AaTY | 122

‘2182 9AISUB)UI W) Woys Bulinbal Ajpajoadxaun
salqeq asl|Igels pue a1e)osnsal 0} 9|qejieAe Ajipeal Jels

aoe|d U] apelb a|ppiw psousiiedxe pue paulel) sey Hun || [8ASTY | 022

‘sjuawdojanap mau pue AbBojojeuosu
ur D @ep 03 dn 8oUBpPIAS UED JUBYNSUOD SIY |
‘Buluies) [elRUOBU YlIM J0JO0P apell Joaled Jueynsuod uou

aoe|d u| JO JUB)INSUOD B JO AJljige|ieA. JNOY-f,Z Sey Jun || oA Y | 61°C

Page 79

"splepuels pue sonoeud ‘ssioljod jeaiuljo Jo Bulioyuow
ay] Buipnjoul 1lun ay) Jo Juswabeuew pue uoloalIp ay)

aoe|d U] JoJ 8|qIsuodsal S| OYM JUB)NSUOD BUO SBY HUN || [8ASTY | 812

‘siseq Aep 0} Aep e uo splepuels
INdVd Je sjeAd) Buiyels ulejuiew
pue pasi|in ale (Jun ayj 0}
UMOUY pue paulel} [ejeuoau ale
M3IABI | 1eyl) Jeis yueq Jenamoy ‘Juasald
juswiysijgeise 1e spJiepue)s Ndvg Moleq
210z 9o4 10 Jed wloy (I ale s|ans| Bulyels aaiueISqNS

‘paUOISSILIWOD
8100 Aouspuada YBiH Jo Jequinu 8y} Joj 1081102
SI Juswysi|gelse 8y} 1ey) 8ouspiAe apiaoid uedo yunayl | /12




41014
yoley Aq
paja|dwod
aq 0y ugd
uonoy

¢l0c 9o

aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

aoe|d u|
uswdojanap
Japun

s| aled |euoljisuel
/sabieyosip

OS oypadxa

pue suoissiwpe
DS @onpal

0} ue|d uonoy

aoe|d u|

MaINBI
juswysijgelss
Jo Jed wuoy I

Aoeded NaQH

urejulew oy Ajljige Ino sjoaye
UoIiym HOY UIYlIm 8100 OS

10 Yoe| B aJe aiay] Jey) salnuspl
Z10Z leqwsda( ul usyeuspun
mainal Ajloede) |ejeuosp

‘siseq Aep 0} Aep e uo spiepuels
INdVd Je sjeAd) Buiyels ulejuiew
pue pasi|in ale (Jun ayj 0}
UMOUY pue paulel} [ejeuoau ale
1eY}) Jeis yueq Jlenamoy ‘quasald
je spiepuels |Ndvd Moleq

ale s|ans| Bulyels aaiueISqNS

‘padisjsuel) si Agqeq e usym Ajjeoiuoiosie Ageq

e JO s|Ie1ap |eolul|o Jajsuel) 0] 8|jge aJe sjun [ejeuoau IV | ¥’
"}JOM)BU B} SSO0Jo. pa)e||0d
pue pa)09||00 8 0] UOIJRWIOUI JUS)SISUOD SMOJ[E 1By}
aJnonaseljul || ue aoeld ul 8ABY NDIN B UIyIm suun Iy | €'

"s9]INs Inoge| 0} Jusoelpe ale sall|jioe) [e]JeuosN
A

"SOOUBIBIP |ED0] JUNODE OJul Buiye) ‘pasu

uoiiejndod uo paseq PauoISSILIWOD ale Sal}l|Ioe) [BJeUOSN
‘saljlwej JIsy} pue

Spaau aled [ejeuosau Y}m saiqeq Joj aied 0} djqejleAe ale saijijioe)
pue jusawdinba ajes pue ajep o} dn ‘ajelrdoiddy :sjeuoney
1IN3ININD3I ONIANTONI

‘S3DIAYIAS TV.LVNOIN ¥04 SALLITIOVS € IAILDArdo

'salqeq ulogmau
8y} JO aled Jo spJepue)s |edlul|d ay) Joj a|qisuodsal
ueloleipaed jueynsuod pajeubisep e sey Hun | |9A87 Y

vee

‘paUOISSILIWOD
$]100 aJe) [e109dg JO Jaquinu 8y} Joj 1081102
S1 JUBWYSI|geISe Y] Jey) 8ouspIAe apiacid Ued Jiun ay |

€¢¢

Page 80



aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

Ajuo 109 ai1e) aAIsuadly| , “UBBAXQ jusiquiy ‘IA
uone.nies uabAxQ ‘A

uolsua) uabAxo |elslle-eJjul 10 SNOBUBINOSURI | Al
ainssald poojq Jejnosea-eaiu] il

ajel JeaH ‘Il
uoneJidsay I
:so|qeleA Buimojjoy ay) Buloyuow Joy saijioe p
sdwngd uoisnjul/ebulAg "o
Jayipiuuny ypm JaALp 4¥dON Pue ,Joje[jusA 'q
Buneay jueipel yim jiun Jo Jojeqnou] ‘e
:;uswdinba Buimoljo) ay) sey 1un Aouspuadag
ybIH Jo Jlun 84D BAISUS]U| [B}JBUOSN B U0 00 yoed | 'S
"Sp@au [B]BUOSU 0} Pajejuslio
ale yoiym a|gejieAe ale sadiAIas Alojeloge| JNoy-yZ | 8¢
"J9sAjeue seb-poojq ay) Buipnjoul eoueusiuiew pue Alajes
wawdinba o} a|qisuodsal Juswpedsq |e21UYIS | |BOIPSIA
|eo0] 8y} yum aoed ui ae sjuswabuelse Bupiom iior | 2°¢
'spJepue)s
9S8y} }J@aW 0} aled |ejeuoau Joj Juawdinba uleyuiew
pue aseyoind o) a|gejieAe siI 10b6pnq ajelidoidde paalsbe uy | 9'¢
"S9)JeuUO0aU JO aJed 8y} Ul asiadxa Ylm Jeis apnjoul asay |
Adeisay| ebenbue] pue yosadg
SO [BIO0S
AdesayjoisAyd
S21}U99)
Bulusaliog
Adesay |
soleIeIq
Aoewueyd
:opnjoul 8say] ‘a|gejieAe Ajipeal aie saoiales poddng | 6§

Page 81



aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

Al
passaldxa Buliols 1o} pue Buissaidxs Joj eale ue ‘sdwnd
1sealq Jjo uoisinold ayy Aq pajeyjioel st buipas) jsealg | Z'v

“Hun sy} Ul pabeinoous AjaAnoe si buipsesy 1sealg

‘pasinbal si 81ed SiYj usym saJjuad jsijerdads o) ssaade

JO 9sea yym ‘a|qissod se awoy 0} aso[d Se aied paljuad Ajiwey
pue pjiys a13sijoy aAI199al Ajlwey ay) pue Ageq ay] :ajeuoney
JON3IIIdX3

IN3ILVd/ATINYH ANV A89VE JHL 40 34VI ¥ 3AILDO3rgdo

‘(paseq juasuod) sydeisbojoyd juejsuj [
(uoneiuana |eslueyosw Buipnjour) Juswdinbs podsued] I
y|iw 1sealq Jo uoissaidx] 'y

Buluueos punosenn b6

sAel-x a|qenod ‘}

61| pjoo Aq uoneulwnjisuel] o

JuswaInseaw ainssald poo|q SAISBAUI-UON ‘P
Adesayjojoyd o

(Jeys nun Ag yun ejeuosu ay uo) sisAjeue seb pooig 'q
uoneosnsay ‘e

:Juswdinba Buimojjo} 8y} 0} sseooe sey

nun Aouspuadaq ybiH Jo a1eD SAIsUSU| [BJRUOSN YoeT | 0L'S

Page 82



aoe|d u|

aoe|d u|

sonss|
Jajsuel) JOJIUO

aoe|d u|
aoe|d u|

aoe(d u|

aoe(d u|

ajeldosdde uaym

sinoy awiy Aep Bulinp | SYAA BIA
apew ale slajsuel] SUOISEID0 UO
‘1 SV UO Jueljal ale siajsuel)
awy sy} Jo apisjno Aep e sinoy
Zl dlgejieAe a2IAI8S | NVHO

"yuig jo aoe(d 8y} Je a|qejiene

10U |9A8] B Je 2J4e0 salinbal oym 81eUO0sU By) JO Jajsuel
ay} Joy 2oe|d Ul ale sjuswabuelle usjLIAA “paledionue

S| uonenyis ysu-ybiy e uaym (Jajsuely oJayn-ui) Jayjow

By} Jo Jajsuely Ajwiy ay) Joj sjun |eleuoau pue Ajuiajew
usamiaq diysiauped ul aoe(d ul ale sjuswabuely | Z'G
ERINER

uodsuely paddinba pue payeis Ajgjelidosdde ue ‘0} ssaooe
aABY Jo ‘eney sajeuoau Bulsyal Jo/pue Bundasoe syun
[IV “puelbug yum Iapiog 8y} SSOJoe pue }Iomiau yoea
Joj eoed ul sjuswabuelle BuIom Ypm siseq Sjep (e
ue Uo pauoIssIWWod pue pauue|d ale sa2IAIes Jodsuel |

*sdllepunoq A13unod pue }iomjau

9y} Ss0J9k 991A19s deridosdde woly pue 0} sajeuoau 1o} Jodsued)
Ajowiy pue pidea apinoad 03 ‘sajepp Jo seale |je 10} J/ig 99oe|d

ul si [auuosiad pauies) Aq paye)s ‘@21A19s Jodsuel) y :ajeuonjey
NOILV1H4OdSNVHL S JAILO3rdao

"uoIsIn0JId B2IAIBS |ejeu
1s0d 1noge s8I0k} [e]jeusiue ||e Je 9|qe|ieA. S| uoljewlou] | 9y
‘Buiurely yualed poddns 0] 9|gejieAR 8JB S82IN0SaY

Sy

‘Buiurely isijeroads yum yels ajeldosdde

Aq saiqeq ||e Jo} papiaolid si a1eo abieyosip 1sod | ¥’
'sJO]e[suel} pue S8}BJ0APE Yleay dluyla-ijni\

2IAPY Ou1eIYdASd/|ed1b0joydAsd

Jeys uoddns Buipasjsealg

JOJ|osuno) juawaAealag

Jesinpy [enjuids

IO |BI100S

:9|qejieAe ale saolnlas poddns Buimol|o) 8y} 0} SS820Y

€

Page 83



clLoc
yolep

¢loc 94

Zloc
yolep
pu3

aoe(d u|

1oW ale

palnuapl seale
[800] ||& ainsus 0|

Sonss| aje|edss

pue sisanbal
[|e Jojuow 0y

waisAs dojenaQg

Jajsuen

Ageq pue Jayjow

Jo} aulepinb
ajeudoidde
dojanaq

“ueul wielald Ajsweanxe ay) Jo Juswabeuew
pue uoneyosnsal ay) Joj eoe|d ul s j0o0joid pealbe uy

9

18w Ajjented

ONno3

SpIXO JljIU pajeyu]

uoddns oidoujouy

wswabeuew pinj4

uoddns Aloje|iuap

Adesay) Juejoepung

uoljeJ]siuiWwpe ploJa)s [ejeusiuy

:Buuinbal saigeq Jo Juswaebeuew

pue aJed ay} pue |ab |oyooje Jo asn ‘Buiysem puey

‘wnwWiulW B se apnjoul 8say ] "NDIN @Y1 Ulylim pajipne pue

aoe|d ul aJe s|joo0joid pue saulepinb ‘sAemyied |eoiulD

ybBiy saA1993a pjIys ayj jey} ainsua ||Im Ajjeuoneu

paaibe pue Ajapim paje|nalid sauljapinb pue sfemyjed -aauapind
a|qejieAe }saq 3y} UO pask( PaIdAlIdp 3] |[IM a1 :3jeuoijey
JONVNYIA0D TVIINITO/SIANITIAIND

ANV ST7020.103d ‘SAVMHLVd TVIINITO :9 JAILO3Ard0

papJlooal sAemje jou sanss|
pasu jawun 1dey siaysuel jo 6o

"sse@00.d Jipne [enuue NDIN 84l Jo ued se papnjoul 8q
pINoYs uonew.olul Siy| "suoseal ay) Yim sisenbal jowiun

U@@Cmtm Slajsuel) uasym
Swies) [eojul|d Y} 0} uonippe
ul a|ge|ieAe spew ale Jje1s

Buipnjoul siajsuel; |e jo Boj pajielop e sdesy yun yoeg | g'g
‘wea} anedul [ealulo ay)
1O 9SOy} 0} UONIPPE Ul 8le slajsuel) Jo} |qisuodsal yeis | ¢'g

juesald
1e aoe|d ul Agqeq pue Jayjow Jo
Jajsuely Joj aulipinb uapum oN

aoe(d Ul Jaysuel)
048]N Ul JO JUBLISSaSSe Ysi
pue Jajsuel) Joj auljapInb usnLpn

"awoy Jeau Jiun e 0} }oeq
Buinow uaym Jayjaboy Ageq pue Jayjow Jo Jajsuel) ay)
"YJoM]}au 8y}

ssoJoe AoueuBaid ysu ybiy e yyum Jayjow e Jo Jajsuel) ay)

.Joj 90e|d Ul a1 sjuswabuelle USNIA

€q

Page 84



2oe|d U]

aoe(d u|

aoe|d u|

}JomieN

NOW
yum jJuswdolanap Jo ssaooud uj|

1ds30 pue SIdVO
- saseqeje(] |euonep ojul pasy 0} aoe(d Ul ale sWo)sAg

L9

‘wiea) JuswdojaAsp pjIyo [B20] B 0] palisjal aq pjnoys
uonIpuoo [eyuswdojaAapoINaU palilusp! Ue YIm saiqeq ||V

99

‘Klpigiow sossasse

ey uodal [enuue ue aonpoud [Im NOIN @Yl "NOIN
ay} 01 AlpigJow uo suodal pajielap Hwgns jsnw jiun AJang

g9

(g siyedaH pue AH Buipnjour) [0J3u0d uonodjU| )
‘'sainpad0o.id uojeUILEXS WBMOW }SOd ‘@

saljewdsouqe diy jo Buiusalog p

sso| Buleay Jo} Bulusaidg o

Aunjewsaud jo Ayjedounal 1oy Juswieal} pue Buiusalog q
uleiq 8y} JO UOIJBUIWIEXS PUNOSEl}N |elqala) e

:J0} 82e|d Ul ale $|020}0.1d

7’9

‘pue|bug

0] JopJog 8y} SSO.IO. 10 SB|BAA Ul SSOI0B pallajsuel) aq o}
poau salgeq Uaym 99IAI9S SSO|WEeas B 8INSus 0] SHyJomjau
Bulnoqybieu yym aoe|d ul aie sjuswabuelly ‘pasu
|eolulo 01 Buiploooe YIoMmiau 8yl UIYlMm Sliun usamiaq
pallajsuel) ale saiqeq ainsus 0] soe|d Ul aJe $|000]0.d

€9

Page 85



aoe(d u|

aoe|d uj

aoe(d u|

aoe|d u|

‘sjuspIoUl
piemolun |e jo Buipodal uspioul
yum aoe|d ul sjuswabuelse
2oueuIaA0b Jsngol ale aiay ]

" Jousebpeg pajuswadwii

sey pleog yjjesH ay |

"€102/210Z 40} d|qe|ieAe s| podal
|[enuue ue ainsus o0} swwelbold

1PNy |E}EUOSU [BUOIIRU BY]}
yum Bupjuy se preog yyesy sy

“jun yoea ul
S[ENPIAIPUI pES| PaWEeU aJe alay |

‘Buipasyisealq [njsse0ons Joj Jun Ajiwey ay) buioddns

uo Bululely aAle081 salgeq Buipas) Ul PpaAjOAULl Jels IV | 2
“Jomawe.y Aouajedwod e uo paseq

a|ge|ieAe Ajipeal S| uoljeanpa |ejeuoau uonensibal 1sod | €/
"(SIN) Hoddng aj17 ulogmaN

Jo} awuwesboud uonepieaal buijjos B pue 0} SS822€ |eniul
aAeY S8)BUOBU ||I A||eo)Io 1o} Bulled sasinu pue s10o0p IV | 22
"(STIN) Hoddng 8417 ulogmaN ul pautesy

ale solpaweled Buipnjoul ‘syuiq swoy Buipusne yeis
*Kjajes aoin1as Ajijenb ybiy e JaAljap 0} piepue)ls pall
paules} aie wea} [euoissajoid-iInw ayj Jo sidaquisw ||y :3jeuoiey
JONVNYH3IAN0D

AVOINITO/ONINIVYL ANV NOILYONAd3 -2 3AILD3rgdo

"SJUBpIoUI 8sJaApe wody Bulules| pue
Bunebnsaaul ‘Buniodal Jo) aoe|d Ul 8JB SWB)SAS 2INSUD »
‘pasiwoldwon si Alojes 1uaned usym

SIN220 pJeog i1sni| ayj 0} Buniodal uondaoxa ainsus .
‘siseq |enuue

ue U0 93)}IWWod 9oUBUISA0B |eD1UlD ISNl] 8y} 0} 8WO09IN0
ay) Jodau pue splepuels asay} jsuiebe a21AIas ay) JIpne «
‘1snu] 8y} UIyIm sjuswaoidwl puswiwooal o) pue
uelolulo pes| ay) Aq peonpo.d yodal Jipne ay) JapIsuod o} «
‘dno.b

Hpne [eolulo e dn 1es - NdVg @Y} ybnouy) pajeulpiood
sawwelboud jipne |ejeuosu jeuoneu ul sjediolied .

‘NOI 8y} ybnouyy

pajeulpio-02 awuwelboud jipne sajep) [je 8y} ul ajedionied .
‘aJeo jo Ayjenb uo isni] a8y} Joj podal jenuue ue aonpoud «
‘a1jua9 1sieoads pajeubisap ay)

0} pajIWpe S8seD [BJeuOaU [|e UO uoliewloul jo ainyded
aAIsuayaidwod ay) J0) pes| aoueulanob [eolulo sl |

By} 0} a|gisuodsal S| oYM |enpIAIpUl paWeU B Salijuapl «
-:21ju9 Jsijeoads pajeubisap yoes jey) [eluasse si |

89

Page 86



aoe(d u|

"90IAIBS
8} JO Jusuodwod 8102 B S| 81ed [BleuosU OJul yolessay

G/

Page 87



Agenqga ltem 4

GG | Bwrdd lechyd

d’~o Aneurin Bevan
~°’ N HS Health Board

Qur Ref: AG/IP Direct Line: 01495 765072 16 March 2012

Ms Christine Chapman

Chair

Children and Young People Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Ms Chapman
Children and Young People Committee — Neonatal Services

Thank you for your letter dated 21 February 2012 regarding the above and
the request for information for the Committee ahead of an oral evidence
session to be held after Easter. I am pleased to provide the information
requested and for ease of reference I will address each of the bullet points
from your letter in turn as follows:

e A copy of your current local neonatal action plan, including
information about the mechanisms you have put in place to
monitor and evaluate the implementation of the key actions
within these plans with timescales.

Attachment 1 for is our detailed action plan that we complete for the
Network on a 6 monthly basis.

Attachment 2 is our updated action plan towards achieving compliance with
the All Wales Neonatal Standards based on the recommendations of the
Neonatal Network’s 2012 Capacity Review.

Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board
Bloc A Block A

Ty Mambhilad Mambhilad House

Ystad Parc Mambhilad Mambhilad Park Estate

Pontypwl Pontypool

Tor-faen NP4 0YP Torfaen NP4 QYP

Ffon: 01495 765061 Tel: 01495 765061

NHS
oéo GIG

0 Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan Eit ol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Aneurin Bevan
Aneurin Bevan Health Board im io name of Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board



e A copy of the latest annual report on quality of care (as set out in
Standard 6.8 of the All Wales Neonatal Standards), alongside
information on the number of instances of when patient safety
has been compromised.

Attachment 3 is a copy of latest Neonatal Annual Report for the Royal Gwent
Hospital.

Attachment 4 is a copy of latest Neonatal Annual Report for Nevill Hall
Hospital.

e An outline of any action taken and any plans for investing into
neonatal services in the short, medium and longer term to ensure
all services in your area are fully compliant with the Standards.

The Health Board has appointed an additional 10 WTE nurses to its neonatal
unit over the last 18 months reducing reliance on nurse bank and agency
staffing. You will appreciate that the national shortage of experienced
neonatal nurses results in many of the newly recruited nurses requiring
skills and competence to care for the most sick and premature babies. As a
consequence we have reviewed the induction and training programme
where nurses acquire the skills and competencies by the end of a 6 month
period rather than previously when this could take up to 2 years to achieve.

The Board recognises that further investment is needed to address the
shortfall in compliance with the All Wales Standards. The Health Board
plans to continue its investment in nurse staffing on a phased basis and
work towards providing the cot configuration and occupancy levels required
to meet the recommendations of the 2012 Capacity Review recently
published by the Neonatal Network.

A paper on the All Wales Neonatal standards will be considered by the
Health Board at its meeting on 28 March 2012. This will propose the
appointment of a further 6.2 WTE registered nurses and 1.6 WTE
unregistered/nursery nurses in 2012/13.

Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board
Bioc A Block A
Ty Mamhilad Mambhilad House
Ystad Parc Mamhilad Mamhilad Park Estate
Pontypwl Pontypool
Tor-faen NP4 0YP Torfaen NP4 OYP
Ffon: 01495 765061 Tel: 01495 765061
Q. NHS

°3° GIG

Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan yw en jidre! wrdd lechyd Lleol Aneurin Bevan
Aneurin Bevan Health Board is the operaf¥orial name of Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board



e The costs associated with cross border transfers, including the
amount paid to English PCTs for the transfer of neonates as well
as the income generated by Welsh Providers.

Information on our spend outside of the Health Board for neonatal activity is
not readily and specifically available on an actual basis. This is because
neonatal activity is part of the WHSSC portfolio so all costs get charged
there in the first instance and are then recharged back to us on a risk share
basis. The current forecast level for this is just over £1m for 2011/12 but
this will be predominantly for costs with other Welsh Health Boards (mainly
Cardiff but a small element for Cwm Taf and ABM as well). In addition, we
pay English PCTs direct as part of our contracts (circa £60k this year) but
this is predominantly special care baby unit (SCBU) charges as again
neonatal activity will be charged to WHSSC either initially or through
contract validation.

In terms of income for the Health Board for neonatal activity, as a provider
we report neonatal activity within SCBU numbers. The combined income for
income for SCBU and neonatal activity in 2011/12 is forecast at c£300k.

e Whether you have had any discussions with WHSSC and
neighbouring LHBs about the overall increase in cots needed and
any joint planning as to where they are located and at what level
of intensity.

Discussions have been initiated by the Neonatal Network (which includes all
the local Health Boards and WHSSC in its membership) following the very
recent publication of the 2012 Neonatal Capacity Review which identifies cot
requirements by level by Health Board. Addressing the recommendations of
this Review is a priority for Chief Executives and Boards and Neonatal
Services are routinely discussed within and across Health Boards.

e Whether any work has been undertaken with neighbouring
Boards, or the Welsh Government via WHSSC, on workforce
planning to address what impact changes to junior doctor
recruitment and the number of training places in the future will
have on services in coming years.

I can confirm that all Local Health Boards are currently engaged in reviewing
the future implications of changes to junior doctor recruitment and
availability on services. Collectively the impact on service delivery is being
planned through the work currently taking place to develop a South Wales
regional plan. Cleary there will be significant issues to work through around

Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board
Bloc A Block A
Ty Mamhilad Mambhilad House
Ystad Parc Mambhilad Mamhilad Park Estate
Pontypw! Pontypool
Tor-faen NP4 0YP Torfaen NP4 0YP
Ffon: 01495 765061 Tel: 01495 765061
Q- NHS
g2 GIG
D Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Aneurin Bevan

Aneurin Bevan Health Board is tF«!ag@ioga@\ame of Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board



sustaining some fragile services and different service models. There will be
limits on future paediatric posts and future neonatal services have to be
managed alongside those solutions.

I hope this information is helpful but if anything further is required please do
hesitate to let me know.

Yours sincerely

UGt Pqpe_—)t

Judith Paget

Deputy Chief Executive
For and on behalf of Dr Andrew Goodall, Chief Executive, and in his absence

Enc.
Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board
Bloc A Block A
Ty Mamhilad Mambhilad House
Ystad Parc Mamhilad Mambhilad Park Estate
Pontypwl Pontypool
Tor-faen NP4 0YP Torfaen NP4 0YP
Ffon: 01495 765061 Tel: 01495 765061

0 NHS
CLe

§° GIG

Bwrdd lechyd Aneurin Bevan yw e weithrego Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Aneurin Bevan
Aneurin Bevan Health Board is the%agﬁa e of Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board



6.8|lt is essential that each designated specialist centre:- Not achieved - in some areas Audit participation and 2012
« identifies a named individual who is responsible to the Trust clinical reporting will be completed
governance lead for the comprehensive capture of information on all neonatal after a full year of data and
cases admitted to the designated specialist centre; once the the All-Wales
+ produce an annual report for the Trust on quality of care; audit programme is up and
+ participate in the all Wales audit pregramme co-ordinated through the MCN; running
* participate in national neonatal audit programmes coordinated through the
BAPM - set up a clinical audit group;

+ to consider the audit report produced by the lead clinician and to recommend
r__._..n3<mam:$ within the Trust;
+ audit the service against these standards and report the cutcome to the Trust
clinical governance committee on an annual basis;
+ ensure exception reporting to the Trust Board occurs when patient safety is
compromised;
+ ensure systems are in place for reporting, investigating and learning from
_nnz_o_.mo incidents.
CTIVEEDUCATIONIANDITRAINING/CEINICATIG OVERNANCE
JAllmembers of the multi-professional team are trained to the required
toldslivenaliighiqualitysenvicelsafely S T
.1|Staff attending home births, including paramedics are trained in Newborn Life NLS programme is part of
Support (NLS). mandatory training for
ABHB Community
Midwives. Paramedics not
under remit of ABHB.
7.2|All doctors and nurses caring for critically ill neonates have initial access to and
a rolling revalidation programme for Newborn Life Support (NLS).

7.3|Post registration neonatal education is readily available based on a competency|
framework.

7.4]All staff involved in feeding babies receive training on supporting the family unit
for successful breastfeeding.

7.5|Research into necnatal care is a core component of the service. Partially achieved Compliance and 2012113

Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap

and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in

January 2012

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 92



atea wide anc ag ] nationa e al O

Clinical pathways, guidelines and protocols are in place and audited within the
MCN. These include as a minimum, hand washing, use of alcohol gel and the
care and management of babies requiring:

Antenatal steroid administration

Surfactant therapy

Ventilatory support

Fluid management

Inotropic support

Inhaled nitric oxide

ECMO

6.2

An agreed protocol is in place for the resuscitation and management of the
extremely preterm infant.

6.3

Protocols are in place to ensure babies are transferred between units within the
network according to clinical need. Arrangements are In place with
neighbouring networks to ensure a seamless service when babies need to be

transferred across in Wales or across the border to England.
RIS

6.4

Protocols are in place for:

a. Cerebral Ultrasound examination of the brain

b. Screening and treatment for retinopathy of prematurity
c. Screening for hearing loss

d. Screening of hip abnormalities

e. Post mortem examination procedures.

f. Infection control (including HIV and Hepatitis B)

6.5

Every unit must submit detailed reports on morbidity to the MCN. The MCN will
produce an annual report that assesses morbidity.

6.

2]

All babies with an identified neurodevelopmental condition should be referred to
a local child development team.

6.7

Systems are In place to feed into National Databases - CARIS and CESDI.

Achieved

Achieved

Partially achieved Protocols still require 201213
formalisation between
networks

Achieved

Ongoing and possible Further work required 2012/13
through BadgerNet

Achieved

Achieved

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 93



43

Access to the following support services are available:
Social Worker

Spiritual Adviser

Bereavement Counsellor

Breastfeeding support staff

Psychological/Psychiatric Advice

Multi-ethnic health advocates and translators.

4.

S

Post discharge care is provided for all babies by appropriate staff with specialist
fraining.

45

Resources are available to support parent training.

4.6

Information is available at all antenatal facilities about post natal service
provision.

DO & o ared b dined Perso sk - or ail
1o 0 epnate 0 0 1o
O

Transport services are planned and commissioned on an all Wales basis with
working arrangements in place for each network and across the border with
England. All units accepting and/or referring neonates have, or have access to,
an appropriately staffed and equipped transport service.

5.2

Arrangements are in place in partnership between maternity and neonatal units
for the timely transfer of the mother (in-utero transfer) when a high-risk situation
is anticipated. Written arrangements are in place for the transfer of the neonate
who requires care at a level not available at the place of birth.

6.3

Written arrangements are in place for:

the transfer of a mother with a high risk pregnancy across the network.
the transfer of mother and baby together when moving back to a unit near
home.

5.4

Staff responsible for transfers are in addition to those of the clinical inpatient
team,

5.

o

Each unit keeps a detailed log of all transfers including unmet requests with the
reasons. This information should be included as part of the MCN annual audit

process.

Not/ or partially achieved for Directorate to pursue 201213
bereavement counsellors; partnership arrangements
psychological/psychiatric advise; |in order to develop and
multi-ethnic health advocates. provide relevant support
services - skills /
experience not currently
held within the Directorate
Achieved
Partially achieved (staff within the [Parent training will be 2012113
unit have taken on these roles in |formalised following
addition to their routine work). confirmation of staffing
levels - Compliance and
Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012
Achieved with the start of the
CHANTS
Partially achieved (informal Arrangements fo be 201213
agreements and arrangements  |formalised with written
are in place). protocols in agreement with
the Network
Partially achieved {informal Arrangements to be 2012113
agreements are in place agreed [formalised with written
by obstetricians and protocols in agreement with|
neonatologists) the Network
Achieved Achieved but funding only
provided for a 12 hour
_ua:on via the neonatal
Transport Network, therfore|
gap covered by ABHB

Achieved with the data available
from BadgerNet

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 94



3.6

An agreed appropriate budget is available to purchase and maintain equipment
for neonatal care to meet these standards.

3.7

Joint working arrangements are In place with the local Medical Technical
Department responsible for equipment safety and maintenance including the
blood-gas analyser.

3.8

Partially achieved (replacement
equipment requirements are
identified on a rolling basis,
however there is no top sliced
funding and all replacement items
have to be bid for).

Compliance and
Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012

2012/13

24-hour laboratory services are available which are orientated to neonatal
needs.

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved at Royal Gwent Hospital
and Nevill Hall Hospital

Achieved

3.9|Each cot on a Neonatal Intensive Care Unit or High Dependency Unit has the
following equipment:
a. Incubator or unit with radiant heating
b. Ventilator* and NCPAP driver with humidifier
c. Syringe/infusion Pumps
d. Facilities for monitering the following variables:
i. Respiration
ii. Heart rate
iii. Intra-vascular blood pressure
iv. Transcutaneous or intra-arterial oxygen tension
v. Oxygen saturation
vi. Ambient Oxygen. * Intensive Care Cot only
3.10(Each Neonatal Intensive Care or High Dependency Unit has access to the
following equipment:
a. Resuscitation
b. Blood gas analysis (on the neonatal unit by unit staff)
¢. Phototherapy
d. Non-invasive blood pressure measurement
. Transillumination by cold light
f. Portable x-rays
g. Ultrasound scanning
h. Expression of breast milk
i. Transport equipment (including mechanical ventilation)
j- Instant photographs (consent based).
VE™ ARETD HE'BAB D PA PER
J U DO sj{— O e O D o T - alfe
4.1|Breast feeding is actively encouraged in the unit.
4.2|Breast feeding is facilitated by the provision of breast pumps, an area for

expressing and for storing expressed milk.

Achieved

Achieved

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 95



account local differences.

32
Neonatal facilities are adjacent to labour suites.

3.

[

All units within a MCN have in place an IT infrastructure that allows consistent
information to be collected and collated across the network.

3.

B

All neonatal units are able to transfer clinical details of a baby electronically
when a baby is transferred.

intensive and high dependency
cots adequate in number for
activity level).

Development Plan being
prepared fo set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012

2.21|A Level Il unit has SHOs/ANNPs dedicated to the neonatal service. Not achieved at Nevill Hall Compliance and 201213
Hospital (SHO's cross cover Development Plan being
General Paediatrics out-of-hours) |prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012
A nursing ratic of 14 i is uSe.ama for babies requiring Special Care. Not applicable to the Aneurin
Bevan Health Board
2.23| The unit can provide evidence that the establishment is correct for the number Not applicable to the Aneurin
of Special Care cots commissioned. Bevan Health Board
2.24|A Level | unit has a designated consultant paediatrician responsible for the Not applicable to the Aneurin
clinical standards of care of the newborn babies. Bevan Health Board
._._mm FORINEONATAMSERVICESHNCEUDINGEQUPMENT
and ummm quipment and faciltfies are avaiable to |
bal )l [thelnfamilies.
1[Neonatal facilities are commissioned based on population need, taking into Partially achieved (number of Compliance and 2012113

and Nevill Hall Hospital

Achieved at Royal Gwent Hospital|

Achieved with the use of

_Pn_.__mcma with the use of

3.5|Support services are readily available. These include:
Pharmacy

Dietetics

Therapy

Screening

Genetics

Physiotherapy

Social Work

Speech and Language Therapy

These include staff with expertise in the care of neonates.

and Nevill Hall Hospital

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 96



2.12|A Level lll unit has SHO/SHO equivalent dedicated to the neonatal service.

2.13|Clerical and support staff are in place in all units to provide discharge support,
e.9. specialist nurse, liaison health visitor. This is in addition to the clinical
establishment.

2.14{Follow up support near the baby's home Is provided by the local community
children’s nursing team in liaison with a specialist neonatal nurse.

21

o

Every level lll unit should have a designated senior nurse manager who is
supernumerary to the staff establishment. An element of this role will be to
manage the Level lll unit and its relationship with Level | and |l units in its

network. »
[ETITCara iniCeve Ut =3
natalHigh’Dependency Cars

2.16|A nursing ratio of 1:2 is provided for babies _...m...nci_._u. ,.._6_., Dependency care.
The named nurse has training in neonatal care.

2.17|The unit can provide evidence that the establishment is correct for the number
of High Dependency cots commissioned.

2.18|A Level Il unit has one consultant who is responsible for the direction and
management of the unit including the menitoring of clinical policies, practice
and standards.

2.19|A Level Il unit has 24-hour availability of a consultant ar non consultant career
grade doctor with necnatal training. This consultant can evidence up to date
CME in neonatology and new developments.

Partially achieved for nursing but |Compliance and 2012113
they are not in addition to the Development Plan being
clinical establishment. The prepared to set out gap
shortage of medical secretarial  |and confirm investment
support for additional Transport  |requirments - to be
consultants is resolved presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012
Partially achieved at Nevill Hall  [Compliance and 2012113
Hospital _csa_ouama Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012
Not achieved at Nevill Hall Compliance and 2012113
Hospital Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012
Achieved. (neonatal consultants
at the Royal Gwent Hospital take
on that role for Nevill Hall
Hospital
Partially achieved (evidence of  |Further discussions and  |2012/13

CME in neonatology may not be

2.20|A Level Il unit has trained and experienced middle grade staff readily available

to resuscitate and stabilise babies unexpectedly requiring short term intensive
care,

plans regarding CME in
Neonatology in NHH

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 97



Effective communication mechanisms are in place for access to and discharge
from level |, Il and Il services.

-

-

eonata e =i sta ’ apprap = ainen d 4

oraing 1o 0 1t @ v provide

All units involved in the care of babies have established arrangements for the
prompt, safe and effective resuscitation and stabilisation of babies.

Achieved

22

Staff trained in neonatal resuscitation are available at every birth. When delive
of a baby at <30 weeks gestational age is anticipated, a consultant or career
gradeftraining grade doctor with necnatal training and experience should also
be present.

23

All staff involved in the delivery of high- risk pregnancies are trained to
recognise and manage neonatal and obstetric emergencies.

24

When a delivery is planned at <28 completed weeks, arrangements are in place
for the baby to be delivered at a level Ill centre.

2

o

All neonatal units have a designated neonatal nurse with protected time
dedicated to providing teaching and education of the neonatal team.

2

[=2]

27

All MCNs should have in place a MCN with a clinical Chair who has time
dedicated to the role.

A nursing ratio of 1:1 is provided for babies requiring Neonatal Intensive Care.
The named nurse has post registration gualification in Neonatal Intensive Care,

28

The unit can provide evidence that the establishment is correct for the number
of Neonatal Intensive Care cots commissioned.

28

Level lll unit consultants have their principal duties to the Neonatal Intensive
Care Unit. There is a neonatal consultant on-call rota.

2.10

All consultants appointed to Trusts with Level Il units have CCST in
Paediatrics, Neonatal Medicine or equivalent training.

2.1

A Level lll unit has a separate middle grade staff rota.

Achieved in both sites

Achieved in both sites

Achieved at both sites

Achieved

Partially achieved (this nurse has
other duties in addition)

Compliance and
Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012

201213

Achieved

Not achieved

Compliance and
Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012

2012113

Not achieved

Compliance and
Development Plan being
prepared to set out gap
and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012

201213

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved (gaps in the rota are an
ing problem though)

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 98



Compliance with All Wales Neonatal Standards
Aneurin Bevan Health Board

December 2011
KEY:
Fully compliant with standard
Some areas of standard not yet achieved
Compliance with standard not achieved
Not applicable
. .
& | 3 8
8 £ > B z 8 k 3
N c <
£ v & E & 5
- £ :
M = 3 o m W
8 8 i :
T (. i < £
B 5 s = a5 4
g E B E E
=] =] o ] m
(%] o (5] (4]
Standard | dard Text
@m,._.mgm 1: ACCESS TO NEONATAL CARE
Rationale: All newborn babiss who require over and above the normal birth pathway
irave equitable access to the appropriate level of.care in a timely manner.
1.1|Neonatal care is commissioned to meet the local and national population need. Partially achieved (the demand  |Compliance and 2012113
for intensive care and high Development Plan being
dependency care outstrips current|prepared to set out gap
capacity) and confirm investment
requirments - to be
presented to ABHB
Executive Group in
January 2012
._.w_ngmﬁ_ care is available at all levels as close to home as possible as part of a Achieved (in principle)
MCN. Each MCN has defined Level Il unit(s).
1.3|There is a clear referral pathway to and from all levels of care. Partially achieved (informal With the formation of the  |Ongoing
These pathways include:

feto-maternal assessment
transfer of the mother antenatally (including from home to specialist centre for
high risk management)

neonatal transfer

access for step up from level | to Il and subsequent step down

access for step up from level Il to Il and subsequent step down

access to other specialist services i.e. surgery, cardiclogy, neurology and
ECMO.

Necnatal Network, these
will be formalised; this work|
is ongoing

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 99



T UOISIDA

¢102/€0/91

SHUN gHgY ‘Ssawod3ino
Ajllepow pue uopes)|in
94D DAISUIIU| UBaMIaq
Jull 8yl puejsiapun
19)3=3q 0] Sawod]no
Ajlfepiow Jejiwis yum
(3pm 3N) s3un Jaylo

"IOMIBN
943 JO 3sal ayy
Yim uosiiedwod
ul aJ0|dxa 03 wea)
[B21Ul]D JUBMD)

9yl Yyum poaube

s| Abojopoyzaw

yinos ul saijiunwwo))
YiesH Jayjo

2yl yum patedwod
ybiy Ajpanela.

8q 03 sieadde
Ajunwuwod 3se3 ynos
ayl ur Ajiaoe aded

lo3oauiq UlIM S]0D 34BD DAISUIjU sisAjeue {eono Aym auojdxa 03
|e21UlD 40 3sn >Jewyduaq 9AI3Dadsoajad e ‘uonesoqe||oo uj ‘pasu
Z10¢C ‘uas 03 (34omIBN 3yl yum | ‘s|qejieae s| ejep gV Pue 3JomiaN ayL
Jaquadas | eypeyppis uopjeloge|jod ul) gHdY | 3eutebpeg aouQ z23d 1S
Auusaebuaqy
HHN Ul 300 DI
¢1°20°'8¢ 243 JO juawiysijgelsa
U0 302 DI 2U3 JO JudWysi|qelss | -sip wdiuod pjnoys gy
padinbad uope Jayping on -SIp PaW.u0d sey gy ayl TdI1¥s
€1/2102 ul Juswjsaaul "TTOC 3ung =)
[euonippe bupjass 2oujs 20e|d ul )
‘2T0Z Yaie ul pieog | ueld juawdo|anap i
9y3 03 pajywgns Ajjew.oy pue souel|dwod %u
9Q MoU [|Im Jaded S9DIAIDS ©
e ‘Wea] SARND3X3 BY] | [eIRUOSN pa|iRIep as
40 3DIApE BY3 UQ ‘'suondo B pey aAey gv | "Yodey ul ZTOZ maiaay Ajpeden
JUBLWIISaAUI BU] J9pPISU0D Jo suopzesydwi uo podau ‘splepuels
0] Wea] sARNIax3 gHaVY JELE] J9PISU0D 0] Wea] BAIINIIXT gy S9|EM IV 243 1suiebe
2107 Yyodep 9Y3 0] papiwgns pue | un 3 Sasinu uo siagwnu buiyels
40309417 | ZT0TZ Alenigad ul pajepdn | -spuey Jo saquinu ‘Aduabe pue jueq uo aouejjau 9S4Nnu Ui ||ejpioys
|euolsiaig Sem uejd Juswdojeaag | sy3 paaoiduw sey Bupnpau syjuow 8T 3sed auyj ay] ssadppe Apjuabin
‘ueyinog | pue soueldwo) sIDIAIBS SIY3 jey3l papaau 49A0 J1M 0T AQ Juawysi|geiss 03} pasiApe s| gy
wepy |E1BUOSN gHAY YL uoneuLIjuo) Buisinu sy paseauoul sey gy 9'v'SRyId I'H'S
ANIWWOD NOILISOd LNIHYEND 40 Elel ER-EFEL.]
ATVISIWIL avai J3INNVY1d NOILDY NUOMLIN ONIGNV.LISHIANN XHOMLIN | NOILVANIWWODIY

SLNIOd NOILDV ANV SNOILVANIWIWOIIY AUVIWIW

€ LNIWHOVLLY

T10T Yyddew €T :pajepdn uej|d uondy
(Ajlunwiwo) yijesH 340MIaN 1Se3 Yyinos) pieog yijeaH ueAlg ulnauy

AYOMLIN TVLVYNOIN SITVYM

NS ALINNWWOD HLTVIH - ZT0Z MIIAIY ALIDVdYD



T UOISISA

¢102/€0/971

(p41eog swiwelbold sajep yanosg Aayj se 010z 248

sawweubolyg 243 Jo >dom Bujobuo |ejeuoapn buipiaoug

salem 9Y3 03Ul pal} 0S|e S| oM s|ejidsoH 10y spiepuels
Yyinos wo.y SIY] “spJepuels wdvg

Hodau Jo aep
pajedidijue)

¢10¢
Jaquieydas

10303.1Q
[eUOISIAIQ
‘ueyinos

wepy

9y3 0} uoile|ad uj |ealdsoH
lIEH IlIASN 1e pajenjlis
jun ayj 1o syuswsbuelie
Buimainai s1 gHgy

S0IAISS NdYd

943 JO suopeddwi
Y3 J9pIsuod

01 paad ||im gy
9SO IPHS

Buiobugp

Jo3daldlg
|euolsiAlg
‘ueyinos
Wwepy

‘24e0

Aduspuadsp mo| Jo malaal
240MIBN panuiuod ayy
U3IM 3U]| Ul pamalAal aq
03 anuiuod |Im Ajdeded
Aouspuadap moj Jo |ang)
9yl "ue|d juswdojanaq
pue aoue||dwo)

paiepdn ayy ul

pa123|4a1 S| siyy {(adiape
jua.und) Acuednaoo

%08 129W pue spiepuels
9yl Yaim Juiejdwod aq 03
padinba. s300 Acuspuadap
MO| JO Jaguwinu a3
paJapisuod aney gHgV

‘ale) Aouspuadaqg
MO JO M3IADY
JIOMIBN Yyim

|ul] ul paijiuspl
9q 03 uopoYy

"pdepuels Aouednooo
%08 323W 03 padinbau §
9Q [|IM S]00 DS G 03

¥ |euonippe ue apew

9q ued sjuawanoldwi
dayuny ou |

31 'paJojdxa aqg p|noys

AJiaioe Aduspuadap

MO| 20npaJ 03 adoog

SHP'SR8EM T PG

Page 101

‘siaquinu uonendod

Aq Aldwis pauiejdxa
J0uU Induj a4ed aAlsuaiul
10j puewap |euopippe
2]ea.d p|nod jeyy siojoey
uoije|ndod |edo| asAjeue
0] »JOM UOISSILULIOD 0}
OS|e gHgV "siun ys|om
Jejiwiis 1ayjo jsuiebe
[IoM 24edwod pue 23e.
Ajljleow papuswiwodal
9Y3 UIyaim Ajjua.aund aue

‘2zis uonejndod
0] 3Aljejad sajlem

SLNIOd NOILDV ANV SNOILVQ

€ LNIWHOVLLY

NIWWODIY AYVWIWNS ALINNWWOD HLIV3IH - 2102 MIIATY ALIOVdVYD
AYOMLIN TVLVNOIN STTYM



T UOISISA

2102Z/€0/91

‘Allunwwod

JMOMIBU JBpIM BY] SSo.de
uolzeanbyuod adiALeS ‘Auuanebiaqy

dljeipsed pue |ejeuosu
pue bujyjels |eaipaw
Je Bupjoo| s yoiym paeog

pue sjun |ejeuoOap
|e207 Jo buiyels
|edipaw 03 a3ejad

Page 102

S1NIOd NOILDY ANV SNOILVAN3IWWODIY AY

€ LNIJWHDVLLVY

HYOMLIN TVLVNOIN SITVM

VWKWNS ALINNWWOD HLIVAH - ZT0Z MIIAIY ALIDVdYD



Q , GIG Bwrddlechydj

a&% NHS Aneurin Bevan

0

Health Board

Annual Report 2010
David Ferguson Neonatal Unit
Royal Gwent Hospital
Newport

Compiled and written by

Anitha James
S Sen

Enquiries: siddhartha.sen@wales.nhs.uk

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 103



Contents

1. Executive Summary 4

2. Medical Staffing and activity 7

3. Nursing Staffing and Activity 8
13

4. All Gwent Neonatal Liaison Services
5. Section 1: Perinatal Statistics
Table 5: Birth and Mortality Statistics RGH 2010 15

Table 6: Perinatal statistics compared 18
Table 7: Details of deaths in NICU 16
Table 8: Deaths after discharge or transfer 16
6. Section 2: Admissions and Activity
Table 9: Unit admissions 18
Table 10: Sources of admissions of inborn deliveries 18
18

Table 11: Booking status of inborn babies
Table 12: Outborn sources of admission (excluding readmissions) 19

Table 13: Reasons for admission

Table 14: Readmissions 20
Table 15: Destinations of babies transferred out 20
Table 16: Specialist Referrals out 21
Table 17: Level of care 22

22

Table 18: Level of care and cot occupancy rates
Table 19: Break-up of Intensive Care activity 22

Table 20: Monthly activity 23
Figure 1. Monthly activity of level of care 23
Table 21: 18 years comparison of activity (2010) 24
Figure 2: Levels of activity 1994-2010 24

25

Table 22: Respiratory Therapy given
Table 23: A/N Steroid exposure in inbom babies 25

Table 24: Practical procedures/investigations done 26
Table 25: Treatments given 26
Table 26: Significant organisms isolated 27
7. Section 3: Outcomes

Table 27: NICU admissions and survival by gestational age 29
Table 28: NICU Admissions and Deaths by gestation bands 29
Table 29: NICU Admissions and Deaths below defined gestations 29
Table 30: NICU Admissions and Deaths in various weight bands 30
Table 31: NICU Admissions and Deaths below specified weight categories 30
Table 32: 20 years comparison of survival at different gestations 31
Figure 3: Percentage survival by gestation over various year bands 32
Table 33: Comparison of gestation specific survival

of Wales (2009)* and RGH (2006-2010) 32
Table 34: 18 years survival of babies at different weight bands 33
Figure 4: 18 years survival of babies at different weight bands 33
Table 35: Short term morbidity in VLBW infants 34

8. Section 4: Benchmarking

Figure 5: RGH shrunken standardized morbidity and mortality ratios (2007-2008) 36
Figure 6: RGH (2008-10) O-E shrunken Death or Morbidity 37
Figure 7: RGH (2008-10) O-E shrunken Chronic Lung Disease 37
Figure 8: RGH (2008-10) O-E shrunken Necrotising Enterocolitis 38
Figure 9: RGH (2008-10) O-E shrunken severe intraventricular haemorrhage 38
Figure 10: RGH (2008-10) O-E shrunken retinopathy of prematurity 39
Figure 11: RGH (2008-10) O-E shrunken coagulase negative staph infection 39
Table 36: RGH (2008) Survival with no known morbidity 40

Table 37: RGH 2010: Benchmarking outcomes with the Vermont Oxford Network (2010) 41
Figure 12: Vermont Oxford data of key performance measures of babies < 1500 g

RGH (2010) versus all other NICUs in the Network (2010) and in the UK (2010) 41
Table 38: Vermont Oxford data of key performance measures of babies < 1500 g

RGH (2007, 2008, 2009, 2010) versus all other NICUs in the Network (2010) and

in the UK (2010) 42
Figure 13: Vermont Oxford data of key performance measures of babies < 1500 g
RGH (2007, 2008, 2009, 2010) versus all other NICUs in the Network (2010) and

in the UK (2010) 42

9. Section 5: Audits
Table 39: Summary of Medical Audits (March 08-Feb 09) 44

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 104



Annual Report 2010 - Summary

Section 1
Perinatal Statistics

There were a total of 3732 babies delivered in the Royal Gwent (including home deliveries)
and there were 25 still births. The total births are 4.7% higher than that of the average of the
region over the last 5 years, 2005- 2009 (3562 births).

The Perinatal Mortality Rate, Stillbirth Rate and the Neonatal Mortality Rates of the Royal
Gwent Hospital (2010) are compared to that of Wales and England, (Table 6) and it is seen
that the Royal Gwent Hospital figures, particularly Neonatal Mortality Rates (per 100 live
births) compare very well with the national figures.

Section 2
Admissions and Activity
(Tables 9 to 26)

There were a total of 395 admissions in 2010, of which 24 were readmissions making a total
of 371 infants admitted to the unit. A majority of the admissions (322, 86.8%) were inborn
babies which included 25 in-utero transfers from other hospitals. Forty eight babies were
retrieved or transferred in after birth from another hospital.

There were 24 readmissions (19 babies) which included babies that had been referred for
specialist surgical or cardiac care. A total of 32 specialist referrals out were made and it
involved 28 babies. Seventy-seven babies were transferred back to their parent units for
follow up care (tables 6-11).

Activity and occupancy:

The British Association of Perinatal Medicine (BAPM) redefined the categories of care in
2001. These categories of care reflected the increasing complexity of care and resources
required for babies in the three categories, Intensive care (IC), High Dependency Care (HD)
and Special Care (SC). For historical comparisons, the sum of IC and HD care, under these
new definitions approximates to the former BAPM definition of intensive care (Level 1 and
Level 2). From table 21 it can be seen that the high level of IC and HD care activity have been
increasing steadily and the current figure of 3786 days is 2.5 times the figure in 1994 when
the cot allocations were made. The relative drop in SC activity from historical figures is
explained by some changes in neonatal practices including earlier discharges and repatriation
of many stable babies to level 2 units. Also, the Transitional Care, which has been in
operation for the last 7 years, has prevented 116 admissions to the Unit and accounted for
236 fewer days of SC.

At the NICU at the Royal Gwent Hospital the funded capacity is based historically on the
Stroud Report of 1993: 7 Intensive Care/High Dependency cots (this has never been
separated out) and 13 Special Care cots. Since the Interim Business Case (2008) the funded
cot capacity was notionally increased to: 7 Intensive care, 7 High Dependency care and 6
Special care cots. The cot occupancy rates have been increasing year on year and the
ITU/HDU occupancy currently is currently 80% (unfunded spaces), with a total occupancy
rate of 89% (unfunded spaces) against a recommendation of 70% (Table 30). Overall activity
is continuing to rise with continuing improvement in survival in babies less than 28 weeks
gestation. (Table 31, Fig 3) and increasing birth rates throughout Wales. With the functional
de-designation of other neighbouring units as a Level Il Unit within a South Wales Neonatal
Network this increasing trend in intensive care activity will accelerate. This increase in activity
can only be accommodated by an increase in resource allocation.

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 4

Page 105



Section 3

Outcome (Tables 27-35, Figs. 3-4)

Survival:

The outcome for survival has been sustained and been improved across all gestations in
2010 (Table 27 and 32). The 6 year rolling commutative data over the past 20 years shows
that survival has increased dramatically in babies of the youngest gestations. During 2004-
2010, babies born between 25-30 weeks gestation had a 94% chance of survival to discharge

(Table 32).

A comparison of gestation specific survival for all of Wales (including the Royal Gwent
Hospital) in 2009 (All Wales Perinatal Survey, 2009) against the Royal Gwent Hospital (2006-
2010) figures (Table 33) shows that the RGH compares very well to the all Wales figures
across all gestations.

A comparison of birth weight specific survival shows a continued and sustained improvement
in survival from historical figures in all weight bands but particularly in the lower weight bands

(table 34).

Short term morbidity:

Sepsis:

Blood culture proven sepsis was seen in 9.2% of all admissions. This figure was 11% for
2009 and 12.1% in 2008. Our report from the Vermont Oxford database report (Table 37)
however shows that our late onset infection rates among VLBW infants is very high and most
are related to percutaneous long lines. We have introduced the long-line care bundle in 2011
and expect some improvement in these figures.

Chronic lung disease (CLD), Retinopathy of prematurity (ROP stage 3), Intraventricular
haemorrhage (IVH grades 3 and 4) and Necrotising enterocolitis (NEC):

Short term morbidity in surviving babies born between 401-1500g is presented in table 35.
Chronic lung disease (CLD) was seen in 18%, necrotising enterocolitis (NEC) in 9.6% and
Grades 3 and 4 intraventricular haemorrhages (IVH) was seen in 8.1% in this group. Stage 3
retinopathy of prematurity (ROP) was seen in 9.6%. All these figures are comparable to
previous years and published literature.

Long term morbidity:

For premature babies of 30 weeks gestation and less born in 2005, follow-up data at 2 years
of age was analysed using the National Perinatal Epidemiology (NPEU) criteria. Neuromotor
impairment was seen in 10%, hearing impairment 2%, visual disability 0% and growth failure
32%. These figures compare very well to published figures. These data were collected
retrospectively, and from the next year, we would be able to present more accurate and
comprehensive data from the ongoing 2 year neurodevelopmental clinic database.

Section 4
Benchmarking (Tables 36-38, Figs. 5-9)

The Vermont Oxford Network (VON) is a network collaboration of over 700 neonatal units,
mainly in the USA and includes about 20 units from the UK. Since 2007, we have been
submitting our data to the VON for benchmarking.

The detailed reports for 2007-2010 are presented in figures 5-11 and table 36. As was
presented in the Annual Report 2009, most parameters, apart from late infection and
coagulase negative staphylococcus infection is within the 1-3 quartiles seen within the

network.

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 5

Page 106



The 2010 raw data shows a very similar trend (table 37 and figure 12). These figures show
that mortality was significantly lower in the RGH; death or morbidity, necrotising enterocolitis,
severe ROP and severe |VH were comparable whereas chronic lung disease (CLD) and
coagulase negative staphylococcal infection were higher at the RGH in 2010. The reasons for
this are being looked at very carefully, and the high diagnosis of CLD is a reflection of the
higher survival rates. The combined data for 2007 to 2010 is presented in a consolidated
table (table 38) and in future years, this will be expanded.

New Developments

e Dr Anneli Allman has continued to provide a detailed neurodevelopment assessment
service where all babies <32 weeks are assessed at 2 years corrected. These babies
undergo a Baileys assessment and a detailed neurologic assessment. This service has
extended to include all babies born at Nevill Hall Hospital.

¢ Dr Sunil Reddy has started a neonatal murmur clinic at Nevill Hall Hospital

e Dr Sue Papworth leads the liaison with maternity services and a fetal liaison is being
developed.

o The BadgerNet neonatal data collecting system has been functional since December
2010 and is now the principle system of data collection.

o A total of 16 babies have been undergone therapeutic hypothermia till December 2010
and reported to the TOBY Encephalopathy Registry.

e The Royal Gwent Hospital has been a part of the Vermont Oxford Network and has been
submitting data for the 4™ successive year.

o  Successful recruitment of 2 consultants (Dr Anitha James and Dr Maria Tsakmakis) has
taken place as a part of all Wales transport service which became operational in January
2011.

Audit and Research

o A list of unit audits carried out during 2009-10 is shown in Table 39

Staffing
Medical Staff:

Senior Medical Staff:

Dr Siddhartha Sen, Consultant Neonatologist, Clinical Director Neonatal Services.
Secretary: Eireen Sakke

Dr Sue Papworth, Consultant Neonatologist
Secretary: Beverly Collins

Dr Anneli Allman, Consultant Neonatologist
Secretary: Wendy Underwood

Dr Tanoj Kollamparambil, Consultant Neonatologist
Secretary: Beverly Collins

Dr Sunil Reddy, Consultant Neonatologist
Secretary: Eireen Sakke

Dr Aftab Murtaza, Associate Specialist

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 6

Page 107



Table 1: Middle Grade Staff:

March 10 - Sep 10

Dr Sarmistha Maity (Specialty Doctor)

Dr Anitha James (SpR, Grid Trainee)

Dr Ram Venkata (ST3)

Dr Deepa Punjwani (Flexible Trainee, ST4)
Dr Vaishali Patel (Flexible Trainee, ST4)
Dr Ambika Shetty (Flexible Trainee, ST4)
Dr Takin Omolukin (ST3)

Dr Saurabh Patwardhan (ST3)

Sep 10 - March 2011

Dr Sarmistha Maity (Specialty Doctor)

Dr Satish Billa (ST6)

Dr Naomi Thomas (ST5)

Dr Deepa Punjwani (Flexible Trainee, ST5)
Dr Vaishali Patel (Flexible Trainee, ST5)
Dr Ram Venkata (ST3)

Dr Prasad Parvathamma (Clinical Fellow)

Table 2: Senior House Officers:

Feb 10 — Aug 10

Dr Emily Payne (ST3)

Dr Anne-Marie Proctor (Flexible Trainee,
ST2))

Dr Swapa Abraham (Flexible Trainee
FTSTAZ2)

Dr Anu Sharma (ST2)

Dr lan Morris (ST1)

Dr Ruth Hanks (ST1)

Dr Nathalie MacDermott (ST2)

Dr Ifaeyeni Kody Onunkwo (Locum)

Aug 10 — Feb 11

Dr Mariangela Labruzzo (FTSTA1)
Dr Bassam Al-Hussaini (FTSTA1)

Dr Indraneel Adkar (ST2)

Dr David Hanna (FTST2)

Dr Juliette Oakley (ST1)

Dr Sarika Goel (FTSTA2)

Dr Naveena Jain (locum FTSTA1)

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 108




Nurse Staffing and Activities

Table 3: Nurse Staffing

Neonatal NLS Additional Qualifications/Roles

Modules Certified :

| Band 8A A B - = . T e TGS -

Joan Foy 1.0 1+ 2 Yes Senior Nurse Manager, Neonatal Services
Diploma in Professional Practice, Diploma in
Research, Diploma in Infection Control, Diploma
in Clinical Effectiveness, RCN Clinical
Leadership Programme, LEQO Programme,
Health and Safety Competent Person
BSc Clinical Governance

Vital Signs 2 Management Programme

|
|

IBANGT, s R o SRR
Francis Harries 1.0 1+ 2 Yes Lead for Community Liaison Service

Research Diploma, Teaching and Assessing

Diploma, LEO Programme, Venepuncture and

cannulation, BSc Clinical Practice, Vital Signs
Nichola Maggs 0.80 1+2 Yes Certificate in Education, Research Diploma,
Clinical Effectiveness Diploma, Teaching and

Assessing Diploma, Diploma in Professional
Practice

R23 Module — Enhanced Neonatal Nursing
Practice (London), BSc Nursing Studies,

Venepuncture and cannulation

NLS Instructor. FFP mentorship

Vital Signs

Debra Broom 0.64 1+ 2 Yes Clinical Effectiveness Diploma, Teaching and

Assessing Diploma, Diploma in Community

Health Studies

R23 Module- Enhanced Neonatal Nursing
Practice (London), BSc (Hons) Nursing Studies

Venepuncture and cannulation

FFP mentorship, Vital Signs

Clare Payne 0.64 142 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma

Research Diploma

LEO Programme

BSc Nursing Studies

FFP mentorship, Vital Signs

Kym Pyne 1.00 1+2 Yes State Registered Midwife
(405) Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Respiratory Module
FFP mentorship, Vital Signs
Belinda Cook 0.64 1+2 Yes Diploma in Professional Practice, Clinical

Effectiveness Diploma, Research Diploma,
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Venepuncture and cannulation

FFP mentorship, Vital Signs, Practice
Development Facilitator

Leanne Cridland 0.64 142 Yes BSc (Hons) in Neonatal Nursing

LEO Programme

FFP mentorship, Vital Signs

Jane Stacey 1.00 {2 Yes State Registered Midwife

(405) Teaching and Assessing Diploma

R23 Module — Enhanced Neonatal Nursing
Practice

B Seconded to ANNP

Claire Richards 0.64 142 Yes Evidence Based Practice Module
Teaching and Assessing Module

BSc Clinical Practice, FFP mentorship,
S [ N A  Vital Signs, Seconded to WHISC

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 8

Page 109



Pamela Boyd 1.00 | 142 Yes State Registered Midwife.
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
LEQO Programme
Health and Safety Competent Person.
FFP mentorship
Clinical Teacher

Miriam Sheppard 0.64 1+2 Yes

Susan Watkins 0.96 1+ 2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Research Diploma
Diploma in Professional Practice
Venepuncture and cannulation

Alison Davies 0.48 2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship

Rachel Mackie 0.64 1+ 2 Yes Degree Nurse Project 2000, Teaching and
Assessing Diploma
NLS Instructor
Enhanced Neonatal Nurse Practitioner -R23
Module (London)
FFP mentorship

Susan Woods 0.80 1+ 2 Yes Venepuncture and cannulation

Niki Harris 1.00 1+2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma,
Research Diploma
BSc in Clinical Practice
Venepuncture and cannulation
FFP mentorship

Becky Graves 0.64 1+ 2 Yes Community Liaison Sister
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Higher Education Diploma in Healthcare

o Evidence Based Practice Module

Jane Lewis 0.80 1+2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship

Amanda Bartlett 1.00 1 Yes Care Pathway Co-ordinator
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship

Emma Prytherch- 0.64 1+2 Yes Diploma in Nursing (Child)

Roberts FFP mentorship

Lisa Bickerstaff 0.96 1+2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma.
Evidence Based Research Diploma.
BSc In Children’s Critical Care
FFP mentorship

Paula Wallace 0.64 1+2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship

Adele Parfitt 0.80 1+2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship

Hannah Mclintyre 0.96 1+2 Yes Evidence Based Practice Module
Enhanced Neonatal Nurse Practitioner -R23
Module (London)

Clare Avery 0.96 142 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship

Claire Smallbone 1.00 1+2 Yes Evidence Based Practice Module
Degree pathway

Anna Edwards 0.80 1+2 Yes FFP mentorship
Degree pathway

Ceri Halborg 0.96 1+2 Yes FFP mentorship
Degree pathway

Claire Payne (Goode) 0.64 1+2 Yes

Dean Pask 1.00 1+2 Yes FFP mentorship

Band 5 b s i

Julie Seldon 1.00 1+ 2 Yes Research Diploma
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
FFP mentorship i

Louise James 0.64 1 Yes Community Liaison Service
Teaching and Assessing Diploma

Becki Pembridge 0.64 1+2 Yes

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 110




Tracey Williams | 1.00 ENB 402 Yes Registered General Nurse

ENB 998-Teaching and Assessing

Research Diploma

Essentials in Nursing the Critical Care Patient
Diploma, FFP mentorship

Ros Price 0.96 1+2 Yes Research Diploma

Evidence Based Practice Module

FFP mentorship

Lyn Franklin 0.64 1+ 2 Yes Community Liaison Service
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Sue Elliot 0.80 1 FFP mentorship
Rachel Penny 0.64 1+2 Yes Degree Nurse Project 2000
FFP mentorship
Teresa Kiraly 0.96 1+2 Yes Degree nurse

Teaching and Assessing Degree module
FFP mentorship

Emma Rich 064 | FFP mentorship

| Sarah Norris 1.00 142 Yes Degree nurse

Sarah McGee 0.96 142 Yes

Caroline English 0.64 1 -

Sarah Porter ) 1.00 | 1+2 Yes Degree nurse

Kayleigh Williams 0.96 1 Degree nurse

Joanne Milton 1.00 1 Degree nurse

Meleri Edwards 1.00 |1 Degree nurse

Vanessa Dos San_tgg_ 1.00 |1 Degree nurse

Ayelet Levi-Brown 10.96 Degree nurse

Lauren Owen 1.00 Degree nurse

. Kathryn Price 1.00 Degree nurse

Rachel Roberts 1.00 Degree nurse

Rachel Walker 1.00 : Degree nurse

Judith Johnson 1.00 1+2 Yes

Sian Dobie 1.00 |1 Degree nurse

Kay Parker 0.48 1

Jancy Varghese 1.00

Rhianne Periam 1.00 Degree nurse

Melanie Davies 1.00 Degree nurse

Maricel Arcenal 0.96

Kaye Seaward 0.96 1+2

Rebecca Davies [ 1.00 | | | Degreennurse o
e R T L R . ok e e ki e

Jane Powell 0.96 NNEB

Chris Kelly 0.96 NNEB

Gill Smith 0.96 NNEB First Aid at Work

Hilary Jones 0.64 NNEB First Aid at Work

Emma Bumns 0.96 NNEB First Aid at Work

Lisa Marshall 0.64 | NNEB First Aid at Work N

| Administration Lead for the Service and P.A. to Senior Nurse Manager = —
Gill Adams 10 | I —!

. Neonatal Secretarles

Beveliey Collins 1.0 | : o 'Secretary to S Papworth, T Kollamparambﬂ

Eireen Sakke 1.0 Secretary to S Sen and S Reddy

WendyUndewood |05 | | |SecretarytoAAlman

!V@tqgt@riss___ Cehes Al SRR B S Bl S S e S R B

Elreen Sakke 0.53

Sofia Begum 0.18

N e R T T R T T : ’

Jayne Josling 1.00 ’ ) -

HCWBand2 i i o Ul A o AR Wl 1 B o), PR g ik A BEl

Tina Conlon 1.00 | I |
Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 10

Page 111



Table 4: Nursing Staffing Levels and vacancies

Band Funded | Inpost | Vacancies Full Time | Part Time | Total Heads
Band 8A |1 1 0 1 0 1

Band 7 8.00 , 7.00 1.00 (PDF) 3 6 .2

Band 6 119.45 | 17.32 213 4 16 20

Band 5 3478 2156 |1322 |17 15 32

Band 4 512 512 0 0 ) 6

Total 68.35 52.0 16.35 25 43 68
QUALIFIED (nursing) heads 44 (46.88WTE)

UNQUALIFIED (nursing) heads 6 (5.12 WTE)

Neonatal Modules and NLS Qualifications

Total and percentage of staff with both Module 1 + 2 = 41heads = 60% of all qualified staff
Total and percentage of staff with Module 1 only = 8heads = 11% of all qualified staff
Total and percentage of qualified staff with a neonatal module = 49heads = 72% of all

qualified staff
Total and percentage of staff with NLS certificate = 43heads = 63 % of all qualified staff

Other activities

Currently 4 staff are on a Degree Pathway.

Nichola Maggs, Rachel Mackie and Dean Pask are qualified NLS Instructors.

Nichola Maggs is also seconded part time to the Health Boards Resuscitation Service to
deliver basic neonatal life support throughout the Trust.

Staff are managed via a teams system. Within the teams, all staff have annual IPR/ KSF via
eKSF. There are Neonatal Service Mandatory Study days annually for each team to cover all
statutory and mandatory training and updates.

The Practice Development Facilitator is a member of the education sub group for the All-
Wales Network.
Staff members are also active in the Outreach sub group for the Network.

Nursing Care Pathways are in place for Discharge, Transport, Bereavement, Neonatal
Abstinence Syndrome, Ventilation and Education.

There are many Link nurses and Working Groups in place throughout the Service e.g.
Infection Control and Developmental care.

Pamela Boyd remains Secretary of the Neonatal Nurses Association.

The David Ferguson Annual Neonatal Award.

This is a joint Nursing and Medical Award for outstanding contribution to neonatal services.
The nursing component was won jointly by Senior Sisters Clare Payne and Nichola Maggs for
their exceptional work and the development of the Ventilation Pathway.

The medical recipient of the award was given collectively to the registrars for their
commitment and dedication to the service.

Presentation at Conferences.

Senior Sisters Clare Payne and Nichola Maggs presented the Ventilation Pathway at the
Inaugural ABHB Nursing Conference, Newport.

Vermont Oxford Network Annual Meeting and Hot Topics Conference Washington DC

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 11

Page 112



Nursing attendance: Senior Nurse Joan Foy & Senior Sister Claire Richards

Development of service in 2010

Role of Lead Nurse for Welsh Neonatal Network by Joan Foy

A new teaching pathway was developed to teach and assess various aspects of ventilation.
Secondment into Lead for Transport Service by Senior Sister Claire Richards.

In-house transport training began in preparation for the introduction of the All Wales Transport
Service.

The Gentamicin care bundle was introduced in-line with the NPSA recommendations.
Preparation for BadgerNet began.

Introduction of service weeks for Band 7’s.

Development of the Annual Memorial Service.

Introduction of weekly physio assessments on unit.

Development of the ROP clinic with the Retcam.

Appointment of clinical teacher.

Nurse-led discharge planning meeting reintroduced

Future developments in 2011

. Introduction of CHANTS

. Introduction of BadgerNet

. Introduction of weekly hand hygiene audits in-line with SPI & 1000 lives
. Introduction of central line care bundle

. Appointment of clinical teacher

. Development of ITU education pathway

SOk wWMN =

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 12

Page 113



All Gwent Neonatal Liaison Services

The Neonatal Liaison Teams of the Royal Gwent and the Nevill Hall Hospitals have merged

into one team and provide cover over both sites.
Total number of babies seen 244
Total number of visits: 844

Figure 6: Liaison service visits

500 — - -

450 -
400 +

350

SRS FEREY L.

300 +
280

200 -

150
100 -

Number of visits

50 +

0 - o — — —

Development of service in 2010
A new care pathway for home oxygen is has been implemented.

Nurse led discharge planning meetings have started and have become a routine.
Future developments in 2010

1. Audit the home oxygen pathway.
2. Review documentation and audit current practice and device new format if required.

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 114

13



Section 1

Perinatal Statistics 2010

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 115

14



Table 5: Birth and Mortality Statistics RGH 2010 (includes deaths after transfer/discharge)

| Total no. of mothers delivered . 3613
Twins | 40

B Triplets | 1

| Number of babies born in hospital 3656
Number of home deliveries 76
Total number of babies born 3732
Total still births 25
Total number of live births 3707
Deaths in the delivery suite 0
Early neonatal deaths 4
Late neonatal deaths (168-671 hours) 2
Live births < 500g - 1
Still births with congenital abnormalities 0
Uncorrected Rates
Perinatal Mortality Rate 7.9
Still Birth Rate 6.8
Neonatal Mortality Rate 1.6

Corrected rates (excluding babies < 500g and deaths in delivery room)

Perinatal Mortality Rate 7.9
Still Birth rate 6.8
Neonatal Mortality Rate 1.3

Table 6: Perinatal statistics compared
RGH 2005-2009* « RGH 2010

Wales 2009* @ England, Wales, NI

and Crown
Dependencies 2009
- Perinatal Mortality Rate | 7.7 7.8 7.6 7.6
' Stillbirths Rate | 5.3 6.7 5.2 | 5.2 ,
Neonatal Mortality Rate 3.3 1.8 3.1 3.2 ]

*Source: All Wales Perinatal Survey, Annual Report 2009

** Source: Centre for Maternal and Child Enquiries (CMACE) Perinatal Mortality Report 2009
Adjusted rates excluding <5600g, <22 weeks and lethal congenital abnormalities

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 116

15



Table 7: Details of deaths in NICU

Place of | Gestation | Weight | Diagnosis

birth (wks) (9)

RGH | 24 840 Prematurity, respiratory distress 2 No
| syndrome, grade |V intraventricular I
. haemorrhage, hypotension

RGH 24 , 706 Prematurity, chronic lung disease grade 140 No
IV intraventricular haemorrhage, abnormal ‘
| neurology o R
RGH 25 770 Prematurity, respiratory distress 5 No

syndrome, intraventricular haemorrhage,
sepsis, disseminated intravascular

N coagulation o

RGH 39 2930 Perinatal asphyxia, hypoxic ischemic 3 No
encephalopathy grade 3, renal failure,
disseminated intravascular coagulation
RGH 41 2760 Term, small for gestation, meconium 1 No
aspiration syndrome, persistent
pulmonary hypertension

Table 8: Deaths after discharge or transfer

' Gestation | Weight Diagnosis | Transfer to

(wks) )

RGH 24 [ 450 I Prematurity, sepsis, necrotising 74 No
- | enterocolitis with perforation ) 1

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 16

Page 117



Section 2

Admissions and Activity

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 118

17



Table 9: Unit Admissions

2007 2008 2009 2010
Total Number of admissions: 412 405 374 395
Total Number of readmissions: 16 32 13 24
Total Number of infants admitted: 396 373 361 371

Table 10: Sources of admissions of inborn deliveries

Inborn (at RGH)
Total deliveries 3656

Total live births

3631

No. of Inborn admissions:

323

 Total number of inborn babies admitted
Admitted from delivery suite

268

Admitted from CDU

Admitted from post-natal ward

54

| Readmissions from outside hospital:

48

No of babies admitted to Transitional Care

Table 11: Booking status of inborn babies

Hospital
Royal Gwent Hospital

2007
317

2008
292

2009
291

2010

207

University Hospital of Wales, Cardiff

4

11

Others

i
w

Singleton Hospital, Swnasea

| Caerphilly District Miners Hospital

| Nevill Hall Hospital

Royal Glamorgan Hospital

N=NEINO

Princess of Wales, Bridgend

- St Michael's Hospital, Bristol

Unbooked
| Prince Charles Hospital, Merthyr

|
|

Southmead Hospital, Bristol

= O|=|0O|I00O|INO|—

ClOo|U|C|O|=a|~hwlod N

o-~|r\:r\>|\>mw-¢-cnw

o0 =O

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 119

18



Table 12: Qutborn sources of admission (excluding readmissions)

Outborn (sources of admission outside 2007 2008 2009

maternity Unit)
Total number of infants: 49 56 43 | 48
Booked at Royal Gwent Hospital 17 14 9 ) |
Booked elsewhere or un-booked 32 42 34 | 38 '
Delivered at
Nevill Hall Hospital
University Hospital of Wales
Royal Glamorgan Hospital
Southmead Hospital, Bristol
Other
Caerphilly District Miner's Hospital
St Michael's Hospital, Bristol
Home
Brecon Birth Centre
Gloucester

N
w
-—
FLS
w
co

h
[h%

o o|av|wlalo|o|~

Oih|a NN OO

‘OOG‘JN#@WO@

WWoO AR ONO=O=

|

|

|
|

o
=
-
Q
‘m
O
=3
[F]
-
@D
w
i 3
o]
[72]
S,
o
=
gl
1]
e
=
‘<‘
=
1o

Table 13: Reasons for admission

Reason for admission No. of | % Admissions
admissions
Prematurity 148 4.4
Respiratory problem 71 19.4
Sepsis orsuspectedsepsis |25 6.8
Hypoglycaemia |22 6.0 o
| Feeding difficulty |14 138
Hypoxic ischemic encephalopathy |13 136 -
For follow up care R 3.0 ]
| Intra-uterine growth retardation _ 10 27 ]
Narcotic abstinence syndrome 9 2.5
, Other . 9 25
For Observation . 9 25 .
- Neurological problem 8 g2
~Social reasons o 5 |14
Cardiac problem 14 1.1
Apnoeic/choking episode 14 4 ]
. Congenital abnormality 3 0.8
| Haematological problem 1 0.3
Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 19

Page 120



Table 14: Readmissions (in 2010)

Gestation | BW (g) | Source Reason for readmission
23 615 Bristol Following ductal ligation
23 720 UHW Following laser treatment for retinopathy of prematurity
24 706 UHW Following ophthalmology review for retinopathy of
prematurity
24" 706 UHW Following laprotomy and ileostomy for sealed perforation
24 706 UHW Following stoma reversal
24* 450 UHW Following surgical review for abdominal distension
24 450 UHW Following removal of Hickman's line
25 805 Bristol Following ductal ligation
| 25 820 UHW Following laser therapy for retinopathy of prematurity
25" 855 UHW Following conservative management for suspected
perforation
25* 855 UHW __Following ENT review for stridor
26 550 UHW Following inguinal herniotomy and orchidopexy
27* 1035 Bristol ~ Following surgery for meconeum ileus perforation
2r 1035 UHW Following reversal of stoma
128 11280 UHW __ Following conservative management of NEC in UHW
29 11 1210 __Ule __ Following Gl contrast study and rectal biopsy
29* 1210 Bristol Following Iaprotomy for midgut volvulus and B/L inguinal
. hernia repair
129 | 1110 NHH  Forintensive care -
|1 32 1685 @ NHH Forint mtens:ve care o
32  |1630 UHW | Following ventriculo-peritoneal shunt insertion
138 2635  NHH For intensive care -
| 38 3740 Bristol | Following repair of tracheo-oesophageal fistula |
39 3250 | UHW Following surgical review for bile stained vomrtmg '
| 40 5750 | UHW | Following drainage of testicular haematoma

Numbers with symbols md[cate the same baby
UHW: University Hospital of Wales, Cardiff

Transfer out of Unit

Table 15: Destinations of babies transferred out

@

Nevill Hall Hospital for FU care

(e)]
-

UHW for surgical care/assessment

-
2]

UHW for ROP treatment/assessment

UHW for neuro assessment

UHW for ENT review

UHW for FU care

St Michael’s Bristol, for cardiac care

St Michael’s Bristol for surgical care

Birmingham Children Hospital for liver care

Birmingham Women’s Hospital for FU care

|

Royal Glamorgan Hospital for FU care

Prince Charles Hospital, Merthyr, for FU care

Singleton Hospital Swansea, for FU Care

\
i
r'
\

REGH N 5 N (RN N ) YN ) BN PO T

Princess of Wales Hospital, Bridgend for follow-up care
Other local hospltal for FU care

Total

N
—
o

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

20

Page 121



Table 16: Specialist Referrals out

Gestation = Weight | Hospital Diagnosis
23 720 UHW for Ophthalmology review | Retinopathy of prematurity for Laser
treatment
24 706 UHW for Ophthalmology review | Retinopathy of prematurity for Laser
treatment
24* 706 UHW for Surgical care Perforated bowel (not NEC) with
ileostomy
24" 706 UHW for Surgical care For Hickman line and surgical review
of stoma
24* 450 | UHW for Surgical care For abdominal distension with ascitis |
24* 450 | UHW for Surgical care For removal of Hickman line following
sepsis
24* 450 UHW for Surgical care Necrotising enterocolitis with
— | obstructed hernia__ ]
25 855 | UHW for ENT review | ENT review for stridor L
25 820 | UHW for Ophthalmology review | Retinopathy of prematurity for Laser
N | _ |teatment
25 855 UHW for Surgical care Small bowel perforation, conservative |
I I management |
| 25 855 ' UHW for ENT review Stridor : Ulcer in the subglottic area
25" | 805 | Bristol for cardiac care | Ligation of PDA
| 25 | 805 | Bristol for cardiac failure Repair of ventricular septal defect
27 1075 UHW for surgical care Meconium ileus with perforation
_ | Stoma reversal
| 28 1280 UHW for Surgical care Necrotising enterocolitis
29 1210 ' Bristol for Surgical care Laprotomy for midgut volvulus
29 1210 UHW for Surgical care For abdominal distension —for lower Gl
- contrast and rectal biopsy (normal)
29 1600 UHW for Surgical care Meconeum ileus perforation
' (antenatally), cystic fibrosis positive
32 1.63 UHW for Neurosurgical review Ventriculo-peritoneal shunt insertion
E following post haemorrhagic ventricular
N dilatation .
a3 1.5 Bristol for Surgical care
33 2475 UHW for Surgical care Congenital diaphragmatic hernia
37 1.935 Bristol for Cardiac care VECTERL association with complex
congenital heart disease
| 37 217 Bristol for Surgical care
38 3.74 Bristol for Surgical care Oesophageal atresia with suspected
tracheo-oesophageal fistula
38 2.755 Birmingham Children Hospital Choledochal Cyst
| for hepatic care _
38 2.63 UHW for neurology review Tuberous sclerosis
| 38 4.45 UHW for Neurology review Crisponi syndrome
39 3850 UHW for Surgical care Suspected upper Gl obstruction,
contrast normal
39 4535 UHW for Surgical care Subcutaneous fat necrosis
40 4.57 , Bristol for Cardiac care Transposition of great arteries
40 | 2980 | UHW for Surgical care Inguinal hernia
40 5750 | UHW for Surgical care Testicular haematoma

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 122

21



NICU Activity

Table 17: Level of care

Level of care

Number (%) of admissions

Number (%) of babies needing this

needing this level of care level of care
[ — || 2009 2010 2009 2010
Intensive Care __l 222 (59.8) 238 (600/0) 216 (59.8) 226 (61%)
High Dependency Care 237 (53.8} 248 (63%) 23 (63.9) 233 (63%)
286 (77.1) 291 (73%) 276 (76.5) 273 (74%)
W{ 9 44 (11.5) o 44 (11.8)
|Transitional Care — ][ 101 [111 111 o

Table 18: Level of care and cot occupancy rates

Level of Care % Occupancy, of cots® | % Occupancy of cots**

[Intensive Care
— ] 6 -
High Dependency Care f 2213 148% 87%
Special Care 2661 56% 122% S
44 %
Transitional Care | _ - o (
Intensive care + High Dependency Care | 3786 148% 74% !
[Total days of care (IC + HD + SC + NC) | 6491 89% 89%
e — I
* Based on 7 IC + HDU cots and 13 SC cots that is historically funded
** Based on 7 IC cots + 7 HDU cots + 6 SC cots notionally available
Table 19: Break-up of Intensive Care activity (BAPM 2001 categories)
Type of Intensive Care activity Number of
days
- 1. ET tube respiratory support and 24 hours after its withdrawal 691
2, NCPAP for any part of the day and less than 5 days old 353 |
| 3. Less than 1000 g and receiving nCPAP and 24 hours after withdrawal i 377
| 4. Less than 29 weeks gestation and less than 48 | hours old 4
| 5. Requiring major emergency surgery, pre-operative and post operative 24 hours 5 ]
~ 6a. Requiring full exchange transfusion 2 |
_6b. Requiring peritoneal dialysis 1 .
6c¢. Infusion of inotropes, pulmonary vasodilator or prostaglandin and 24 hrs after |
withdrawal 6
7. Any other unstable baby needing 1:1 nursing care ) N 134 |
8. On the day of the death of the baby ) o ) 0
[Total _ L1873 ]
Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 22

Page 123



Table 20: Monthly activity

AVAD, B D)
January || 31 32 141 227 368 212 580
February || 28 28 150 122 272 225 497
32 36 106 147 253 320 573
32 33 122 127 249 193 442
27 30 149 175 324 191 515
June 35 33 173 139 312 213 525
July | 27 25 128 182 310 189 499
August || 30 28 115 239 354 199 553
September || 37 37 147 198 345 207 552
33 34 108 Pz} 352 198 550
46 45 94 209 303 265 568
December || 38 33 140 204 344 293 637
A
Totals 396 394 1573 2213 3786 2705 6491
Mean 33 33 131 184 316 225 541
Max 46 45 173 244 368 320 637
Min 27 25 94 122 249 189 442
Figure 1. Monthly activity of level of care
700-
|
600 1
] - |
{
500 B ] ] -
400 ] '5
|
300 i s
200 | (3IC
BHD
100+ |asc
0- ARIEREETHR MEECRRNS RERERE ) |OTotal
Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
23

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 124




Table 21: 18 years comparison of activity (2010)

IC + HD SE Total %

Occupancy occupancy. (IT+HD+SC) Occupancy.
1994 | 588 | 788 | 1376 | 53 3711 | 78* 5057 69
1995 | 593 | 390 | 983 | 38 3480 | 73* 4463 61
1996 | 714 [ 936 [ 1650 | 65 3460 | 73* 5110 70
1997 | 809 | 859 | 1668 | 65 3595 | 76* 5263 72
1998 | 981 | 518 | 1499 | 59 3630 | 77* 5129 70
1999 | 1030 | 951 1981 | 78 4143 | 87* 6124 84
2000 | 1069 | 750 | 1806 | 71 4092 | 86* 5898 81
2001 | 1090 | 465 | 1555 | 61 3562 | 75° 5117 70
2002 | 1011 | 1463 | 2474 | 97 3252 | 69* 5726 79
2003 | 1080 | 1906 | 2986 | 117 2860 | 60* 5846 80
2004 | 1573 | 1710 | 3283 | 128 2526 | 53* 5819 80
2005 | 1364 | 1796 | 3160 | 123 2778 | 59° 5938 81
2006 | 1522 | 2064 | 3585 | 140 2394 | 50* 5991 82
2007 | 1240 | 1995 | 3235 | 127 2739 | 58* 5981 82
2008 | 1352 | 2097 | 3449 73 | 2517 | 115° 5977 82
2009 | 1566 | 1773 | 3339 70 | 2559 | 117° 5898 80
2010 | 1573 | 2213 | 3786 80 | 2705 | 124° 6491 89

1 Based on historically funded cots (7 IC and HD cots and 13 SC cots)
® Based on available but unfunded cot spaces (6+1 IC, 7 HD and 6 SC cots)
(IC= intensive care, HDU= high dependency care, SC= special care)

Fig 2. Levels of activity 1994-2010

4500
4000

-—IC
3500 -w i -#-HDU
2500 Diid
2000
1500

1000
500

0 T T T 1 1 I || I I T 1 1 I ] 1
o 8 A S N D © A & O 0
& F S S TS

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010 24

Page 125



Table 22: Respiratory Therapy given

No of babies

No of days

Percentage of
admissions

given surfactant at
birth

Gestation

Complete

2010 2009 2010
PPV 26.9 19.2
CPAP 171 163 1676 46.1 412
Only CPAP 103 107 502 2ZE 0 27
HFOV 17 12 71 4.5 3
|Nitric Oxide | 10 6 38 2.6 1.5
Inborn babies
| I 2009 % ofinborn | 2010 % of inborn
admissions admissions
No. of inborn 75 23.5 63 15.9%
babies intubated
at birth s - A
No of babies 50 15.7 51 12.8%

50% 21% 29%
r@ 42% 32% 21% 5%
1129-31 = 1| 82% 12% 6%

32-33 % 18% 1%

Total <34 67% 19% 12% 2%

[Total Percentage || T o - '

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 126

25



Table 24: Practical procedures/investigations done

Procedure

Successful Failed

% babies needing this

% 22

Long line 58 [ | 15.7

Lumber puncture | 37 4 | 10

o0 of Bab 0 O % bab eeding
Do L Do Ul

[Cranil Uasound_], 131 52 52

EEG 118 3.3

72 146 18.2 )
[RenalUtvasowrd | 14 14 |35

]X rai | ) 628 |
|CT/MR Scan | © 9 23 ]
||Blood cultures £ 300 512 76

Table 25: Treatments given

Treatment No of babies % of babies

| Antibiotics s SR A T e S

1% line antibiotics ] 288 78.2 1 T
2™ line antibiotics | 86 a 234 —
[3" line antibiotics | 41 11.1

R e R S e e :
RBC transfusions || 43 122 (total)
Platelets || 14 37 (total)

Immunoglobulin 4

Reduction transfusions

0
Exchange transfusions ], 4

_Indomethacin

Prophylactic only T
Indomethacin

_

Prophylactic + treatment 1
Indomethacin

Treatment only 8
Indomethacin

2.2% of all babies
11.9% of <32 wks

[ Inotropes

1 line inotropes only | 9 2.4

1 I .
1%, 2™ and 3" line 7 1.9

inotropes

Other s TR it
[Phototherapy ]| 121 32.8 T
L 3 | N
[ Under2swks | 11/25 44 ] o

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 127

26



Table 26: Significant organisms isolated

Organism

Group B streptococcus

ther strptccci - . I

Coagulase negative staphylococcus
Staphylococcus aureus

21 (26 isolates)

Klebsiella sp

Serritia sp

Enterococci sp

. IH influenzae |

Candida albicans |

‘OGOOMM’

[Candida éarapsilosis |

Enterobacter

|

_\ol_\._s
I
|
|

[Culture proven sepsis |

| 34/368 (9.2%) of babies

Royal Gwent Hospital, Neonatal Unit, Annual Report 2010

Page 128

27



[ATTACHMENT 4 |

| d"Q“D GIG | swrdd Iechydj
Aneurin Bevan
~' N HS Health Board

0

Annual Report 2010
Neonatal Unit
Nevill Hall Hospital,
Abergavenny

Compiled and written by:
A Allman
Aftab Murtaza H

Enquiries to: anneli.allman@.wales.nhs.uk
e e ———— g

Page 129



Table of Contents

Executive Summary
Medical and Nursing Staff
Neonatal Unit Statistics
Table 1. Sources of admissions of inborn deliveries
Table 2. Outborn sources of admission
Table 3. Readmissions
Table 4. Destinations of babies transferred out
Table 5. SCBU admissions and survival by gestational age (2009 admissions)
Table 6. SCBU Admissions and Deaths by gestation bands (excluding readmissions)
Table 7. SCBU Admissions and Deaths below defined gestations (excluding readmissions)9
Table 8. SCBU Admissions and Deaths in various weight bands (excluding readmissions) 9

OO0 ~N~N~NJh W

Table 9. SCBU Admissions and Deaths below specified weight categories 9
Table 10. Level of care and cot occupancy rates 10
Table 11. Monthly Activity 100
Figure 1. Monthly activity of level of care 11
Table 12. Reasons for admission 111
Table 13. Details of deaths in NICU 12
Table 14. 11 years comparison of activity 13
Figure 2. Levels of activity 2002-2009 13
Table 15. Gestational Age Specific Admissions and Deaths 1997 - 2009 14
Figure 3. Gestational age specific admissions & deaths 1997 — 2009 14
Summary of Audits 2010 (Table 16) 16

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 2

Page 130



Summary
Annual activity and stafistics

2010 has seen an increase in activity at NHH. As before, as a level 2 neonatal unit, it aims to
provide high quality high dependency and special neonatal care, and only short term intensive
care. In 2009 there was a drop in high dependency and special care days. In 2010 the level of
intensive and high dependency care has remained constant, while there has been an increase in
special care activity. The occupancy of 12 cots has increased from 61% in 2009 to 66% in 2010.
The reasons for this are probably multifactorial, and include an increase in number of infants
transferred from RGH for continuing care in NHH.

In 2010 there were 2207 live births, 37 homebirths and 13 stillbirths. There were no early
neonatal deaths in 2010. This gives a neonatal mortality rate of 0/1000 live births. The stillbirth
rate was 5.8/1000 births in 2010 with a perinatal mortality rate of 5.8/1000 births. These figures
are small so must not be over interpreted.

NHH neonatal unit is run by consultant neonatologist ward rounds 3 times per week with
consultant paediatrician led ward rounds twice a week and at weekends. There is neonatal advice
available 24 hours a day every day. Both RGH and NHH continue to use shared guidelines and
drug information formularies which are updated regularly. Clinics for neonatal follow up are held
by neonatologists in NHH twice weekly.

RGH continues to provide a 24 hour retrieval service for NHH for sick or preterm infants. This
remains unfunded.

Business meetings run monthly and feed into the perinatal meetings, also monthly. All clinical
incidents are reviewed at the business meetings, which are multidisciplinary. There is weekly
dedicated neonatal teaching for NHH junior and middle grade staff, overseen by the attending

neonatologist.
New Developments

Following some new developments in 2009, including senior staff changes and the introduction of
neurodevelomental assessment clinics, NHH neonatal unit was in status quo for 2010. However
preparations began during the latter half of the year in readiness for some major changes in 2011,
such as the South Wales transport system and a new data collection system known as
“‘Badgernet”.

Dr Christopher Bidder was appointed a sixth consultant general paediatrician at NHH. Dr Bidder's
area of interest is endocrinology.

The gentamicin care bundle was introduced as a tool for auditing gentamicin prescription and
administration.

“High flow", a system to complement and in some cases replace CPAP was successfully
introduced.

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 3

Page 131



Staffing
Medical Staff:

Senior Medical Staff:

Dr Siddhartha Sen, Consultant Neonatologist, Clinical Director, Neonatal Services
Dr Sue Papworth, Consultant Neonatologist

Dr Anneli Allman, Consultant Neonatologist

Dr Tanoj Kollamparambil, Consultant Neonatologist

Dr Sunil Reddy, Consultant Neonatologist

Dr Aftab Murtaza, Associate Specialist

Consultant Paediatricians:
Out of hours and weekends are covered by the on general paediatric on call team consisting of

consultant, middle grade and SHO or PRHO.

Dr T Williams, Lead Clinician, Nevill Hall Hospital

Dr M J Pierrepoint
Dr M Northey
DrY Cloete

Dr S Ashtekar

Dr C Bidder

There is a consultant neonatologist lead ward round every Monday, Wednesday and Friday.
According to the on call rota, a local consultant covers Tuesday and Thursday ward rounds.
Consultant input is available at all times. FP1, SHO equivalent and middle grade staff are rostered
to SCBU 9-5 weekdays to provide a service to the neonatal unit, postnatal ward and delivery

suite.
Middle Grade Staff:
March 2010 -September 2010:

Dr Bodla (ST4)

Dr Morgan (ST4)

Dr HalpinEvans (ST3)

Dr Varghese (ST4)

Dr Ozieh (ST3)

Dr Arun (clin fellow- less than full time)
Dr Dienst (clin fellow — less than full time)
Dr Poh (Clinical Fellow)

Junior Grade Staff:
March 2010 — September 2010

Dr Groves (GP ST)
Dr Davies (GP ST)
Dr Salek (ST1 paeds)
Dr MacKensie (ST1)
Dr Quinney (GP ST)
Dr Jones (GP ST)

Dr Arnott (F1)

Dr Beckett (F1)

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010

September 2010-March 2011

Dr Syed (SpR)

Dr Glenn (ST4)

Dr Joy (ST5)

Dr Patankar (ST3)

Dr Murch (ST3)

Dr Arun (clin fellow- less than full time)
Dr Jaganathan (clin fellow)

Dr Dienst (clin fellow — less than full time)

September 2010 — March 2011

Dr Cousins (ST1)

Dr Saif (GP ST)

Dr Minhas (GP ST)

Dr Boggaram (FTSTA1)
Dr Watson (GP ST)

Dr Beer (GP ST)

Dr Gillingham (F1)

Dr Nathwani (F1)

4

Page 132



Nurse Staffing and Activities

Table 1. Nursing Staffing and Activities

Neonatal
Modules

NLS
Certified

Additional Qualifications/Roles

'Band7 _ . s B
Sally PyrahBarnes 1.00 | 1+2 Yes Diploma in Child Health
RGN
RSCN
Teaching and Assessing module
7 - FFP Mentor
‘Band 6 Gt , S5 e
Dawn Edwards 0.80 1+ 2 Yes Research Diploma
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
LEO Programme
i FFP mentorship
| Infection Control Champion
Chris Jones 0.80 A2 Yes Research Diploma
Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Clinical Effectiveness Diploma
Examination and assessment of the
Newborn — Degree Module
Breast Feeding Link Nurse
FFP mentorship
Angela Francis 0.80 Module 2 | Yes Research Diploma
Teaching and assessing Diploma
Certificate in Health Education
Dawn Flower 1.00 1+ 2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Bereavement Care Link Nurse
FFP mentorship
Joanne Bartlett | 1.00 1+2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Evidence Based Practice Degree Module
Leadership and Management Degree
I ‘ Module
Developmental Care Link Nurse
intravenous Group Link Nurse
| FFP mentorship
Merenna ’ 0.8 1+ 2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
Williams Infection Control Link Nurse
Jayne Cleaves 1.0 192 Yes Research diploma
Dean Pask 1.0 ’ 1+.2 Yes Teaching and Assessing Diploma
i ! Manual Handling Link Nurse
Jan Lewis | 0.8 14 2 Yes Conversion Course
Teaching and Assessing Certificate
Common Core Certificate
Jo Jones 1.0 l 1+ 2 | Yes Evidence based practice module
[Band5 : EOPIE
Lyn Mugridge 110 Module 1+2 " Yes Registered Midwife
Breast Feeding Link Nurse
Kath 0.64 Module 1+2 Yes
Goodenough ' | ,
Laura Shepherd | 1.0 | 1+2 | Yes
Lara Roberts 1.0 142 " Yes
Rhiannon 1.00 Degree nurse
Thomas | |
| Band 4
NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 5

Page 133



Ann Vincent 1.0 NNEB
Open University Child Care Certificate

PPA Teaching Certificate

Breast Feeding Support Certificate
First Aid in the Workplace Certificate
Bereavement Care Link Nurse

Marjorie Donnelly = 0.8 NNEB
Breast Feeding Support Certificate

First Aid in the Workplace Certificate

Deb Law 0.8 NVQ - nursery nurse
Breast Feeding Support Certificate
First Aid in the Workplace Certificate

"Liaison Service
. Band6 5 et TN o _ Aoy
Lisa Jones 0.64 1+2 Yes Health Visiting degree

! Health Care
| worker, : g it

Deborah McCann | 1.0 |
I Administration Lead for the Service and P.A. to Senior Nurse Manager

GilAdams 10 e S——
i Neonatal

| Secretaries |

Sian Webster 1.0 - -

Table 2. Nursing Staffing Levels and vacancies Nevill Hall

Funded | In post | Vacancies  Full Time
'[Band 8A | 0 o
[Band 7 1.0 100 0 1T 1 B
'[Band 6 9.2 9.0 0.2 5 5 10
Band 5 4.64 4.64 0 4 1 5
'[Band 4 2.60 260 0 L 2 3 T
Total 17.2 17.44 0.2 12 7 19
QUALIFIED (nursing) heads 16
UNQUALIFIED (nursing) heads 3

Neonatal Modules and NLS Qualifications

Total % of staff with both Module 1 + 2 = 15heads = 79% of all qualified staff
Total % of staff with Module 1 only = Oheads

Total % of staff with Module 2 only = 1 head = 5% of all qualified staff

Total of Qualified staff with a neonatal module = 16 heads = 84%

Total % of staff with NLS certificate = 16 heads = 84%

Other activities

Currently 3 staff are on a Degree Pathway.
Staff are managed via a teams system. Within the teams, all staff have annual IPR/ KSF via

eKSF. There are Neonatal Service Mandatory Study days annually for each team to cover all
statutory and mandatory training and updates.

Nursing Care Pathways are in place for Discharge, Transport, Bereavement, Neonatal Abstinence
Syndrome, Ventilation and Education.

There are many Link nurses and working Groups in place throughout the Service e.g. Infection
Control and Developmental care.

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 6

Page 134



Neonatal Unit Statistics

Total Number of admissions: 254
Total Number of readmissions: 12
Total Number of infants admitted: 242

Table 1. Sources of admissions of inborn deliveries (based on babies discharged in 2010)

Inborn (at NHH)

Total deliveries 2220
Total live births 2207
_Total still births o 13 -
_Total number of inborn admissions 197 _ B
B Ag@tted from del_lve ry suite 143
o Admitted from post-natal ward 41 B -
~ Admitted from home 01 o
Readmssmns from outside hospital: 12 ) ]

Table 2. Qutborn sources of admission

Outborn (sources of admission outside maternity Unit) Number
Total number of infants: 54
Dellvered at 3 . B
Rﬂal Gwent Hospital 43
_ _University Hospital of Wales - . _lo
Royal Glamorgan - - |02
Prince Charles Hospital I 1 i
Home o o _ 101
__Birmingham Children’s Hospital ~ ‘01

Table 3. Readmissions

, Following intensive care at RGH

- Following Hernia repair at UHW

Following intensive care at RGH

| Following intensive care at RGH
' Following mtenswe care at RGH

Following intensive care at RGH

_Following intensive care at RGH

Following intensive care at RGH

Following intensive care at RGH

Gestation.  Birth wt Source
26 840 F UHW
27 785 N RGH
A l 1720 B Bp_ti_
31 B 1305 I RGH
32 7Vﬁ£ 1685 ' RGH
32 1685 I RGH
33 2340 1 RGH
38 | 2635 S— ' RGH
39 13138 RGH
40 1950 IR@H,
40 J 3300  UHW
40 . 4400 | RGH

7 Total number of infants readmftted

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010

o

7

Page 135

' Following intensive care at RGH

UHW for ANeuro assessment

__ Following intensive care at RGH



Table 4. Destinations of babies transferred out

Destination : Number

Royal Gwent Hospital for intensive care 21

Royal Glam for FU Care i 02
B Merthyr for FU care o 01

Poole Hospital for FU Care 01

NHH Usk Ward [Peds] 01

UHW for Surgical Care 06

UHW for Neuro assessment 01

Bristol for cardiac care 01
_Total transfers out ) 34

Table 5. Survival of babies by gestational age (2010 admissions)

Gestation Inborn ! Outborn All admissions

Total | Deaths Total Deaths _@ W
m ] o |0 1 o |[x o J[r0 ]
2] 0 |0 0 [0 [ o ]
] 0o [0 o |0 o e
] 0 |0 2 |0 [F o e
m___] 2 [0 2 [0 i00
m___) o [0 2 o [ o]
m__J o [0 2 o [
s 7 o
Er— A
mw ] o | 0
s ]| 101 | ©
m— N LR
Tos | 197 | 0

Note — Outborn babies transferred to NHH for continuing care

Table 6. SCBU Admissions and Deaths by gestation bands (excluding readmissions)

Gestation | Inborn
Total
2325 | 0
26-28 1
29-31 111
32 15
3336 | 63
=/>37 96
NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 8

Page 136



Table 7. SCBU Admissions and Deaths below defined gestations (excluding readmissions)

Gestation Inborn Outborn All Admissions

Total | Deaths Total Deaths [Total M
<24 0 0 1 0 1 100
@« o o T o o e —
<28 1 0 4 0 5 100
<30 2 0 9 0 I{ o [ 100 -
@ | o 5 0 w0
<37 % | o 47 0o [ 142 |[o [0

Deaths

| Total Deatls
0 ] 0 Lo L -

401-500 || 0 0
501750 ]| 0 '
751-1000 || 1
1
5

1001-1250 I

0
0
0
1251-1500 || |0 ] )
15012500 ]| 79 | 0O 28 0 [1o7__
0
s
0

0
T
Lo [ foo
10 0 l 100
0
0

| —
Co—

10:L£

2501-4500 || 94 |
>4500 7

Total | @

Weight
range

Deaths @ Total Deaths % Survival
S0 R [—
Seee Jz 0 i 0 oo
=/<1250 3 [0 14 |0 100
=/<1500 9 o T 19 0 Cioo
=/<2500 |93 [ 0 48 0 [0
NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 9

Page 137



Table 10. Level of care and cot occupancy rates*

Level of Care

Intensive Care

High Dependency Care

Séecial Care I _

Intensive care + High Dependency Care

Total days of care (IC + HD + SC + NC) ]

No of days

ﬁ 136

% Occupancy of cots*

746

1991

882

2873

* Based on 12 cots (4380)

Table 11. Monthly Activity

Month

No

A/D

of | No of

DIS

66% average

IC+HDU' | SC

Total

(IC+HD+S5C)

January | 9 58 67 188 255
February ]| 18 1 14 17 63 80 | 125 205
March ]| 28 | 30 15 91 | 106 | 220 326
E 21 [ 19 7 26 33 149 182
May ] 25 | 19 11 74 85 173 258
June || 19 23 9 47 56 176 [ 232
Jul 23 17 16 52 68 136 204
August || 17 | 22 |11 90 101 177 278
September |_2_1 720 9 | 50 59 178 237
@ 14 17 8 |77 85 182 267
‘November || 17 14 10 37 47 142 189
‘December_|| 24 25 |14 81 |95 145 240
Totals 254 246 136 746 882 1991 2873
Wean 212 20.3 113 622 735 1659 | 2394
Max 28 30 17 01 106 220 326
Min 14 14 7 26 33 125 182
NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 10

Page 138




Figure 1. Monthly activity of level of care

350-
300
250 ; ! I ‘
= o ]
2004 - i
A - -
150 I r . |
100 i BiIC
B HD
s osc
ol L4 O 1 | _,_‘J_ o el (] _ld J.-‘-- 1|00 Total

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Table 11. Reasons for admission

Reason for admission

No. o

f admissions

% Admissions

Respiratory problem | 35 14
Tupogmena ] % i
T — o
Feeding difficulty 12 47
_Jaundice 6 2.3
Social reasons | 2 0.8
N 1.9
Dusky episode ] 6 a3
NAS 5 1.9
Apnoeic episode . 0.8
Suspected Cardiac problem | 1 0.4

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010

11

Page 139



Table 12. Details of deaths in SCBU

Booking Gestation | Weight Diagnosis Days of'stay | PM
(Wks) (9) done

Inborn deaths

0 [0 ) |0 I 0

Table 13. Details of deaths after Discharge or Transfer

Booking Gestation | Weight Diagnosis Days of stay @ PM

done

(Wks) (9)

NHH 32 1550 Prematurity, unplanned home | 2 (first | yes
delivery, hypoxic ischaemic admission)
encephalopathy, Dandy Died |
Walker malformation, aortic 24/3/2011 }

a . stenosis

NHH Necnatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 12

Page 140



Table 14. 12 years comparison of activity

D 0 o O D
1998 162 2504 | 57
1999 121 2298 | 52
2000 133 2718 | 62
2001 117 2058 | 47
2002 | 76 282 358 2470 2828 | 65
2003 | 65 447 512 2565 3077 |70
2004 | 75 399 474 2637 <ikn
2005 | 84 458 542 2415 2957 | 68
2006 | 104 709 813 2143 2056 | 67
2007 | 147 746 893 2028 2921 67
2008 | 140 907 1047 2162 33290 |73
2009 | 145 712 857 1821 2680 | 61
2010 | 136 746 882 1991 2873 | 66
Figure 2. Levels of activity 2003-2010
300047 e i, TYmER
i
2500
|
2000+
gic
1500 EHDU
sc
10004 '
|
|
500 |
|
o !
2003 2004 2005 2007 2008 2009 2010
NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 13

Page 141




Table 15. Gestational Age Specific Admissions and Deaths 1998 — 2010 (excluding
readmissions, based on admissions in 2010)

Admissions DR S Admissions Deaths Admissions
<32 weeks <32 32-37 weeks 32-37 >37 weeks >37
weeks weeks

1998 1/ 36 0 85 1 90 0
1999 /28 1 94 0 81 2
2000 ]/35 0 114 0 112 0
2001 ]/25 0 88 0 79 1
2002 27 0 87 0 128 0
2003 ]| 39 0 102 0 147 0
2004 || 61 3 90 0 118 0
2005 ]| 42 0 89 0 96 1
2006 ]| 42 0 85 1 116 0
2007___ ] 28 1 111 0 113 4
2008 37 1 108 0 113 3
2009 || 22 0 111 0 97 0
2010 ]| 38 0 105 0 111 0

Figure 3. Gestational age specific admissions & deaths 1998 - 2010

[ Admissions <32 weeks

[l Deaths <32 weeks
OAdmissions 32 - 37 weeks
[ODeaths 32 - 37 weeks

B Admissions >37 weeks
140 [ODeaths >37 weeks

160 i

Numbers

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010 14

Page 142



North Gwent Neonatal Liaison Team

Gwent now operates an outreach liaison service which covers all Gwent both North and South via
a centrally based allocation system. The statistics for North Gwent are therefore included in the

Royal Gwent Hospital Annual Report.

15

Page 143

NHH Neonatal Unit: Annual Report 2010



91

0102 Hodey [enuuy :iun [e}euUoeN HHN

sAep g} uey 50| JUDIaM

sljuow | Jeles  Ajunwwoo $S0| JuBlam %0 k< WM WBIaM yuIg 4o %0} ey} 0L0Z/80/L€ Uiim pagiipe

ZlL upne-ay | u  saiqeq Uublepn | peplwpe sjuejul Jo Jequinu pajoedxa ueyy JayblH | elow 8SO| jou pjNoYs Sjuejy| pajuasald ejpog ueyY ig Ssjeuosu jo Jipny

Aemuyyed

aleo 10 sueoLjelpaed

uoponposul | pue SUBDUIR}Sqo Alleleudad umouy| SAEM|E JOU UOJBULIOJU| [BIBUSUY auiepinb

Buimojjo) | ‘seampi Ag @sn oy Jou pip Inq ‘sajolqpue 0L0Z/20/9} §89 [El_US0d pue

Hpne-ay | Aemyjed aieo doreq | |eleulsod paalenes 9ABY PINOYS JUBJUI S1aym SBSBD saulapinb Jun [eleuoau Juams) psjuesald | saiaeq pieysly 1qg |EJeuLisd JO }Ipny

£ SieA8a| ybnoyy

ybiy jo sseoxs

010Z/20/91 ue Bujgas am aly

pajuasald suljeping

abueyo ayy Bwgo "|aAs| papUSLULLICOa oLoz Aen uplweuan

Jeye ypneay | Ag  abesop doug | snoge senjea ybnos jo Jaqunu ybBiy jusseddy sauljapinb Jiun |eleucau Juame) | 0} ooz 1des yod suyo ig 3Uj Jo Hpny

JUsaWLIO D

Uoljepusailiodoy

sBuipuly

piepuels

poliag

a)eq/Ag auoqg

(01.02) sypny jo Alewwns "9} 3|qel

Page 144



Agenda Iltem 5a

Children and Young People Committee
Inquiry into Neonatal Care

Additional information from the Royal College of Nursing (Wales) on
details of under capacity in level 1cots and details of the educational
pathways to neonatal nursing

Further to the Committee’s request for information on Level 1 cots we have
consulted with our members working in this area and although it is felt that
some development is needed (and referred to in the written evidence from
Dr Mark Drayton) our members strongly feel that the urgent priority should
be to increase capacity at Level 2 and Level 3.

The Committee also asked for details of the educational pathway to neonatal
nursing.

A registered nurse will have completed a 3 year nursing degree in one of
four areas (learning disability, adult, children and young people or mental
health). This degree is 50% theory and 50% practice working full-time in the
third year. Following successful completion of this degree and registration
with the regulator (NMC) the nurse could apply for an Agenda for Change
Band 5 nursing post in the NHS.

The majority of nurses in neonatal services today emerge from the Children
and Young People’s branch. It is worth noting that this year the Welsh
Government have substantially reduced the number of university places
available in children and young people’s nursing, from over a hundred places
across Wales last year to around 60 this year.

In Wales the University of Glamorgan offers two specialist neonatal courses.
Each 20 credit module last 15 weeks with 1 day’s attendance a week
required. Each place costs £520. The courses offered are “specialist neonatal
care” and “intensive neonatal care” with the former a prerequisite for the
latter.

Outside Wales the course “advanced neonatal nurse practitioner” is also
offered.

Around 10% of nurses undertaking post-registration study in neonatal care
in Wales fund this themselves either in full or in part. An additional issue is
that some nurses are required to take the time for the studies and teaching
out of their own Annual Leave. We would certainly not see this as a desirable
policy direction since neonatal skills nursing are so clearly identified as an
area of need for the NHS in Wales.

Page 145



Lisa Turnbull

Policy and Public Affairs Adviser, RCN Wales

Page 146



	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into Neonatal Care
	3 Inquiry into Neonatal Care
	CYP(4)-14-12 Paper 3 - Cwm Taf Local Health Board

	4 Inquiry into Neonatal Care
	5a Inquiry into Neonatal Care: Additional information from Royal College of Nursing Wales

